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uUnderlying proht pefore tax Prohit berore tax trom continusng operations belore any gan or loss on the sale of properties imparment of geodwdl financing ar value
maovemeants and one oll items that are matenial and ntrequent in nalure In the current ltnancial year these one ol Items were the protit an part disposal ol Samsbury s Bank
and past service gans ondelined beneht schemes. in the prior hnancial year these one aff stems wese the Business Review costs 1T msaurcing cosls and debl restructurnng costs

Underlying basic earmings per share Protit after tas from cantinuing cperations attributable te equity hotders before any gain or loss on the sale of praperties imparment
at goodwill tinancing fair valkue movemen,s and ane oft items thal are material and intrequent in nature divided by the weighied average number of erdinary shares in 1ssue
during the year excluding those held by the ESOP trusts which are treated as cancelled

Underlying cash Cash tlow atter adshing ter signiicant one attilems
Like tor fike sales Like for Iike sales are ad,usted 1o wake wnto account the timing of Easter talkng on 16 Aprd 2006 and 8 Aprid 2007
Underlying operaling prahit/loss) Underlying profit belore tax from continuing aperatsons before fmance income and timance costs

Sales target Thrs s detined as retailing sales ing VAT ex tuel ot which the non tood element relates Lo general merchandrse health and beauty and clothing sales
and the grocery element refates to tood and household sales

Certam statemenis made m this document are forward lodking statements. Such statements are based on cutrent expeciations and are subject 10 a number o rrsks and
uncertaimties that could cause actual events or results to dilter matenally irom any expected future events or results referred 1o 0 these forward looking statements Unless
otherwise required by apphcable law regulation or accounting standard we do not undertake any obhgation to update or revise any forward looking statemenls whether

as a result of new inlormation {uture development or ath@rwese Nolhing in this document shallk be regarded as a profut ferecast
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Chairman's statement

Over the past year we delivered anather strong performance and our recovery 1s ahead of plan Since March
2005, we have grown sales by an additional £18 tllon with over £1 biton detivered in the 2006/07 financial
year This means we are ahead of our target to grow sales by £2 5 billion by March 2008 I'm especially pleased
that we are now aiso demonstrating that this strong sales performance 15 flowing through and s reftected m
improved profits Our underlying profit before tax for the year was up 42 3 per cent to £380 miilion

The Board 18 recommending a fmal dividend of 735 pence per share, an in¢rease of 25 6 per cent This will take
the full-year dividend to 975 pence per share anincrease of 219 per cent compared to last year covered 15
Limes by undertying earmngs which is in line with our previously stated minimum objective Going forwarg we
expect dividend cover torange between 15 and 175 times

It 15 also encouraging that we can now ook at expansion opportunities put on hold during the early stages of
our recovery Property has always been at the heart of our business and 15 closely aligned to our successtul
operation Our estate still has consigerable development petential which we believe will maxumise both
operational and ireehold property value As we move from recovery to growth we believe it 1s night to retam
ownership of our properties

We continue to review our capital structure on a reqular basis A year ago we refinanced our debt book with
lower-cost property backed securilies We have agan looked at structural financing opportunities n the fight
of our revised plans and believe that now 1s nol the time for matenial change We will, however, continue to
review fundmg on a reguiar basis as the business cash flows improve

Our strong performance was delivered despite potential takeover speculation in the last quarter of the year
The Board received a number of proposals from a private equity consortium all of which were subject to a
number of pre conditions related to the consortium’s proposed financing structure and which were gutside the
control of the Board The consortium concluged they could not be satisfied and decided to withdraw The Board
did not recewve a formal bid approach ¢apabte of being put to shareholders

What was clear, however was that the attention we received was due to our success A resurgent Samnsbury s,
with a strong brand, a substantial ireehold asset base a high quahity store portfolio with deveiopment potential
and a highly regarded management team (s proving it can deliver the right resuits in one of the most
competitive markets 1 have encountered Thisis clearly an attractive propositien for investors

Another event during the past year has been the Competition Commussion investigation into the supply of
groceries by retailers in the UK We estabhished a separate team to deal with the work involved 1 ths mquiry (o
ensure it did not distract us from continuing to IMprove our operations and serve customers in the best possible
way We are co operating fully with this inquiry and have made our case clear A summary of our thinking 1s
avallable on our website www J-sainsbury o uk

We welcomed Val Gooding io the Board 1n January val nas a wide business hackground with particular recent
expersence focusing on consumers and health She 15 a greal addition to the Board Jamie Dundas stepped down
as a Non-Executive Director i February afler two three-year terms | would like to thank him for his hard work
and excellent contribution Io the Board during a pertod of significant change for the company

Qur strong perfarmance 15 a credit 1o the management team and colleagues throughout the company As
always, | thank them for ther hard work and support 1n defiverting a fundamentatly more robust business for
our sharehoiders

Moy -0
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The Business review

The purpose of this Business review 15 Lo provide
information on Saiasbury s strategy and corporate
objectives the market in which it operates tagether
with a review of progress dunng the year ended

24 March 2007 )t includes an analysis of key
performance indicators and an assessement of

the key nsks and uncertainties facing the Group

Our business and
its markets

J Sainsbury plec consisks of Sainsbury's,
a chain of 490 supermarkets and 298
convenience stores, and Sainsbury's Bank

Sainsbury's Supermarkets is the UK's
longest standing major {food retailing
chain and the Sainsbury’s brand s built
upon a heritage of providing customers
with healthy, safe, fresh and tasty food
Today the company differentiates itself
by offering a broad range of great
products al fair prices with particular
emphasis on fresh food Products are
improved and developed continually to
ensure the company teads in terms of

the ingredients used and the integrity of
sourcing A large Sainsbury’s store ofiers
around 30 000 products and many stores
also offer complementary non-food
products and services 114 stores provide
an internet-based home delivery shopping
service Sainsbury s Bank s jointly owned
by J Sainsbury plc and HBOS plc With
access to over 16 milhon Sainsbury s
customers each week operaking costs
are low enabling Sainsbury’s Bank to
offer exceltent value products with

extra benefits, ali delivered in a simple,
accessible way

The UK grocery retail market

The UK grocerv retaibing market was
valued at £123 5 billion iy 2005/06' and
1s forecasi to grow at an average annual
increase of 2 8 per cent to £1415 bilhon
by 20112 Over the past year, Sainsbury §
strengthened iis overall market share
position to over 14 9 per cent? although
the market can also be defined and
market share dvided n a number of
different ways Excluding non-food
iterns Samnshury s has the number

two position in the market

f The Instituta of Grocery Disiribution 4GD)

2 The IGD s mictCuse 3N wio torecast
3 Measured by TNS total marke! shate

Continuing operations 2007 2006

Sales (inc VAT) £18,518m E17.317m
Sales (ex VAT) £17,151m £16,06Im
Underlying operating profit E431m £342m
Underlying profit before tax £380m £267m
Profit before tax E477m £104m
Profit after tax £324m £58m
Underlying basic earnings per share 147p 10 5p
Basic earnings per share 192p 38p
Proposed dividend per share 97Sp 8 00p

Samsbury's growth will be affected by
general market 1ssues such as the impact
of regulatory and planming regimes on
store development and economic factors
such as the level of household disposable
income However, Sainsbury's sirategy s
aligned with factors such as customers
preferences for the products they buy
Sainsbury s 18 well posibioned to
anticipate and meel the increasing
consumer focus on fresh healthy

quahty foods The development of our
complementary non food offer addresses
our customers’ desire to buy a greater
range of non-food products along with
their weekly grocery shop and the
continued growth of our convenience
stores also takes account of the faster
pace of people s hfestyles and the trend
towards meore frequent top-up shopping
trips The Competition Commission { “CC™)
15 also undertaking an investigation into
the supply of groceries by retallers in

the UK The CC has stated its intention
to report its hindings an the early part

of 2008

14.9%

Total market share
Source TNS

30,000

products i alarge
Sainsbury s store

16 million

each week

Annudt Report and Financial Statements 2007 J Sainsbury ple

3



Business review continged

Justin King
Chief Executive

Two and a half years ago we outlined
our plan to Make Sainsbury’s Great
Again ("MSGA"}

Our vision I1s simple, we are here to
serve customers well with a choice
of great food at fair prices and, by so
doing, to provide shareholders with
strong, sustainable financial returns
This has driven everything we have
done since we outlined our recovery
plan in October 2004

1he plan spans three years to March
2008 and as well as f1xing a range of
basics - such as proguct availlability,
supply chain, IT, and price — we
committed to make hundreds of
small changes every day to improve
our customers shopping experience

To enabte us to measure our progress
we set some key {hree-year targets

The targets we set

*To grow sales (inc VAT ex fuel) by
£2 5 bilhion, with grocery contributing
sales of £1 4 billion, non-foad products
sales of £700 million and convenience
stores sales of £400 milhon

*To invest at least £E400 millien in
improving produdct guahty and cur
price position relative to competitors
and to find annual buying synergies of
100-150 basss points' to be reinvested
in the customer offer

* To deliver operating cost efficiencles
of at teast £400 million

* To generate neutral underlytng cash
flow In 2005/06 and positive cash
flow thereafter

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report and Pinanaial Statemants 2007

Corporate objectives

These were demanding targets and
the business has had to challenge
itself in every area in response

Progress in 2006/07 ~ What have we
achteved so far?

Against these clearly defined key
performance indicators we made
good progress this year

* We grew sales (inc VAT ex fuel) by
over E1 billion, taking our total sales
growth over the past two years of the
recovery plan to £1 8 bithon and ahead
of plan

*The £400 mulhion of investment in
the customer offer was completed by
December 2006 and additional
funds were invested in early 2007,
unproving product quahty and giving
us our most competitive price position
for many years

* We increased our cost savings target
to £440 mullion followtng our in-
sourcing of IT in April 2006 and we
are on track to deliver this

* We achieved an undertying cash flow
positive position earher than expected
-1n 2005/06 - so we targeted a cash
neutral position in 2006/07 and have
agamn exceeded that target despite
increased capital expenditure

These achievemnents give us a strong
foundation on which to buitd

We believe now 1s the nght bme to look
to the next stage of our recovery and to
expand Lthe business to drive growth for
the longer term So we have set ourselves
new three-year 1argets that buitd on the
slrong progress we ve made so lar and
move us from recovery to growih As we
are tracking ahead of our original M5GA
goals the new three-year targets start in
the current financial year, with the first

year overlapping with the third and final
year of our MSGA recovery plan and run
until March 2010

Whatever we do we must keep building
on and stretchmg our lead 1n food It will
always be the number one reason why
customers visit our stores We share our
customers’ passion for healthy, safe,
fresh and tasty food and will continue

to mnnovate and provide leadership in
dehvering quahty products, sourced
with integrity

At the same time we want to speed up
the development of gur complementary
non-foed offer to give customers a
broader shopping expertence in our
stores We will follow the same principles
of quality, value and innovation as we
continue to build gur capability and
refine our customer offer

Qur focus on driving sales continues
with a target to deliver £3 5 billion of
additional sales, spht two thirds from
grocery and one third from non-food
ranges, fram March 2007 to March 2010
Added to the £1 8 billron of sales growth
already delivered, thus new target, if
achieved, would give a total sales growth
of £5 3 billign over the five-year period
March 2005 to March 2010

Delivering great praduct at fair prices
will stay at the heart of our business

and we will continue to reinvest buying
efficiencies (100-150 bps' per annum)

v price and quahty We will also keep
tmproving our operational efficiency

50 we candeliver an ever improving
shopping expenence for customers We
are ontrack to achieve our cost saving
target of £155 muthon in the next financial
year and have targeied savings thereafter
to ofiset half our operating cost inflation

1 One basus pont 13 equal 1o YI0CHh of one per ¢ent




Business review conlinued

]
i Cash flow neutral
over three years

Capial expenditure of
£2 & bilhon by March 2010

Profit - profit growih
flowang through at a
percentage rate in
high single digiis

Sales growth - total additional
sales of £3 5 bilien by March 2010

From recovery to growth
2007 to 2010 plan

Space growth - len per cent
new space by March 2010

Devetopment of grocery
and non-food ranges

Channel growth
through onhne and
CanvenIence expansion

Costs - 2007/08 cost savings
of £155 mullion on track
thereafter ongoing annual
productivity to create cost
sawngs to offset half our
operating cest inflation

Annual invesiment
n price and guality
of 100 - 150 bps

QOur current store estate provides
substantial deveiopment opportunities
and we plan Lo exiend a further 75 stores
by March 2010 We're also actively
seeking and developing a pipeline of new
slores Qur target for growing sales space
would take our total sales area to over

19 mitlion square feet That means we
must increase our space by ten per cent
over the next three years The new space
will be split equally across grocery and
non-food ranges This goal enables

us to continue to develop a great food
ofter while also growing space for
non-foed ranges

We're also extending the reach of the
Sainsbury's brand We plan to open 30
new supermarkets and 100 convenience
stores over the nexl three years, and to
extend our onhine home delwvery service
We have significantly improved this
service over the past two years and we
will be increasing capacily in areas of high
demand, almost doubling the number of

stores operating the service fromjust over
100 at the current time to 200

The performance of Sainsbury s Bank

has been stabilised and working with our
partner HBOS plc, it now has premising
growth opportunities ahead We are
targeting profits of £40 million in the year
ending March 2010 Under our new joint
venture arrangements we would share
half of this after tax

To suppoi t Lhese ambilious expansion
plans we expect our total capital
expenditure over the next three years
to be £2 5 biflron, funded by operational
cash flows as we invesl naw for fong-
term growth and the creation of
ongoing vatue We expect to be broadly
cash {tow neutral over the three years

These are ambitious plans that bring
together the improvements we are
making in eperabional efficiency and
our customer offer together with sates
growth and the addition of new space

Sales momentum will build through our
expansion and flow through to profit at

a percentage rate in the high single digils
As new space matures and our other
investments mature there will be a step
up In profit conversion in future years

The company 15 significantly stronger
than it was when we launched our MSGA
plann 2004 and this has provided a firm
base {or future growih Customers have
become increasingly concerned with
eating more healthily as well as the
social and ethical consequences of their
weekly shop The Sainsbury s brand s
well positioned and at the forefront of
addressing these concerns We have laid
out plans for the next three years and
we are confident that these provide
Samnsbury s with substantial opportunity
for further development of our business
and value creation for our shareholders

Annual Report and Financial Staternen s 2007 J Sainsbury plc




Business review continued

Operating review

Strong progress

We had a strong and sustained
improvement in performance this year
and this has added significant momentum
lo our recovery Sales reramn the purest
measure of customer satisfaction in our
business, so this year's 7 3 per cent total
sales growth {(excluding Sainsbury s Bank
and including VAT} s a particutarly
important sign of progress

Over the year we grew hke-for-like sales,
excluding fue! by 59 per cent, despite
limited maturing new space and
extensions and the tougher comparatives
of the previous year We delivered our
ninth consecutive quarter of increased
sales in the last quarter of the 2006/07
financial year This result represented
growth on growth on growth and
demonstrated continued improvement
and mementum

This strong sales performance 15 ahead

of cur own expectations It's also our best
for many years It shows that our recovery
1s ahead ¢f plan and that we ve made
substantial progress 1in addressing many
of the challenges cutlined in our

recovery plan

Throughout the year we have focused

on mamtarng our lead in product quality
and remaiming very compehitive on price
We've stepped up the development of our
complementary non focd offer with the
introduction of more ranges in more
stores and we are growing our presence
In the convenience sector

Wiih 788 stores across the UK
Samsbury s 1s a mainstream retailer and
we ve worked hard to restore universal
appeal - our abibty to appeal to all
shoppers We serve more than 16 milhen
customers each week, on average and
believe we can continue to grow

“At Samsbury’s we will deliver an ever Impraving
quality shopping experience for ouUr Customers
with great products at far prices We will exceed
Customer expectations for healthy, safe, fresh
and tasty food making thew Lives essier every t.’m)« K

& J Sainsbury pic Annual Report and Financial Slatements 2007

Our emphasis on fresh and healthy food
conbinues to set Sansbury's apart and
contributed to this year's strong sales
performance Our heritage prowides an
wdeal markel posibion for cur brand, as
customers increasingly want healthy,
safe, fresh and tasty food Supporting
our recovery s our ‘goal’ (see below),
which demonstrates that our values and
beliefs have never fluctuated despite an
ever changing and challenging market
We have focused single-mindedly on what
our custorners want, this has driven our
recovery and will continue to do so

The strong progress achieved over

the year 1s builk on lots of indnadual
improvements, imitiatives and actions
within the business The following pages
provide a flavour of the many things

we have done this year towards Making
Sainsbury's Great Again and you can
find more at www ) sainsburyco uk

The strength of our offer

The values at the heart of the Sansbury’s
brand match the concerns and
preferences of more and more peaople
and that has helped to drive our sales
growth Five principles underpin our
activities and these are detalled on page
2t The values that made Sainsbury's
stand out In the past, such as buying
healthy and wholesome food and
respecting the environment, which

have been a key focus of the MSGA
recovery plan have become increasingly
important to customers This has inspired
us as we addressed our problems and
warked to fix the basics of our operation




Business review conbinued

Best for food

In October 2006 we were voted
Supermarket of the Year at the Retall
Industry Awards and in November we
again achieved outstanding success at
the industry's annual ‘quality’ awards,
winming more than half of the 25
categories We have made further
investments in raising the quahty of our
food and, while we are always pleased to
be given awards the best recognition 1s
that of customers buying more through
their weekly shop

During the past year more than 5,000
own brand products were new or have
been improved This included the work
we did providing customers with clear
and honest labelling, leading the way
on ingrechent standards and the way
in which products are sourced

In September 2006 we relaunched our
Taste the difference premium range,
which comprises nearly 1,400 products
and s a L1 bilhon brand These products
meet strict quahty standards and now
contain no artifwaal colours, flavours

or hydrogenated fats, a move we are
completing on all own label products
Thus1s a huge task given the sheer
volume of products we sell

In January 2007 we made a number of
changes to our basics range to enable
customers to make healtheer choices
This included adding our Wheel of Health
mulliple traific light label to around 200
food and drink products, lowering of sall,
sugar and fat levels where possible, and
removing unhealthy vegetable oils from
the entire range of producis over time

in April 2007 we became the first UK
retailer to announce the intention to
remove all artificial colours and
flavourings from own-brand soft drinks
and we will complete this work by June
2007 These are just a few of the many
improvements we have made

Customers value quahty fresh and
seasonal food and we work with supphers
to source as many products as possible
from the UK, celebrating the freshness
and seasonality of British produce We
have cantinued to increase sales of
organic food and we source all organic
primary chicken, beef, pork mitk egqs,
and tn-season lamb from the UK We sell
around 1,000 different organic products
and there are now more than 400
products in the Samsbury’s SO organi¢
range our second largest sub brand

and health
Eating a variety of foods s one of the
most effective ways to achieve a healthy
diet Supermarkets can play an important
role in helping peopie to balance ther diet
by providing a wide range of different
products Customers make up their own
minds aboul what they eat, what they
want 1s infermation to help them choose
the right food for them We believe our
Jobs to provide clear and honest iabelling
about ingredients, cooking and nutrition

As more retallers and manufacturers start
labelling products, multiple traffic hghts

( 'MTLs") — the system approved by the
Government’s Food Standards Agency —
are emerging as the most effective and
popular way to provide the ‘at-a-glance’
information customers need to make
healthier choices when shopping
Samnsbury’s was the first supermarket

to put nutritional labels on the front of
products when we introduced our Wheel
of Health MTL label in January 2005 and
4 500 of our products now carry these
labels The body of consumer research
Iinto nutrnitronal labels 1s building over fime

Research carried out among 17,000
people on behalf of Netmums in February
2007 showed that nearly 80 per cent of
people preferred the MTL system to

the alternative scheme, which details
guideline daiiy allowances {"GDAS' ) on
the front of packs GDAs are useful and
we have put them on the back of our
packaging for many years We were also
the firsl retailer to provide specific GDAs
for children, but MTL labels are even more
effective because they give customers the
simple at-a-glance” informatien thev want
as they shop in store

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2007 J Sainsbury plc
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Sainsbury s was the first major UK supermarket to set a date for
the remova!l of Hydrogenated Vegetable Gils { HVOs ) from its
entire range of own brand food and drink The company has been
working on the removal of HVOs for aver a year and to date has
remaoved a minimum of 383 tonnes of HVOs from its cakes alone

We were the first retailer 1o announce we will
fallow the Department of Health s proposed
voluntary new guidelines on the iabelling of
alcohol on all own brand beers wines and spints

Sainsbury s launched the firs{ ever
100% UK organic supermarket
box scheme

A gathering of over 100 health experts and
parenls to discuss the barriers and 1ssues to
healthy ealing overwhelmingly concluded that
parents play the single most important role in
helping their children lead a healthy hifestyle
but they desperately need help and advice

J Sanshury plc Annual Report and Financial Statemen s 2007

Qur Try something new today tip cards aim to
inspire customers te think beyond their normal range
of products The campaign provides simple ways to
make small but significant changes to the food we
buy and eat

These products meel stnct
qualty standards and now
contain no artificial colaurs
flavours or hydrogenated fats




Sainsbury s began a partnership with MEND,
the UK s largest preventron and treatment
programme ior overweight and obese children
and ther families

B0 per cent of people questioned
by Netmums preferred the
multiple traffic hght system over
the allernative scheme which
details guwdeline dailly allowances

We were the first retailer to
provide spectfic GDAs for children

In early 2007 customers who spent £10

or more 1n a single visit to Samnsbury s
recewed a Big 5 Drive peel and reveat
gamecard with a one in three chance to win
producls contaiming at least one portion of
fruit or veg as anincentive to eat healthily

Sainsbury s was rated top for
healthin a report pubhished by
the National Consumer Council

Around 200 products in the
basics range now have no
arbficial flavourings or addifives

Sainsbury s s cleaning up its
salt drinks by remaving all
artificral colours and flavourings
from its own brand sofl drinks

Annual Reperl sng | inantial Sta ements 20G7 J Sainsbury plc 9




Busiess review continued

Research from the Department of Health
("DoH") showed that, while people are
aware of the concept of alcoholic units,
they find it difficult to judge how many
they are drinking In February we became
the first retailer to adopt the Doti's
proposed voluntary quidehnes on the
labelling of alcohol We have apphed
labelling on all our own brand beers,
wines and spirits, encouraging sensible
drinking by helping people better
understand the effects of alcohol

Our work on labelling was just cne of the
imtiatives singled out last November by
the National Consumer Counctl when

1t named Sainsbury's the *healthiest
supermarket’ We also organised and
hosied an event called New ldeas for
Health' in September 2006 to move
forward the debate about food and
health Around 100 parents and
professionals, ncluding Caroline Flint
Miruster for Pubhc Health, joined us in this
discussion We are all increasingly aware
of health 1ssues but this event went
further by trying to identify the barners
to addressing problerns, looking at who
should take responsiihity for domng this
and coming up with some sclutions

Following the event we pledged to keep
the discussion gomng and began a three-
year partnership with MEND the UK's
largest preventicn and treatment
programme for overweight and obese
children and their families The national
partnership will see 450 MEND
programmes rolled out over the next
three years [oilowing a trial in eight areas

10 J Sainsbyry plc Annual Repert and Fimancial Statements 2007

The tnal delivered significant
improvements to the health, wellbeing
and self-confidence of participants
This 15 the first programme of this scale
sponsored by a private company It s
being run by fully trained Sainsbury’s
Food Adwisors with the assistance of

a local Youth Sport Trust colleague

Competitive pricing

The £400 mullkton investment in our
customer offer outlined in our MSGA plan
was completed by December 2006 and
we have now nvested additional funds in
early 2007 In total we have now invested
over £450 mullion in qualty and price

We now guard our price position jealously
and since January 2007 we have cut

a further 5,000 prices, bringing the

total since announcing our commitment
to 20,000

Ensuring we remam competitive on price
was a key strand of our recovery plan and
fundamental to making sure our brand
appeals to the widest range of people But
what makes Satnsbury s different for our
customers i1s our quahly

Bananas offer a good tllustration of how
we turn commitments into actions and
provide customers with quality they
value at competitive prices They are
also a great example of how our heritage
and our customers wishes have become
increasingly ahgned over the year

We ve worked with banana growers in
the Windward Isles for the last 50 years
and our cusiomers were already buying
a targe number of Fairtrade bananas

In December 2006 we announced the
decision to convert our entire banana
range to 100 per cent Farrtrade by
July 2007

Qur Farrtrade bananas cost the same

as the conventional bananas avallable

in other mass-market supermarkats and
are around 25 pence a kilo cheaper than
Fatrtrade bananas generally avatlable in
some of our competitors stores We
invested approximately £E4 millian in the
supply chatn — in the social premiwum that
15 paid to farmers - to achieve this value
for money far our customers

Every minute 1000 bananas are sold in
our stores and our customers are helping
to make an enormous difference to
Farrtrade farmers and their communities
This is the biggest canversion of its kind
worldwide and we now sell more Fairtrade
bananas than all of the other major
supermarkets in the UX combined

Strong suppher relationships -

sourcing with integrity

We enjoy strong and balanced
relationships with suppliers and share
the same aim to delver innovative, high
quality progucts at 1317 prices 10f our
customers In November 2006 we
announced an industry first with the
launch of a new payment management
system that makes it easier and quicker
tor supphers to accoss account
information and gain earty payments

The systems in the early stages of a trial
and will be rolled out during the current
financial year Supphers can view their
trading account oaline, including mvaices,
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det notes, remittance advices and
payment dates This gives them much
better visimiity of their expected cash
flow Early cash settlements can also be
made Il suppiters opl Lo sell their invarices,
via the new system, to a third party
financial inshitution

In May 2006 we launched our 'Supply
something new’ programme where
managers meet new supphers in the
search for high gquality and innovative
locally preduced food for customers

to emjoy Eight events have been held

to date resulting in the appointment of
over 20 new suppliers This year we also
appointed 12 regional managers who are
responsible for developing our regional
sourcing programme and supporting and
expanding the 3,000 regional products
we already sell

In October 2006 we introduced the
Sainstury s Dairy Development Group,
working with around 400 dairy farmers
to supply all 420 mullion itres of
conventional mitk bought by our
customers each year We believe the
market Is best served by imtiatives that
connect farmers directly o consumers
For example, our Farm promise milk,
launched in April 2006 gives farmers
a fair premium and makes a contractual
commiutment to support farmers
converting to orgamc malk production
Through this and other iIniiatives we
will pay a £10 smllion premium directly
to farmers each year

We are extending this approachnto other
areas of agricuiture We set up a Lamb
Partnershup in Livestock scheme in

e T

Seplember 2006 [ul erainpie anid are

in the process of developing a simiar
approach with pork supphers In January
2007 we launched Farm Connections’

a scheme thal provides 700 Taste the
cifference beel farmers with compulers
software and training This means they
can compete in the market and be better
informed of industry matters and
production costs So far over 500 farmers
have signed up

We have built up inngvative sustamability
plans supported by the Marine
Conservation Socrety, and we were the
first retaller to sell Marine Stewardship
Council ("MSC ) cod from a sustamable
source This was just one of many
industry firsts we have achieved in fish
We sell the targest range of MSC products
and none of the fish we sells ‘red-rated
{based on a colour rating system} We are
also working to achieve a green rating for
all the fish sold in our stares We started
selling 100 per cent ine caught cod and
haddock this year and we are the largest
retaller to dothus As cne of the UK s
leading fishmongers taking the lead on
such important issues has an enormous
effect on the fish being eaten in the UK

Complementary non-food

Food remains at the heart of our offer, but
we also sel a targel for complementary
non-food to deliver £700 mullion of our

£2 5 billron sales growth target Qver the
last 18 months new layouts fixtures
fiktings and ranges have been tnalled in 15
stores to assess which non {ood products
and which types of presentation most

appeal to our customers The successful
elements have been introduced into 48
stores and in those being refurbished
and exiended We will keep making
improvements and applying new deas
inthis area The addition of sales space
through both new store development and
extensions 1s playing an important role as
we accelerate the growth of these ranges

As we continue to build our infrastructure
and capability in non-food we opened
ofiices in Hong Kong and Poland in

2005 to help us work directly with
manufacturers in the development of
higher quabty better value products

Our reputation for quality value and
innovation 15 just as relevant te our non-
foodranges as it i1s to foad In branded'
areas such as music and entertainment
we focus on offerng products at
compehitive prices and we have gained
signihicant market shares of recent DVD
and CDreleases In clothing and home
ranges, Innovation, design and value are
all important to customers In March 2007
we itroduced a new premium homeware
range under the ‘Difterent by design’
hrand, which mirrors our premium

Taste the dilference food offer

TU, our own label clothing range, continues
to be a star performer and underpins

cur non food offer In March 2006 we
launched a range of clothing made from
Fairtrade certified cottan The range
cansists of 22 different styles across
men's, women’s and children’s clothing
and s designed by our own design team
as part of our TU clothing collection
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In anindustry leading initiative welcomed by the
National Farmers Union { NFU ), Sainsbury s will
work directly with dairy farmers in a newly formed
development group 1o strengthen inks and improve
transparency in the supply chain

Sainsbury s 1s the first of the

big four supermarkets to sell

only cage-free eqgs ahead of 2012
This received a Good Egy award
frem Compassion in World Farming
forits commitment to the health
and welfare of ammals

Justin King along with Harriet Lamb Director of the Farrtrade
Foundation visited the Windward Isles to meet Fartrade banana
farmers and to see lirst hand how developing countres can
benefit from the social premium selhing Fasrtrade [cod can create . .
Sansbury’s is the
LEad-hg faurtrade
retailer, acCoUnting
for LOL of fautrade

bananas mthe UK’

Sainsbury s switched the 22 million

hot beverages it sellsinits 230 in store
restaurants every year entirely Lo Fartrade
This makes 1l the only supermarket serving
Fartrade tea colffee and hot chocolate

10 customers

Bumblebees are in serious decline in the UK according
lo research To help reverse this problem Sainsburys
15 tunding an exclusive praject aimed at boosting
bumblebee numbers by as much as 600 per cent
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The scheme known as Farm Connections will mean

that key beef producers will be given computers

software and training so they can better operate and
compete inthe market and be informed of industry

matters and production costs

Sainsbury s now oifers arange
of clothing made from Fairtrade
certified cotton The jaunch of
Samsbury s clothing range
carrying the FAIRTRADE mark
confirms the supermarket s
commitment to the use of
Fartrade certified cotton

Just four weeks belare small supplier Levi
Roots met with Sainshury s he was cooking up
batches ot his Reggae Reqggae sauce — a spicy
Jjerk/BBQ sauce based on Lewvi s secret family
recipe —n the kitchen of his Brixton home
Following nis appearance an TV s Dragon s
Den the sauce s now avallable at 607
Samsbury s stores and 15 a hot seller

Customers continue to enjoy the Jamie Qlhiver
Taste the difference range of 21 days extra mature
beal whichis hung for three weehs before beng
packed It s good old fashioned well looked after
beef which provides extremely high gualty andg

tasty meat

In parinarship with Food from Britain Sainshury s
15 launching an innovative new scheme to make it
easter for small and mediim sized supphers to
gain business access to the retailer

Sainbury s has launched a new
farming scheme which could
pioneer the way British apples are
grown and thus help secure the
future of the British apple industry

Customers value quality fresh and seasonal
food and Sainsbury s worked with suppliers
o suuiLe as Many prududls as pussibie
from the UK celebrating the freshness and
seasonality of 8ritish produce
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Avallability

Our product availabihity rs now the best

it has been for many years We have
reorgamised our depot network so that
we can continue Lo improve the service
to our stores In hine with our increase

1n sales, our depots now handle over a
milhon more cases each week thanin the
previous year Improved efficiencies have
also reduced the cost per case and we
now deliver an additional 50 rmullion
cases for the same costs achieved in

the previous year

We are opening a new distribution centre
1n Northampton later this year Thisis
animportant step in ensuring we have
enough capacity to match our growth
expectations This will create 750 new
jobs The depot will initially provide
additional capacity thus Christmas and will
be fully operational by the middle of next
year Another sign of our increased sales
performance 1s the extenston of our
Langlands depot in East Kitbride and a
reconfrgurabion of our depot at Waltham
Potntin Hertfordshire willhimprove the
capacity and rehabihty of the depot

Corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibility principles are

at the core of our busmess and our brand
and have been since we gpened our first
store in 1869 Qver the past yesr there
has been a huge increase in the interest in
social and ethicalissues and Sainsbury s
hentage has meant we have been well
placed to address customer concerns
During the year most other retallers
announced plans te address concerns
over 1ssues such as health and
environmental impacts so our chatlenge
15 to keep leading 1nnovating and
achieving great results

Firve principles underpin our activities (as
detailed on page 21) and we already have
stretching targets in place 'n anrif 2007
we announced our Make the difference
plan This reflects the fact that custorners
arencreasingly concerned about social
and ethicalissues they now expect
companies to meet their responsibilities,
but they also want to know what they can

do as well This follows an association
with the We Are What We Do { WAWWD'™)
glebal social change mavement over
recent years

The plan takes policy out of the
boardroom and puts us in partnership
with our customers Each month we are
holding a Make the difference day where
we raise a specific issue and take action
And we show customers how they can
take actiontoo With over 16 million
customers each week working together
means we can really make the cifference

Cur first Make the difference day was on
27 Aprit 2007 During that day we stopped
1ssuing disposable plastic carner bags and
nstead gave customers our Bag for Life
This1s made from 100 per cent recycled
material and is typically used around 20
times When it 1s worn out customers can
return it to us for a new bag and we wilf
recycle thewr old one These bags normally
cosi ten pence each but on this day we
1issued more than six milhon for free It was
a great example of working together —we
can gqive customers the bags but they
must re-use them to help us reduce the
amount of disposable hags in circulation
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Respect for our environment

As aleading UK retailer we have a
responstbility to mimmise any potential
adverse impacts of our operations

We ve invested more than £15 mullion

in energy efficiency projects since

2002 and Sainsbury's won the Carbon
Management City of London Liveable
City Award 2006 through our innovative
projects to reduce emissions

Much of our work 15 about goecd
housekeeping and almest all our large
supermarkets now have intranet hnked,
automated building controls to allow us
to improve efficiency and manage power
loads so we can further reduce our
energy costs

A big i1ssue for customers 1s the amount
of food packaging in use andits
environmental impact We ve already
reduced excessive packagmng on many
products Take Easter eggs, since 2004
we have reduced the weight of packaging
by up to 87 per cent with the vast
majortty of the rematning packaging now
recyclable re usable or compostable

In September 2006 we announced the
removal of 3 550 tonnes of plastic from
our output every year We achieved this
by replacing 150 mellson plastic trays and
bags on 500 of cur ready meal and
organic food products with ‘compostable
packaging’ the friendltest form of

packaging for the environment according
to the Women's Institute Instead of
plastic, the packaging uses maize, sugar-
cane or starch so that it can break down
nalurally ina garden composl heap

We share our customers belef that
plastic bags contribute to long term
damage to the environment so
September we launched a new carrier
bag to replace our previous free carrier
A third of the new orange bag 15 made
from recycled matenal and it can, inturn,
be recycled and made into a new bag This
has saved 17 billion old style carner bags
and 6,500 tonnes of plastic every year
We're still the onty UK supermarket to
offer customers a free carrier bag with a
htgh proporticn of recycled matenial, but
we urge others to follow this lead and cut
down on the use of plastic and matenals
sent to landfill

We have promoted re-usable shopping
bags since the mid1990's and In
November 2006 we teamed up with

Arts Council England to produce hmited
editien re-usable bags des:gned by well
known artists The bags were incredibly
popular and sold out i {2 weeks We were
also the obvious cuttet for a similar
envirocnment friendly bag designed by
leading accessories destgner Anya
Hindmarch i cotlaboration with WAWWD
The bags went on sale at the beginning of
April and sold out within an hour
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By September 2008, 20 per cent of the

supermarket’s online deltveries will be made
using efectric vans savrng 45 tonnes of CO,
emissions i the first year I

As well as selling 100 per cent recycled

refuse sacks Sainsbury s now sells

composlable garden refuse sacks, as weil

as caddy bin hners for the onein three |
pecple that now home compost inthe UK !
Both bags are made of starch hibre instead

of plastic which means they can naturally

break down in a garden compost heap

In Apri 2007 Samnsbury s teamed up
with designer Anya Hindmarch and
giobal social change movement We
Are What We Do totaunch a re usable
shopping bag in all stores 20 0C0 bags
sold out acrass the UK in under an heur

A third of the new carrier bag will be made from

recycled material and what s more customers can Sansbury s gave a major
recycle their bag and Sainsbury s witl make it into baost to the world 5 forests
anew one by announcing that it

will be the first to source
allof its own brand tissue
from sustainable sources
Al ol its issue will either
be FSC approved or recycled

Sanmsbur, siist Hake e
diflerence day saw Sainsbury s
become the first major UK
supermarket {o stop giving oul
{ree disposable carreer bags inits

stores and instead gave over Six Research has shown that carbon

mullon free re usable Bags lor Sainsbury 5§ SO orgamic jute shopping bag ermissions from Kenyan roses

Lile tusualty 10p) to customers has proved popuiar with customers and as inchuding air freight were 58 times

for their shopping well as being carbon neutral 1t follows organic lower than for Dutch roses Results
growing ideals incleding using low input non have prowided a fresh challenge (o
Gt matenal rotation crops erganic manures current Lhinking on sourcing and
and avoidance of pesticdes the impact of air freight versus

articial Reating and hghting lor
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Samnsbury s will be the {irst retaiter in the UK to offer
customers a Freepost battery and cell phone recyching
service This 15 going to be the only scheme of its kind
and 15 expected to save 2,500 tonnes of batieries going
to landlll every year

Last year our customers recycted 100 million
ptastic bags at our recychng points at our stores
We have offered this service since July 2004

Sainsbury s and Arts Council
England teamed up to produce

Packaging now gives clearer instruchions Imited edition re usable shopping
for recyeling composting etc such as bags designed by well known
Sorry notrecyclable or Please recycle artists The baos meant anyone
s0 that customers know what they can do could gel a work of art for only 50p

when they ve fimshed with the wrapping

During the Secand World War
we reduced the paper used
for our lagels Its in our DNA
to find ways lo mimimise our
impact on the environment
and make our labeliing as
clear as it can be

We have heen developing an ndustry
leading assessment system that will
ensure that the hish we sell are sourced
from sustainable sources

The amount of material our
colleaques recycled in 2006 was
equivalent to over 14 000 double
decker buses

Samnsbury 5 hali-way through 1ts plans to
replace 150 mullign plasiic trays and bags wiin
compostable packaging By the end of the year all
reagy meals and the majonty of argantc produce
wili be In compostable matenal which can
disappear on a garden compest heap orina bin

Annual Repert and Financial Stalements 2007 J Sainshury plc
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Business review conlinued

Making a positive difference to our
community

QOur stores are at the heart of the
communities they serve and fast year
we invested £18 milhon in community
inibiatives, and a further £12 milhon from
chanty fundraising and donations in our
stores Qur activities focus on areas that
matter most {o our cotleagues and
customers such as food, family, health
ang children

Our Active Kids programme 13 a great
example of this and 38,000 registrations
have been received for the 2007 scheme
For the {irst time this year the nations
ane milhon Scouts and Girl Guides are
eligible tojoin Customers earn Active
Kids vouchers against spend i store
and online which can then be redeemed
by schools against activity and cookery
equipment Since the launch of Active
Kids in 2005 we have donated

£34 million of sports equipment kit

and coaching to over 26,000 UK schools
and nurseries Active Kids also aims to
encourage healthy eating as customers
earn a bonus voucher for buying fresh
fruit vegetables and salad plus any of
the 2,350 foods marked with the healthy
apple stamp’ such as milk, pasta nce and
fresh fish
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We also work with the Youth Sports Trust
and Enghish Schools Athletics Association
as part of our commitmant to support
grass roots actrvities rather than national
sporting teams or events All the profit
from our bags for iife, £159,000 1n
2006/07, goes directly mto local
community projects recommended by
our store colleagues as part of our
community grants programme

Another great example of a scheme that
supporls our business, the community
and the environment 1s our food donation
scheme This reduces the amaunt of
surplus food past its sell-by date bul not
its use-by date we have to send to landfill
Instead we distribrute this to charities
across the country such as the Salvation
Army and FareShare In the year ending
March 2007 we donated £3 4 million of
food to homeless charities and 60 per
cent of our stores are linked to local
chanties through the scheme Qur aimis
Lo increase this to 100 per cent and we
remain the only UK supermarket to
donate food in this way all year round
rather than just at peak trading periods

Community involvement also goes
heyond our stores surh as ouir
sponsorship of Comic Rehef and Sport
Reliel This year we raised over £7 million
for Comic Relief through sales of Comic
Rehel merchandise and colleague activity
This represented 22 per cent of the total
£32 militon raised on the night

Colleagues a great place to work

The majority of our store colleagues live
within the communities served by their
store and many donate time and effort

to a broad range of good causes outside
work Our Local Heroes programme 1s our
own awards scheme, which recogrises
and encourages colleagues in stores
depots and offices whe do this and we
match all funds raised with awards of
between £200 and £500 The scheme 15
now tn Its sixth year during which time we
have donated around £750,000 to good
causes This year we donated around
£250,000, an increase of 48 per cent
over the previous year
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Our colleagues are vital to our success
and over the past year we completed the
dehvery of leadership tramming to 9,000
managers throughout our business We
track how engaged colleagues are wilh
our goatls and values through our
‘talkback’ survey and tast year saw
marked improvements in both colleague
engagement and our leadership skills

The Tell Justin suggestion scheme was
taunched In September 2004 Nearly
17,000 1deas have been received since
that time and ten per cent of suggestions
are actioned

This year we will pay our highest ever
bonus to colleagues with 118,000 sharing
£56 million in bonus payments in June
2007 Including this bonus, we wilt have
paid £145 million in bonus scheme
payments aver the last three years

A ust reward for the huge efforts of

our ¢olleagues

Developing our stores

Having made such good progress in
improving our performance we renewed
our search last year for locations where
we could introduce Sainsbury’s to new
communities Dunng the 2006/07
financial year we increased our space by
3 8 per cent, driven mainty by our abity
Lo acquire more new space than planned
This was ahead of target primanly due to
increased activity in the second half of
the year

During the year we opened 20
supermarkels and extended 18 A further
50 were refurbished one was downsized
and 48 benefited from investment 1n their
non food offer In our convenience
operation, 20 stores opened 22 were
refurbished and 30 converted to our
‘Sainsbury’s @' format Two conventence
stores closed and two supermarkets were
closed due to relocation to improved sifes

New space growlh opportunties are now
heing developed as we plan a ten per cent
growth i space over the next three years
We plan to open 30 new supermarkets
and 100 new convenience stores and

we are targeting the complebion of 75
extensions and 190 refurbishments,

with the farge majonty undertaken on
our freehold and leng leasehold estate

We are actively managing our property
portfolio A speciahst property team s
building a pipeline of new stores and more
than 50 per cent of our current estate will
be developed by March 2010 and at least
60 stores will be over 55 000 square feet
with over 15 000 sauare feet of non food
ranges by March 2010 The pipeline will be
developed to dehver space growth at

five per cent each year from 2009/10

The ownership of property is aligned to
these operational plans and provides
sigmficant opportunity to maximise both
operatonal and ireehold property value
from our portfoho

Sainsbury’s online

Qur onlne aoperation has had an
outstanding year Sales grew by 49

per cent with a record Christmas
performance We now cover 83 per

cent of UK postcodes and have 64,000
customers each week New customers
conbinue to be attracted to the service via
recommendations from tamily and friends
— the most powerful advocates we could
have We are the first grocery retailer to
operate an Etectric Zero Emission vehicte
By Autumn 2008, the 3 5 tonne van
which 1s suitable for urban areas, will be
responsible for the transpor! of 20 per
cent of all our online orders and our

onhine drivers will continue to collect
customers’ unwanted Samnsbury's plastic
carrier bags for recycling

We beheve there s significant growth
petential in the online operation and we
plan toincrease capacity in areas of high
demand As a result the number of stores
operating this service will reach 200 by
March 2010 and we expect sales to more
than double over the nexi three years

Sainshury’s Bank

Sainsbury's Bank became a 50 50 jont
venture operation it February 2007 when
we announced the sale of five per cent of
the business (o our partner HBOS plc for
£E2imilion The Bank remamns an
important part of our Group and the

new ownership structure reflects the
shared commitment Sainsbury's and
HBOS plc has to growing the business

The Bank has made good progress in
stabilising is operations over the year
and a tight focus on cost control and
tighter risk management actions
ungnenenled uvel the pasl lwo yeais
has more than offset whal has been a
worsening environment for consumer
credit In 2006/07 Sainsbury's Bank
made an undertying operating profit of
£2 mifhon 1t continues to offer growth
opportunities and we are targeting prohits
ol £40 mulhon in the year ending March
2010 half of which wiul be reported
after tax
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The number of graduates
becenung lood science experts
has hit dangerously low levels in
recent years, and to reverse the
sharp decline Samsbury s has
launched a Gap Year scheme
called Taste the World to entrce
the pest graduates to the food
science industry

Being the best far food and health s a key
prionty for Sainsbury s as it has been since
1869 In 1922 tiles were used to ensure shop
hygiene was kept to the highest standards

We launched a ground breaking
green store in 1999 at Greenwich
The 35 000 sq It store reduces
energy consumption by up to 50%
compared to a standard store of a
similar size and operalion

We ve raised E£31'5 milllon across all projects since we became
supparters of Comi¢ Relef 10 1999 In 2007 we have raised over
E£7 mulhon for Red Nose Day and we are still counting
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Shirung Stars 1s a recognition programme
tesigned Lo reward our colleagues by giving
them ponts for doing a fantastic job

FareShare works 10 relieve food poverty by
providing quahity food and other supporl to
organisabions working with homeless and
disadvantaged people Last year alone FareShare
redistributed around 2 000 tonnes of fit for
purpose surplus food, which contributed to
around 3 3 million meals
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Our commitment to the communities in which we operate

Corporate responsibility isn't new for us When we opened our first store in 1869 the
guiding principle was to offer good quality products to everyone, including those who
had never had access to healthy and safe food before Today, our commitment to the
communities in which we operate 1s still every bit as important and the five principles
below underpin our activities Customers trust us to take care of their concerns, and
that sets us apart from competitors as you will have seen in this review

In many areas we already lead our industry, but we're committed to innovating and
setting even higher standards We've provided some examples of our activities but our
full corporate responsibility report can be found at www.j-sainsbury.co.uk/cr

The best for
food and health

Sourcing with integrity

Respect for our
environment

Making a positive
difference to your
community

A great place to work
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Business review continued

Financial review

Progress in year
The financial resulis for the 52 weeks to

24 March 2007 reflect strong progress on
the MSGA plan Sales (inc VAT) increased

by 69 per cent to £18,518 million (2000
£17,317 mullion) Underlying profit before
tax was up 42 3 per cent at £380 million
(2006 £267 million} Underlying basic

{2006 10 5 pence) Profit before tax
was £477 million (2006 £104 millton)
Basic earnings per share increased to
19 2 pence {2006 3 8 pence) A hinal
dividend of 7 35 pence per share s
proposed (2006 S B85 pence) making
full year dividend of 975 pence

earnings per share increased to 147 pence (2006 8 00 pence)
Darren Shapland
Chiei Financial Gfficer

6 9% SALES GROWTH
(inc VAT) to £18,518 milhion
Summary income statement

2007 200&
42 3% INCREASE for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007 Em Im % change
in underlying profit before

tax to £380 milhon

Continurng operations

Sales (inc VAT)
40 0% INCREASE

Retaibng - Supermarkets and Converignce 18,227 16 987 73
1n underlying basic earnings Financial services - Sainsbury s Bank! 291 330 (11 8)
pershareto 147 pence

Total sales {Inc VAT) 18,518 17 317 &9

219% GROWTH
1n full year proposed dividend

Sales {ex VAT)

ta 975 pence Retalling - Supermarkets and Convenience 16,860 15 731 72
Financial services - Sainsbury s Bank! 291 330 {11 8)
Total sates (ex VAT) 17,151 16 061 68
Underlying operating profit
Retailling - Supermarkets and Convenience 429 352 219
Financial services - Sainsbury s Bank! 2 {10) 1200
Total underlying operating profit 431 342 260
Underlying nel finance costs? (51} (75} 320
Underlying profit before tax 380 267 42 1
Busmess Review operating costs - (51} n/a
IT iInsourcing costs - (63} n/a
Debt restructurning costs - 38) n/a
Profit on sale of properties 7 1 600 0
Profit on part tisposal of Sainsbury s Bank 10 - n/a
Pas* ser ce g2 ~s o~ def ~ed tonef o sehees T2 - o]
Financing fair value movements 8 (1) 1667
Profit before tax ar7 104 3587
Income {ax eapense (153) (46) 232 8)
Proht for the financial year 324 58 4586
Underlying basic earmings per share 14 7p 10 Sp 40 0
Basic earnings per share 19 2p 3 8p 405 3
Proposed dividend per share 9 75p 8 Dp 219

1 Sansbury s Bank Iy been tully consohdated w il the Group solit five per tent shweholding o Fediuaty there siier il has been eu 1, acCounled as

d ket ven ure
2 tiet bnance cojts pre hnancmg law welue mos emerts 12006 o e inancing 1ad viue movement s dnd gebl restructutngcasts
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Business review Lonlinued

SALES (INC VAT EX FUEL)

5.9% LFL

FASTER ADIUSTED

Retailing sales (inc VAT) increased by
T3 per cent to £18,227 mathon driven by
good like-for ke growth and new space

In total, 639 000 square feet of net new
space was added in the year, a space uphft

Key retaing metrics

of 3 8 per cent which was ahead of target
due toa mgh level of properiy development
completed in the second half Inthe

next financial year the Group 1s targeting
wicteentai space giowth of around lwo
per cent

for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007 2007 2006
Like for like sales % (inc fuel) (Faster adjusted) 57 41
Easter adjustment %’ 03 {04)
Imphed impact of new space % 13 20
Total sales % (inc fuel) 73 57
Like for ke sales % (ex fuel) (Faster adjusted) 59 37
Easter adjustment %' 03 (0 4)
Imphed impact of new space % 15 21
Total sales % (ex fuel) 17 54
Grocery price inflation/(deflatron) %2 10 (1 5}
Retaling underlying aperating profit {£m} 429 352
Year on year growth % 21 9 14 3
Retailing underlying operating margin %? 254 224

1 Laster adpustment tukss inle account the luming ot Caster talling on 16 Aprd 2006 ind 8 Apnil 2007

2 The Groug 1s not intending to provide nlaton data s tulure hading upd 11es

3 Retaing ynger ving operating prefit divided by retamng sales ar Val

Supermarhkets Convemence Total

Retaling store numbers Area Area Area
and space summary Number Q0 sa i Number 000 3q 1t Number 000 3q It
As af 25 March 2006} 472 16 050 280 635 752 16,725
New stares 20 375 20 53 40 428
Closures {2} (34) {2) (3 {4) 3%
Extensions/downsizes/
relurbishments 249 1 250
As at 24 March 2007 490 16 680 298 684 788 17,364
Memarandum
Extensions 18 272 - - 18 272
Downsizes 1 (35 - - 1 {35)
Refurbishments/conversions 50 iz 52 1 102 13
Comphmentary non {ood 48 - - - 48 -
Total projecis 117 249 52 1 169 250

1 Reliects ¢ontral supermarbels recassilivg Irom Conveiience 1o Sunernaik als und olher $1 ¢ sdustment s

Retailing underlying operating profit
increased by 219 per cent to £429 million
{2006 £352 mithion) reflecting the sirong
sales performance and o 3C bass pont
wnprovement in retailing underlying
operating margin {ex VAT) to 2 54 per
cent for the year (2006 2 24 per cent)
Conbinued improvernent in operational
gearing has been driven from higher
sales valumes and further cost savings
This helped to mitigate the impact of
continued investment in price and product
qualty and hwgher energy pricesn the
second half

Key areas of cost saving have been in
supply cham [abour and IT costs and
there continues to be a focus on
managing central costs and improving
stock loss although shrinkage challenges
remain an issue as the external
environment remains tough Qverall, the
Group remains on track to achieve the
£440 milion cost savings over three
years Lhat underpin the MSGA recovery
plan and supports investment in the
customer offer
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Business re new continued

SAINSBURY S BANK

£2 miilion

UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT

24 J Samsbury ple Anna il Report and Fuancial Sy stemien s 2007

Frnancial services - Sainsbury's Bank
The accounting for Samnsbury’s Bank in the
financial year reftects the sale of five per
cent shareholding in Sainsbury’s Bank

to HBOS plc on 8 Febr uary 2007 Untii

8 February 2007, Sainsbury’s Bank
performance has been {ully consolidated
tnto the Group results and contributed

£2 million at an operating level From this
date the Group has accounted for

Its equity share (1e 50 per cent) of
Sainsbury s Bank's post-tax profit, which
delivered a break even result in the period
up to 24 March 2007 Sainsbury's Bank
expects to delver a simitar small profit in
the next financial year as it focuses on
investing for future activities

Underiying net finance costs

Underlytng net finance costs

Underlymag net finance costs decreased
by £24 rmullron to £51 million (2006 £75
mudlion), which comprised a £2 milhon
increase nunderiying finance cosls

and a £26 milion increase in underlying
finance income The lower net finance
costs reflected the £12 mulhon benefit of
lower financing rates following the debt
restructuning announced on 24 March
2006 as well as areduchion in underlying
net debt through cash flow improvements
The increase in return on pension assets
offsets the additional interest cast from
the pension contribution of £350 million In
the next financial year the Group expects
underlying net finance costs to remarn
broadly level year on year

2007 2006
for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007 Em £m
Interest income 15 7
Net refurn on pension scheme assets 41 23
Underlying finance income! 56 30
Interest costs (117} (115)
CapHalised interest 10 10
Underlying finance costs! {107) 11035)
Underlying net finance costs’ (51) (75)

Profit on sale of properties

Surplus assets were sold during the year
generating a profit on sale of £7 milhion
(2006 £1milhion) and cash proceeds of
£106 milion (2006 £164 milhon) which
was ahead of target The Group will
continue to dispose of surplus assets and
expects the proceeds in the next financial
year (o be around £75 rmitlion

Prohit on part disposal of

Sainsbury’s Bank

On 8 February 2007, the Group sold five
per cent shareholding in Sansbury’s Bank
for £21 milhon to HBOS plc This sale
generated a profit on disposal of £i0 mulhion

Past service gains on defined

benefit schemes

Following changes introduced by the
Finance Act effective from 6 April 2006,
the defined benehit schemes have
implemented revised terms Lo provide
members with the option to surrender

Pre lingncing taw value mavements (2006 ore tinanting far value movements and debt restruclorng cosis)

a greater proporficn of thewr pension for
a tax free cash lump sum payment
Accordingly the Group revised i1ts
assumptlions used in calculating the
retirement benefit obligations in respect
of thus and certatn minor changes in
scheme rules and has recogmised £72
million of past service gains in the Group
income statement

Financing fair value movements

Fair value movements for the Group
resulted 1n a £8 million gain (2006 £12
million loss, of which £4 mullion loss
related to Sainsbury’s Bank)

Taxation

The income tax charge was £153 million
(2006 £46 milhon}, with an underlying
rate of 34 8 per cent (2006 35 5 per
cent) and an effective rate of 32 2 per cent
(2006 44 2 per cent) The underlying
rate exceeded the nominal rate of UK
corporation tax principally due to the lack




Business review contnued

of effective tax relief on depreciation of
UK retail properties This disallowable
depreciation amounted to £73 mullion in
the financial year and the Group expects
it to remain at a simlar level in tne next
hinancial year With effect from 1 April
2008 the standard rate of UK
corporation tax will reduce from 30 per
cent to 28 per cent and as a result will
reduce the undertying rate in the ftnancial
year ending March 2009

Underlying basic earmings per share
Underiying basic earnings per share
increased by 40 0 per cent from1i0 5
pence to 147 pence, reflecting the
improvement tn underlying profit after
tax attributable to equity holders, after
adjusting for the minority interests at
Sainsbury s Bank

Dividends
A finat dividend of 7 35 pence per share s
proposed (2006 5 85 pence) and will be

£1.4 billion

UNDERLYING CASH
IMPROVEMENT OF

£162 million

paid on 20 July 2007 to sharehoiders on
the Reqister of Members at the close of
business on 25 May 2007 The total
proposed dividend for the year 1s
tnerelore up 219 per cent Lo 975 pence
(2006 800 pence) Underlying dwidend
cover increased in the year to 15 times
(2006 13 times) Going forward the
Group expects to achieve underlying
dividend cover in the range of 15 hmes
to 175 times

Cash flow statement

Group net debt as at 24 March 2007 was
£1,380 million (2006 £1,415 million)
Adjusting for the impact of Sainsbury's
Bank, which was consohdated in the prior
year, net debt reduced by £156 millicn
(2006 ex Sainsbury's Bank £1,536 miliion)

Within the overall cash flow movement for

the year there were a number of
significant one-off items The significant
cash outflows related to a £240 million

Summary cash flow statement

ane-off pension contrnibution made i

May 2006 and £20 milhon paid out in
relation to one-off costs charged to the
income statement in the prior year These
were offset ny significant casn iniows
relating to £93 million received in respect
of property disposals and the sale of five
per cent shareholding of Sainsbury’s Bank,
£81milhon proceeds fromissue of shares
and around £150 milhon relating {o year-
end timing differences on working capital
which are expected to reverse inthe next
financial year After adjusting for these
items, underlying cash flow for the year
was £162 milion favourable In the next
financial year the Group expects to deliver
an underlying cash ftow neutral position
after adjusting for the reversat of the £150
million working capital iming differences

2007 2006
for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007 Em £Em
Cash generated from operationst 830 780
Nel interest 83) {1586}
Corporalion lax received 9 3
Cash flow before appropriations 756 627
Purchase of non current assets (788} 1561)
Disposal of non current assetsfoperations 93 151
Proceeds from 1ssue of shares 81 22
Capital redemptien 2) )
(Repayment of)/proceeds irom borrowings {75) 65
Debt restructuring costs (2} 22}
Dwidends pad (140} (131)
Net {decrease)fincrease in cash and cash eguivalents [Wara| 1472
Decreasef{(increase) in debt 79 65)
1AS 32 and IAS 39 adjustments - (51}
Other non cash movemenis 32 -
Mavement in net debt 35 26
Opentng net debt {1415} (i441)
Ciosing net debt {1,380) {1415
Of which
Retailing (1,380) (1 536)
Financial services - 121
Closing nel debt {1,380y (1 415)

Inciudes £240 rulbon (2006 £R0 rmfion) ol cash pant mto the delned beneéld pension schemes and £90 madion € 1sh outtle. nr=lation to itenis

charged Lo Lhe scome slaterment s pHor yedrs 12006 £68 medllion)
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Business review con‘mued

Financing

The Group's {tnancing requirements

are managed by pre-funding cash flow
requirements and maturing debt
obhgations, mainlaining a divei sity of
funding sources with an appropriate mix
of fixed, floating and infiation-tinked
borrowings and by spreading debt
repayments over a range of maturities

The Group s core funding takes the

form of term lcans secured over property
assels Short-term funds are raised on
the wholesale money markets Contingent
liquidity 1s maintained through a new
£400 milhion five-year revolving credit
facihty, entered into in February 2007

As al 24 March 2007 there were Enil
drawings under this facility (2006 £nil
drawings under 2006 bank facility)

The Group’s treasury policies are set

out in note 29

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure increased in the year
to £737 milhon (2006 £525 million)
Thisincluded £308 milhon on new stores
{2006 £203 mitlon) of which £138

PENSION FUMD DEFICIT
{NET OF TAX) REDUCED TO

£55 million

FROM

£431 million

26 .4 Sainsbury ple Annual Repart and Financial Statements 2007

milhon (2006 £59 million) relates to
acqusitions and ireehold purchases
and £368 million on extenstons and
refurbishments (2006 £233 million)
Capitai expendilure 1s forecasl Lo bein
the reqion of £750 million for the next
financial year This 1s an increase on
previous guidance reflecting increased
spend on the new store development
pipeline, extensions and a larger
refurbishment programme

Balance sheet

Total equity as at 24 March 2007 was
£4,349 milbon (2006 £3,965 million)
Geanng reduced year on year to 32 per
cent (2006 36 per cent)

Freehold property vatuation

The net back value of the Group's
freehold and long teasehold properties

1s £5 2 bilhon The Group estimates the
current market value to be around

65 per cent higher based on an
investment basis valuation carned out

by independent surveyors as at 24 March
2007 giving a total value of £8 6 bilhion
The Group has 292 freehold and long

Summary balance sheet

leasehold properties comprising 286
supermarkets, which account for

62 per cent of total supermarket space,
and six depaots

Pensions

The defined benefit schemes were subject
to a trienmial valuabion carried out by
Watson Wyatt, the schemes’ independent
actuaries at March 2006, on the projected
unit bases The results of this valuation are
expected to be approved by the schemes
trustees in June 2007 The retirement
benefit chligations as at 24 March 2007
have been calculated, where approprtate,
in hine with this draft valuation

As at 24 March 2007, the retirement
benefit obligations less the fair vatue

of plan assets were £103 million

(2006 £658 mithon) The net deficit after
tax was £55 milion {2006 £431 millicn)
The movement reflects the assumptions
changes set out in note 31, £240 milhon of
the £350 million one-off cash
contributions (E110 mullion was pard in

the prior financial year} and favourable
market conditions

2007 2000
at 24 March 2007 £m m
Nan current assets 7.661 8 927
Inventories 590 576
Trade and ather receivables 197 276
Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks - 1940
Cash and cash equivalents 1,128 1028 i
Debt (2,508) (2 443) |
Net debt {1,380) (1 415;
Trede anw uilid puyabn:; aind [RVITRYIVIN MY {2,715 G G310
Amounls due to Sainsbury s Bank custamers and other banks - (3308)
Net assets 4,349 3 965
Equity shareholders funds 4,349 3 886
Minarity interests - 79
Tota! equity 4,349 3965




Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk 15 an inherent part of domg business
The Group has a process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the risks faced
by the business as described in {he
Statement of corporaie governance

The Board has tdentified the following
factors as principal potential risks to the
successful operation of the business

Economic and market risks

The economic environment and competitor
pricing position can aftect the
performance of the Group's businesses in
terms of both sales and costs Household
disposable income 15 a driver of sales
growth Through development of our
product ranges and investment in price
and quahty, the Group works to ensure
that we deliver value for all our customers
As has been widely reported, external cost
pressures an o1l related costs and
business rates have impacted our business
afthough the Group has worked hard to
mitigate the impact of these cost
pressures on our customers and the
Group’s overall profitability through the
delivery of cost savings

Regulatory risk

The Group s operations are subject

to a broad spectrum of regulatory
reguirements particularly in relation to
planning competition and environmental
Issues employment, pensions and tax laws
andin terms of regulations over the
Group s products and services The Group
momtaors regulatory developments and
has a strong compliance regime Regular
reviews and audits are carried out in
stores and depots to ensure comphance
and training needs are regularly reviewed
and addressed as regured

Business continuity and acts of terrorism
A majar incident or terronist event could
impact on the Group s ability to trade The
Greup has plans to mantain busmess
continuity 1n the eveni of potentiaily
disruptive events, which are reqularly
updated and tested

IT systems and infrastructure

The Group 15 reliant on its IT infrastructure
inorder to trade A failure in these systems
could have a stgnificant impact on our
business The Group has controls in place
ta mamntain the integnity and efficiency of
Its systems which are regufarly updated
and tested

Colleague engagement and retention
The Group emptoys around 150,000
colleagues who are key to the success

of the business Good relations with
colleagues and investing in their traiming
and development are essential to Lhe
efficlency and sustainability of the Group's
operations The Group s employment
pohcies, remuneration and benefiis
packages are designed to be competitive
with other companies as well as
providing colleagues with fulfiling
career opportunities

Products

The quahty and safety of our products is
of the highesi importance and there 15 an
assoaated risk if they are below standard
The Group has stringent preduct controls
In place and regularly reviews health and
safely policies All supphiers are expected
to conform to the Group's code of conduct
for Socially Responsible Sourcing which
was launched in 1988 and covers fair
terms of trading, prolection of chuldren
watket nealln ano safety equa)
opportunities freedom of asscciation
freedom of employment, hours of work
and wages

Supply chain

Our stores are parl of a complex supply
cham and the Group works in partnership
with our suppliers to manage the risk of
any aelays or inierruptions in tnis supply,
which may affect trade

Pension risk

The Group operates a number of pension
schemes which includes two defined
benefit schemes These schemes are
subject to risks regarding the amount of
the habilities as a result of changes in life
expectancy, inflation and future salary
increases, nsks regarding the value of
investments and the returns derived from
suchinvestments The penston trustees,
in consultation with the Company, have
commenced changes to the scheme's
investment strategy to mitigate the
valatihty of habiities and to diversify
investment risk

Treasury risks

The central treasury function s
responsible for managing the Group's
liguid resources, funding requirements
and interest rate and currency
exposures and the associated risks

as sel out in note 29
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J Sainsbury plc: Board of Directors

Phip Hampton ©
Charrman

Appointed 19 July 2004 Phiip Hampton was
Group Finance Direcior of Lloyds TSB Group pic
from 2002-2004 Group Finance Chirector of BT
Group plc from 2000-2002 Group Finance
Director of the BG Group plc {formerly Briish
Gas plc) from 1995-2000 Group Hinance
Director of British Steel pic from 1990-1995
Executive Director of Lazards from 1981-1990
Non Executive Director of RMC Group pic
2002-2005 Currently he s a Non Executive
Director of Belgacom (the Belgian telecom
group) since 2004 Age 53

Val Gooding G
Nen-Executive Direclor

Appointed 11 January 2007 Currently Chied
Executive ol BUPA since August 1998 She
josned BUPA [rom British Arways in 1896 She
15 also a Non Executive Director of Slandarg
Charteredg Bank plc She is amember of the
Council of Warwick University and of the
Adwisory Board of the Warwick Business
5chool She s a Trusiee of the British Museum
ano a Non Exécutive Direclor of the Lawn
Tennis Association Age 56

Dr John McAdam *0
Sentor thdependent Director

Appointed i Seplember 2005 Currenlly Chiet
Execntive af 1tple having iminad [ Indayar ac
amanagament tra nee in 1974 where ne held
anumber ol semor positions 1N Buds Eve Watls
Quest and Unichema before the sale of Lhe
Specizlty Chem cal Businesses to IC1in 1997
He 15 alsao a member o the Unnersity of
Camgndge Chemistry Advisory Board
Formerly Non Execulive Director of

Severn Trent p'c 2000-2005 Age 59

Justin King ¥
Chief Executive

Appointed 29 March 2004 Chairman of the
Operating Board Formerly Director of Foad
Marks & Spencer From 1554-2001 held semor
positions at ASDA/Wal Martin Trading HR
and Retail Previously Managing Director

ol Haagen Dazs UK Early career with Mars
Contectionery and Pepsi International Age 45

Gary Hughes O
Non-Executive Director

Appomnted | January 2005 Chiel Executive
ol CMP Intormation - a division af United
Business Media pic Formerly Group Finance
Directer ol Emap pic Group Finance Direclor
ol SMG p ¢ Depuly Finance Direclor of Forle
pic and prior 1o this hetd 3 number of sentor
managemenl pesitions with Guinness plcin
the UK and in North America Age 45

Anna Ford G
Non Executive Director

Appointec 2 May 2006 Relired from the BBC
n Aprd 2006 after 30 vaars nf service She
has been a Frustee of the Royal Batanccal
Gardens in kew London 1s Chancellor of
Manchester University a Fellow of the Royat
Geographical Society a Trustee of Forum for
the Future an Homourary Bencher of Middle
Temple and s @n the Board of The Amazing
Group Age 63
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Darren Shapland
Chief Financial Officer

Appainted 1 August 2005 Deputy Chawrman of
Sansbury s Bank pic Formerly Group Finance
Oirector of Carpetnght plc 2002-2005 and
Finance Director of Superdrug Steres plc
2000-2002 Between 1988-2000 carnied out
anumber of positions at the Arcadia plc
(formerly Burton Group) including Joint
Managing Director Arcadia Home Shopping
Finance Birector of Arcadia brands Finance
Director Top Shop/Top Man {Burton Group)
and Director of Supply Chain Programme
(Burton Group) Age 40

Bob Stack ' Q
Non Execulive Director

Appointed 1 January 2005 Jowned Cadbury
Beverages in the USin19G0 and)oined the
Cadbury Schweppes pic Board in May 1996
as Group Human Resources Director In
March 2000 he was appointed Chief Human
Resources (Mficer and took on responsibiity
for cammunication and external altarrs in
acddition to HR Heis also a Visiting Professor
al Henley Management Coilege Age 56

Life President
Lord Sainsbury of Preston Candover KG

Key to Commitiee Members
Remuneration Commiage

& Audit Commitiee

£ Nemination Commitlea

¥ Corporate Respansibility Commitiee

Q% ¥ Denotes Chairman of Commuitee

Note Gary Hughes became Chairman ol the Audit
Comnuliee 00 13 ¢ luy 2000 tanumy usa hu 1 Juitee Suikdas




Mike Coupe

Trading Director appointed to the
Operating Board in October 2004
Jained Sainsbury s from Big Food Group
where he was a Board Direcior of Big
Food Group pic and Managing Directar
of Iceland Food Stores Previgusly
worked {or both ASDA and Tesco plc

Gwyn Burr

Customer Director joined the Operating
Boardin 2004 Director of Sainsbury s
Bank pfc Gwyn has over 20 years
tusiness experience including five

with Nestfe Rownlree and over 13 with
ASDA/Wal Mart At ASDA she held
various Board leve! positions across
Own Brand Marketing Customer
Service and Retan

Darren Shapland See page 28
Justin King See page 28

Tim Faflowfield

Company Secretary since 2001 Tim
joined from Exelple (formerly NFC plc)
ihe globat lagishics company where he
was Company Secretary and Head of
Legal Services (1994-2001) Prior to
this worked at Chifard Chance and s
aqualiiedsolicitor

Imelda Walsh

HR Director since Oclober 2001 and
appointed to the Operating Beard
whenit was lermedin May 2004
Belore thus was a member of the
Board of Sainsbury s Supermarkets
Lid frem March 2003 Oirector of
Sainsbury s Bank plc Prior to joining
Samnsbury s worked as the HR Dhreclor
for Barclays Retatl Frnanctal Services
Previgus roles within Lhe Barclays
Group included Group Employee Policy
and Planning Director HR Director
Corporate Banking and Group HR
Development Diracior Previously
worked for Coca Cola and

Schweppes Beverages

Ken McMethan

Retail Director appointed to the
QOperating Board in february 2005

Ken jeined Sainsbury s from Tesco plc
where he worked for 14 years He was
appointed Chuef Executive {or Tesco
Japan having previgusly been appointed
Chief Execulive of Europa Foods (Admin
Stores) fallowing its acquisition by
iesiu Befoie juniny Testu i wuineu
for Sears ple tor four years

Roger Burnley

Supply Chan Director appointed to
ihe Qperating Board 1n March 2006
Roger was previously Suppty Chamn
Director at Matalan He spent his early
career in retall management and buy:aig
al BEQ belore joining ASDA/Wa Mar,
where he neld & number of positions
befare becoming Supply Chain Director
n 2008

Pholoe laken al the new Madenhead stare From left to right Ken McMekan Rager Burnley

Mike Coupe Imelda Walsh Darren Shapland Justin King Tim Fallowlield ang Gwyn Burr
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Directors' report

The Directors present Ltheir repori and audited financiai statements for the
52 weeks to 24 March 2007

Principal activities
The Company s principal activities are grocery and related retailing

Business review

The Business review seis out a comprehensive review of the development
and performance of the business for the year ended 24 March 2007 and
15 5t out on pages 3 {o 27 of this report

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 7 35 pence
per share (2006 5 85 pence) making a total divdend for the year of 975
pence per share (2006 8 O pence) an increase of 219 per cent over the
previous year Subject to shareholders approving this recemmendation at the
Annual General Meeting ( AGM ) the dwvidead will be paid an 20 July 2007
to shareholders on the reqster at the ctose of business on 25 May 2007

Changes to the Board

As previously reported Anna Ford and Val Gooding joined the Board as
Nan Executive Directors on 2 May 2006 and 11 January 2007 respechively
Bridget Macaskill retired from the Board on 12 July 2006 fallowing the
AGM and Jamie Dundas left the Board gn 2 February 2007

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association Val Gooding who was
appainted 1o the Board since the last AGM wili retire and seek election at
this year s AGM Juslin King will also retire by rotation and seek re-election

Full blographical details of the current Direclors are set out on page 28

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held on Wednesday 1 July 2007 at The Queen Elizabeth 1l
Conference Cenire Broad Sanctuary Westrminster Londen SWIP 3EE at

1t Q0am The Charman s letter and the Notice of Meeting accompany this
repori, together with notes explaining the business to be transacted at
the meeting

At Lhe meehing resolutions will be proposed to declare a frnal dividend
lo recerve the Annual Report and Financial Statements and approve

Lhe Remuneration reporl {o elect Directors and Lo re appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as audiors Inadditien shareholders

will be asked to renew boih the general authority of the Directors io
I1ssue shares and the avthorily Lo 15sue $hares without applying the
statutory pre emption righls and to avthorise the Company Lo make
markel purchases of its own shares No such purchase has been made
during the last hnancial year Shareholders will also be asked {o adopt
new Arlicles of Association to allow the Company to take advantage ol
the new legislation on electromc communications with sharehaotders
Other resolutions propose the renewal of the authoniy to make pohtical
aonangns as dehineyd oy Tne Fonnica Faroes Elections ang Reterenaums
Acl 2000

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Details of the changes to the ardinary 1ssued share capual during the year
are shown an page 70

B shares

At the Extraordinary General Meel:ng held on 12 July 2004 shareholders
approved a Return of Camial Lo shareholders by way of a B Share Scheme
A total of 1943173 266 B shares were 1ssued on 19 July 2004 af which
27502 073 remain oulstanding

The final redemption date for B shares 15 18 July 2007

Major interests in shares

On 20 January 2007 the Compames Act 1985 provisions in respect

of substantial shareholdings were repealed and the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the Financial Services Authority came into force
As at 15 May 2007 the Company had been advised of the following
notifiable interests in its voling rights

Brandes Investment Partners L L C 7 65%

Credit Swsse Securities (Eurape) Limited 18 30%*
Judith Portrait (a trustee of various settlements

including chantable trusts and executor) 597%

Legal and General Group pic 3 48%

Lord Sainsbury of Turville 7 75%

Vidacos Nominees Limited which holds the

shares as a nommee for Razing Limited S07%

Includes an etonomic enposure ol 17 506 per ¢ant acquired by Delta (Two Limited Ilvough a Tatal

Return Swap
Going concern
The Directors confirm that they are satishied Lhat the Company has
sufficient resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future
Accordingly they conlinue o adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements

Directors' interests

The benehcial interesis of the Directors and their farmihies in the shares
ol the Company are shown below Cptions granted under the Company s
employee share plans are shown in the Remuneraticn report on pages 42
and 43

Ordinary shares!

25 March 24 Marth 15 May

2006 2007 2007

Justin King 231915 274047 274088
Darren Shapland 51 243 70241 70241
Anna Ford - 1 000 1,000
Val Goodino 1320 1320 1320
Philip Hampton 25 000 25 000 25 000
Gary Hughes 15 100 15 446 15 446
Jehn McAdam 1 000 1000 1000
Bob Stack 2 800 2 800 2 800

Ordinary shate ate penetcial holdings stich wkchice the Direclons personal hokdings and [hose of ther
spouses Al mnes thildren They also mclude the penelicwl siterests in shares whick are held m ryst unges
the Sanstur ¢ v Share Purchase Plan

A5t dite ol sppontment

HRIG i 1tw or it 700 Amenicon Bepository Retaints

IRCIdes SHaH ¢ 3f Chased unader the Sonshury ¢ Share Purchase Plan belween 24 March 2067 and

15 Moy 2007

The Eveculwe Directors are polent ! trenehiar es of the Company s empioyee Deneht rusts wiich ore used

Awm

w

. U v ww v oy B T T P N <

235 mibicn 3l ey 12006 23 8 mullon s hekd b lie Tiustess
The Company s Register of Directors interests conlains full details of
Directors tnterests shareholdings and oplians over ordinary shares of
lhe Company

Buring the vear no Director had any matenal interest in any conlract of
significance to the Group s business

Directors indemnities

The Drrectors are entitlied Lo be indemmiiied by the Company Lo Lhe extent
permitted by law and the Company s Articles of Association in respect of
all losses ansing out of or in connection with the execution of their powers
duties and responsibilities
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Directors’ report confinued

Market value of properties

The Directors beheve that the aggregate open market value of Group
properties exceeds the net book value as set out in the Business review
onpage 26

Colleagues, corporate responsibility and the environment

Sansbury’s has a strong recard in 1ts commitment to corporate
responsibiiity which s an everyday part of how Lthe Company does
business Details of the Company s prin¢ipal corporate responsibility
inttiatives and activities are set out on pages 20 to 21 The Company s
Carporate Responsibility Report which wili be pubhished in June 2007
(www) sainsburyco uk/crreport), provides a comprehensive statement on
corporate responsibiity and descnibes the Company s polcies and activities
inrelation to its ive corporate responsibility principles Best for Food and
Health, Sourcing with Integrity Respect for Our Environment Making

a Positive Diiferenge 10 Qur Commuanity and A Great Place to Work

The Company has well developed policies for fair and equal treatment of

alt colleagues, employment of disabled persons and colleague participation
During employment the Company seeks to work with each individual taking
into account their personal circumstances to enable them to reach and
maximise thewr polential

The Company also actively works with a number of orgamsations which
seek to promote Inclusion within the workplace 1hese incluge

Gold Card Members of the Employers Forum on Disability

Signatories to the two tick policy which guaraniees an interview to
any disabled apph¢ant meeting the minimum specification for the role
Working with Shaw Trust Remplcy and Mencap

The Company s quarterty intenm and annual results are presented Lo all
senior management and are communicated Lo all colleagues Colleagues
have always been encouraged to hold shares in the Company and gver
43 500 colleagues are shareholders directly or through the Commitment
Shares Plan Trust or the Sainsbury s Share Purchase Plan Trust
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Policy on payment of creditors

The pohcy of the Company and its principal operaling companies is to
agree {erms of payment prior to commencing trade with a suppher and
to abide by those terms on the bimely submission of satisfactory invoices
The Company 1s a holding company and therefore has no trade credsiors
Statements an the operating compames payment of suppliers are
contained in their financial statements

Donations

During the year cash and 1n kind donations to charitable organisations
and other community projects totalled £6 & milhon (2006 £5 6 million)
In addibion our Active Kids scheme donated E170 million worth of new
activity equipment to over 26 000 schools and the Company made
significant cantributions to other community related mitiatives Sainsbury s
colleagues cuslomers and suppliers raised £12 4 milhon {2006 E3 25
mithon} fer charties through events supported by the Company, including
Comtic and Sports Relief Home Start, which supports families in lecal
communities across the UK, and CLIC Sargent a charity caning far
children wtth cancer

The Company made no palitical donations

Post balance sheet events
There have been no sigmificant post balance sheet events except as
relerred toin note 21 to the financial statements (Deferred taxation)

Disclosure of information te auditors

Each of the Directors confirms that so far as he/she s aware there s no
relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware Each Director
has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order

to make humself/herself aware of any relevant audit infermation and to
establish that the auditors are aware of that information This confirmation
1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provesions of
Section 234Z A of the Companies Act 1985

By order of the Board

Tim Fallowfield
Company Secretary
15 May 2007




Statement of corporate governance

The following sections explain how the Company applies the principles
and supporting principles of the Combined Cede on Corparate Governance
(the Code )

The Board

The Board s chaired by Sir Phulig Hampton At 1S May 2007 the Board
consisted of two Execulive Direclors and five Non Executive Directors

Dr John McAdam Chiel Executive of ICI plc 15 the Semior Independent
Direclor Anna Ford was appointed to the Board as a Non Executive Director
on 2 May 2006 and Val Gooding on 11 January 2007 Bridget Macaskill left
the Board following the Annual General Meeting ( AGM }tn 2006 and
Jamie Dundas stepped down on 2 February 2007

Biographicat details of the Directors are set out on page 28

The Board held nine scheduled meetings during the year including
a two day straiegy conference, one of them at the TU Clothing Store
Support Centre and Disinbution Facihity at Coventry The Board

met an several other occasions outside of the formal schedule

The Non Executive irectors met during the year without the
Executive Directors being present

Division of responsibibities

There s a ctear division of responsibilities between the Charman and the
Chief Executive which 1s set out in writing and has been approved by the
Board Philip Hampton s responsible for leadership of the Board setting
ils agenda and morutoring its effectiveness He ensures effective
communicatien with shareholders and that the Board 1s aware of the
views of major shareholders He facihtates both the contribution of the
MNon Executive Directors and constructive relations between the Executive
and Mon Executive Direclors He ensures that the Chiel Executive develops
a strategy which s supported by the Board as a whole Justin King s
responsible for executing the strategy once agreed by the Board

He creates a framewaork of values orgamisation and objectives io ensure
the successiul delivery of key targets and allocates decision making and
responsibiities accordingly He takes a leading role with the Chairman

m the relatignship with all external agencies and in prometing Sainsbury

Independence/Non-Executive Directors

The Chairman satisfied the independence criteria of the Code on hus
appoiniment angd all the Non Executive Directors who have served duning
the year are considered Lo be iIndependent according ta the priniples

of lhe Code Bob Stack 1s a Director of Cadbury Schweppes ple which
supplies products to Sainsbury’s but neither the Board nor Cadbury
Schweppes considers the relatronship to be matenal in the context

of their overall businesses

The Non Executive Dirgctors bring wide and varied commercial expernience
to Board and Committee deliberations They are appomted for an initial
three year term subject to election by shareholders at the hirst AGM after
therr appeintment after which therr appointment may be extended for
a second term subject to mutual agreement and shareholder approval

The Board's role

Tre Board 1s focused on dehvening sustainable added value for
shareholders It considers strateqic 1ssues key projects and major
nes'ments and regulacly meniters perfermance agamst deli ey, of the
aoreed ey largeis It approves the corporate plan and the annual budget
and reviews performance againsi targets at every meeting These and
other key responsibilities are formally reserved powers of the Board

The Board considered a number of specific projects and inibatives
duning the year including the proposals made by the private equity
consoriium all of which were subject to a3 number of pre conditions
related Lo the consortium s proposed fmancing structure In addition
the Board considered and approved the new three year largets and
the restructunng of the Group s interest in Samsbury s Bank

It continues to momtor the progress of the investigation by the Competition
Commussion into grocery retathng in the UK and reviews the Company s
development leadership and succession planning programmes

The Board delegates certain responsibihties to its principal commiitees

The Corporate Responsibility ( CR ) Committee established during Lhe year
will advise Lhe Board on broad CR policy taking into account the Company s
CR objectives and the overall strategic plan Through the Audit Committee
the Directors ensure the integrity of finanoal information the effectiveness
of the financial tontrols and the internat control and risk management
systermns The Remuneration Commitiee sets the remuneration policy for
Executive Direclors and determines their individual remuneration
arrangements The Nominaiion Commitiee recommends the appomiment
of Board Directors and has responsibility for evaluating the balance of the
Board and fer succession planning at Board level Further details are set
out below

Attendance

During the year the Directers attended the fellowing number of scheduled
meetings of the Board and its Committees {the number of meetings held
whilst they were Directors 1s shown in brackets)

Aut  Nomination  Rersunerahion
Board Comemuttes Commulier Committee
Number of meetings
Anna Ford HN - 202} 4(4)
Val Gooding! 2(2) - 1 -
Phihip Hampton )] - 2(2) -
Gary Hughes 99 4(4) 2(2) -
Justin King A - - -
John McAdam S(39) 4{4) 212) -
Darren Shapland S(9) - - -
Bab Stack S(9) - 2(2) 4(4}
1 Appointed o the Board on W January 2007
Direclors who ledi the Board during the year
Bridget Macashill 3(3) - un i
Jamie Dundas 8(8) 33 2(2) 313)

Information and development

The quahty and supply of information provided to the Board 1s reviewed
as part of the Board evaluation exercise The Chairman 1s responsible for
ensuring that alt Dhreclors are properly briefed anissues arising at Beard
meetings and that they have full and Limely access 1o relevant intormation

There 1s an agreed procedure by which members of the Board may

take independent professional advice at the Company s expense 1A the
Tu therance uf then dulies Tre Company nas a programime [or meeling
Directors traimng and development requirements Newly appointed
Directors who do not have previous pubhe company experience al
Board tevel are provided with appropriate traiming on their rote and
responstbiblies New Directors particpate tn a comprehensive and taillored
induction programme including store and depot visits and meelings
wiltk mmemoers of Loe Operaling Buard setior management and vxlennd
advisors Subsequent traimng s avaitable on an ongoing basis 1o mest
parLrcular needs wilh the emphasis o governance and accounting
developmentis During the year the Company Secretary Tim Fallowfeld
has provided updatas to the Board on relevant governance maliers

naw leqistation and on Directors duties and obligations whilst the Audit
Committee reqularly considers new accounting developments through
presentations from management and the external auditors The Board
programime includes presentations from management whuch tegether
with site visits increases the Non Execulive Directors understanding

of the business and the seclor
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Statement of corporate gqovernance continued

All Directars have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secreiary He has responsibility {or ensuring that Board procedures are
followed and far governance matters The appointment and removal of
the Company Secretary is one of the matters reserved for the Board

Performance evaluation

In March 2006 the Board undertook an exlensive evaluation of its
performance and effectiveness with the assistance of Egon Zehnder
International the international search consultancy This confirmed that
the Board was acting effectively and identified a number of action paints
for further consideration The purpose of the internal evaluation exercise
conducied in March 2007 was to review the progress that had been

made during the year andidentify any new 1ssues Having agreed the

key objectives of this year s exercise with the Chairman the Company
Secretary met with each Direclor separately {o discuss {he Board s role
and structure process and relationships and any emerging 1ssues and then
presenied the findings to the Board identifying the key themes that were
working well and areas which could be improved or approached differently
The Board con¢luded that it was satisfied with the progress that had been
made during the year and that it was working effectively

The Semor Independent Director received comments on the Charrmans
performance and subsequently met with nim to prowvide feedback Lo him
The Chasrman separately reviewed the contribution of each of the Directors
with themn

Operating Board

Day lo day management of the Company is delegated to the Operating
Board which s chared by Justin King The Operating Board helds 10 formal
megetings a year Directors responsibiities are set out on page 29 1t has
formal terms of reference setting oul its key responsibilities Minutes are
copied Lo the Chairman and Non Executive Directors Operating Board
members reqularly attend and present at Board meetings as well as the
strategy conference

The Operating Board has delegated certain powers to the Trading

Board which s responsibie for ranging and sourcing product price

and promohans advertising and marketing to the Retai Board which
has 1espansibility for stares service and avasabihty and supply chain
operabons and to the Invesiment Board which 1s responsibie for
investment decisions The Trading Board 15 chaired by Mike Coupe Trading
Director the Retail Board s chaired by Ken McMeikan Retall Direcior and
the Investment Board by Darren Shapland Chuef Finangial Qfficer The
Corporate Responstbility Steenng Group was established this year it s
chaired by Justin King and ils membership comprises the ive Qperating
Beard Directors who represent each of the five CR principles {see below)

Board Committees

The Board has delegated certain responsibilitigs to the Nomination
Remunerahon S6rporatd Rosponsitiht, ang Audit Commitices
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Commuttee (5 chaired by Phiip Hamplon and comprises
each ol the Non Executive Dhrectors Justin King 15 not a member of the
Commutiee although he s mwied to attend meetings

The Commvtiee led tho recrutmert process for cach of 'he Beoad
appointments during the year which has resulted 1n Anna Ford and

Val Gooding baing appointed Search consuliants were insiructed by

the Commuitee on the searches The Committee considered the skills
knowledge background and experience required for each role and a

tob specification was prepared for each appointment The Caommuittee

alsa specified the time commitment expected of the roles Proines of a
shorthst of preferred candidates were prepared for the Committee and
the potential composition and mix of the candidates were considered from
a team perspeciive 1n order to ensure a complementary combination of
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compelencies and experience Prior to each appeiniment the Committee
constdered a full range of references and the Non Executive Directors
met the preferred candidate The Commuttee 1s currently undertaking

an extenstve search for a further Non Executive Director

The Commuttee s terms of reference are avwailable on the website
(www ) sainsbury co ukfgovernance) and set out the Committea s
responsibiities The Commitiee meels when necessary and in 2006/07
met formally on two occasions and receved furiher regular updates on
the recruriment process

Remuneration Committee

The Commiitee s chaired by Bob Stack who was appownted a Non Execulive
Director and Chairman of the Cemmittee on t January 2005

The Remunerahion report s set out an pages 37 to 43

Corporate Responsibiity Committee

As corporate respansibility has become an intrinsic part of the strategic
agenda the Board reviewed the CR governance structure during the year
and estabhished a new CR Committee Thisis chaired by Anna Ford and
Justin King and a Non Executive Director will be iis members it will meet
twice a year and will report to the Board after each meeting

Formal meetings are supported by CR strategic meetings hosted by
Anna Fard and Justin King Each meeting will be based around one of
our five CR principles and key external stakeholders will be invited to
attend The first meeting was held in February 2007 relating to Sourcing
with Integrity

Al cperalignal level Justin King 1s the everall CR champion and charrs the
CR Steening Group attended by the hive Operating Board Directers wha
champion each of our five CR principles

The Best for Food and Health Gwyn Burr
Sourcing with Integrity Mike Coupe
Respect for Qur Environment Darren Shapland
Making a Positive Difference to Our Community Ken McMeikan

A Greal Place to Work Imelda Walsh

& summary of the Company s corporate respansibility prionties ang
actreities are set on pages 20 to 21 This year s Corporate Responsibihty
Report will be published in June 2007

The Association of British Insurers recommends that the Board considers
matenal risks and control processes relating to corporate responsibilily
The Audit Commuttee s review of the system of internal controls and risk
management processes referred Lo below includes corporate responsibilly
and the Commiltee considers any majar corporate responsibility or brand
reputabion nsks dentihied by the process to the extenl any such exst

The induction programme tor new Board Directors includes a full review

of corporate responsibthty

Audit Commuttee

During the yea: Gary Hughes was appointed Chairman of the Audit
Commuttee with Jehn McAdam and Jamie Dundas (unhbil hus retirement

in February 20071 as its other members all of whom are independent
Non Execulive Directors Following Jamie Dundas relirement the
Commitie membrship has comprised only o omdipendent isn
Execubive Directors but Phehip Hampton who has exiensive linancial
eapenence attends all meetings of the Committee The Board s currently
recrusing a new Non Execubive Director who will alse join the Committee
and bring the membership to three The Board has determned that Gary
Hughes has recent and relevant hnancial expenence Philip Hampton
Justin King Darren Shapland Richard Chadwick the Head of Internal
Audif other semar members of the Finance Division and the external
auditors are invited to attend Committee meetings The Company
Secrelary acts as secretary to the Committee




Statement of corporate governance continued

During the year the Commuttea met on four occasions, the agendas being
organised around the Company s reporting cycle It momtored the integnity
of the financial statements and any formal announcements relating to

the Company s financial performance and reviewad any sigaificant financiaf
Jjudgemeants contained :n them The Committee has aiso reviewed

the effectiveness of Lthe Company s financial controls and the internat
control and nsk management systems and has monitored progress

to ensure that any reguired remedial action has been or 1s being taken

on any ientified weaknesses

The Commuttee reviewed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP's ( PwC ) overall
work plan and approved their remuneration and terms of engagement
and considered in detail the results of the audit PwC s performance and
independence and the effectiveness of the overall autht process

The Cammuttee recommended PwC s re appaintment as auditors to

the Board and this resolution will be put to shareholders at the AGM

The Commuttee has implemented the Company s policy which resiricts

the engagement of PwC in relation to non-audit services The policy (s
designed 1o ensure that the provision of such services does notl have an
impact on the external auditors independence and objectivity It tdentifies
cartan types of engagemeni that the external auditers shall not undertake
and others (such as tax planning and mergers and acquisitions advice)

that can oniy be undertaken with appropriate authonty from the
Committee Charrman or the Committee where non audit fees will exceed
pre set thresholds The Commitiee receives a report at each meeting on
the nen audit services being provided and the cumutative total of non audit
fees In the event thal cumutative non audit fees exceed the audit fee then
ail subsequent non audit expentditure must be approved by the Committee
Chairman The majority of the non audit work undertaken during 2006/07
relaled to Corporation Tax and VAT advice but work was alse carned out on
the performance conditions relating to the Company s long term incentive
ptans and the restructuning of the Group s tnterest in Sainsbury s Bank

see page 19 and note 7 Lo the financial statements for detaills The non audit
fees for the year were £0 5 million and the audsl fee for the year inrespect
of ihe Group Company and its subsidiaries was £09 mihon

The Commiliee has regularly reviewed the Internat Audit department s
resources budget work programme results and management s
implementation of 1ts recommendations and overseen a formal external
review of the department s effectivensess during the year The Head

cf Internal Audit has dirgect access to the Committee Chawrman and
Phuip Hampton Gary Hughes has held separate meetings with him and
PwC during the year The Committee requiarly met with PwC without
management being present and may meel Lhe Head of Internal Audit
separately if it deerns necessary

The Commuttee has reviewed the Company s whistleblowing procedures
whirh wera strengthener dunna the vear and confirmed that arrannements
are in place 1o enable colleagues and supphers to raise concerns about
possible tmproprieties on a conftdential basis

During the year the Cempany introduced a new fraud policy and
established a Senipus Fraud Commtiee which convenes in the event of
serious iInGOidents Lo oversee ¢ase management and ensure preventative
measures are taken The Audit Committee recerves an update at each
meeling on all matenal [rauds and the aclons taken

The Commitiee s iarms of relerence which are available on the website
(www ) samnsbury co ukfgovernance} set out the Committee s respansibihties

Internat control

The Board nas ¢verall responstbihity for the system of internal controls
including r1sk management and has delegaled certain of these
responsibiities to the Audit Commuitee The Audit Commitlee has
reviewed Lhe efiectiveness of the system olinternal controt and ensured

that any required remedial action has or 1s being taken on any identified
weaknesses The system of internal contrals s designed to manage rather
than eliminate the nisk of faslure to achieve the Company s business
cbjectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolule assurance
agamnst material misstatement or loss It includes all controls including
financial operational and comphance contrels and risk management
procedures

The processes used lo assess the effectiveness of the internal control
sysiems are ongoing enabhing a cumulative assessment to be made
and include Lhe following

discussion and approval by the Board of the Company s sirategic
direction plans and objectives and the risks to achieving them

review and approval by the Board of budgets and farecasts, including
both revenue and capital expenditure

regular operational and hinancial reviews of perfarmance against
budgets and forecasis by management and the Board

regular reviews by management of the risks to achieving objectives
and actions being taken to mitigate them

regular reviews By Lhe Board and Audit Comamuitee of identified
fraudutent activity and any whistleblowtng by colleagues or suppliers
and actions being taken to remedy any control weaknesses

reqular reviews by management and the Audit Commuttee of the scope
and results of internal audit work across the Company and of the
implementation of recommendations The scope of the work covers

all key activities of the Company and concentrates on higher risk areas,
reviews of the scope of the wark of the external auditors by the Audit
Commitlee and any sigmificant issues arising

reviews by the Audit Committee of accounting pehcies and levels of
delegaled authority and

consideration by the Board ol the major nsks facing the Group and by
the Audit Commutiee of the procedures to manage them These include
heallth and safety legal comphance htigation guahly assurance
tnsurance and secunty and reputational secial ethical and
anvionmental risks

There s an ongoing process foridentifying evalualing and managing

Lhe sigmiticant risks laced by the Company This process has been in place
throughout the year and un to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Financial Statements and accords with the Turnbull guidance (2005)
The eflectiveness of the process s reviewed annually By the Audit
Comruttee which then reports to the Board The process consists of

formalidentificabian by management of each division of the key
risks to achieving therr business objectives and the contrals i place
ta manage therm The likelihood and potential impact of each risk

15 evaluated and actions necessary to mitigate them are identified
The risks and peogress in nehinahing tham are requiarly reviewed

at twvisional leadership team meetings as part of thewr normal
business actevities

certification by management that Lhey are responsible for managing
the risks Lo their business objectives and thal the internal controls
are such that they provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that
the ricks in their areac al racpanatubiy are appropriately wdenbified,
evalualed and managed

reperiing and review by the Operating Beard of risk management
actvities and actions to improve thew effectiveness

assurance from speciahst functions and commuilees that legal and
regulatory heallth and salety social ethical and environmental

risks are appropnriately wdentived and managed and

mdependent assurance by Internal Audit as to the existence and
eflectiveness of the nsk management activities described

by management
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Statement of corporate governance continued

The system of internal controf and risk management 1s emnbedded into
the operations of the Company, and the actions taken te mitigate any
weaknesses are carefully momtored

Investor relations

The Cempany s com~utted to maintai»g goed communications srh
tnvestors Mormal sharehelder contact 15 the responsibiity of the Chief
Executive Chief Financial Officer and Head of Investor Relations

The Chairman Phiig Hampton 15 generally available Lo shareholders
and meets with institutional investors as required

There 1s a regular dialogue wilh inshitulional investars who along with
buyside and sellside analysts arenviled to presentations by the Company
immediately after the announcement of the Company s mterim and

full year results They are also invited to participate in conference calls
following the announcement of the Company s trading statemenis

The content of these presentations and conference calis are webcast and
are posted on the Company s website (www ) sainshury ¢o uk/investors) so
as to be avallable to all investors

To ensure that the Beard understand the views of the major sharehalders
Makinson Cowell provide investor refations consultancy services 1o the
Cempany and reported to the Board on the views of institutional investors
and sellside analysts Non Execulive Directors also receive regular market
reports and broker updates from the Company s Investor Relations department

Sharehglders have the opportunity to meel and guestion the Board at the
AGM which will be held on 11 July 2007 There will be a display of various
aspects of the Company s aclivities and Justin King will make a business
presentation The Semor Independent Director and Chairmen of the Aughit
Nomination Remuneration and CR Commitiees wili be avallable (0 answer
queshions A detalded explanation of each iiem of special business to be
considered at the AGM s included with the Notice of Maeting which wilt
be sent to sharehelders al least 20 warking days before the meeting
Allresolutions proposed at the AGM will be Laken on a poll vote This follows
vest practice guidelines and enables the Company to count all veles not
just those of sharehelders who attend the meeting

Infarmation on matters of parficular interest to investors 1s set out on
page 92 and an the Company s websile (www ) sansbury co uk/investors)

Compliance statement

Duning the year the Company has complied with the provisions of the Code
with the exception Lhal as explained above the Audil Commitiee currently
only has two Non Executive Directors as members mstead of three This will
be resolved once Lhe exisling search for a new Non Execulive Director 1s
successfully completed
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Remuneration report

Thus report 1s made by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Commttee The irst part of the report provides

detaus of remuneration policy The second part provides details of the
remuneration pensions and share interests of the Directors for the year
ended 24 March 2007 The Directors confirm that this report has been
drawn up 1n accordance with Schedule 7A of the Companies Act 1985

A resolution will be put o shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
( AGM ) on 11 July 2007 asking them to approve this report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuittee 1s chaired by Bob Stack Chie! Human
Resources Officer of Cadbury Schweppes pic The Commuttee comprises
Bob Stack Arnna Ford and Val Gooding all of whom are independent

Non Executive Directors Bridget Macaskill and Jamie Dundas were
members of the Commuttee until leaving the Board on 12 July 2006 and
2 February 2007 respectively The Comrnutiee met {our Limes in 2006/07

Tim Fallowheld Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Commiitee
Philip Hampton Justin King and Imelda Walsh Human Resources Director
are inwited to attend Committee meetings The Committee considers therr
views when reviewing the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
Operating Beard Directors They are not involved in discussions concerning
their own remuneration

The responsitiblies of the Committee include

tetermining and agreeing with the Board the bread remuneration
pelicy for the Chairman Chiel Executive, Chief Financial Qificer

and the Operating Board Direclors,

setting individual remuneration arrangemenis for the Chairman,

Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer

recommending and momtoring the level and structure of remuneration
for those members of senor management within the scope of the
Cammittee namely the Operating Board Directors the Company
Secretary and any other executive whose salary exceeds that of any
Operating Board Director and

approving the service agreements of each Execubive Director including
termination arrangements

The Commillee s terms of reference are available on the Company s
website (www | sainsbury co uk/governance)

The Commuttee I1s authonised by the Board to appoint external consullants
and advisersafal considers this benelicial Over the course of Lhe year
the Commitiee was advised by Deloitle & Touche ( Deloitie ) During
the year Deloitte also advised on unrelated tax matters and provided
organisational consulting services to the Company They attended three
of the Committee meetings during the year and recewved copes of all
papers submstted te the meetings Towers Pernin provided comparative
0ala which was consiaered by the Comnuiiee (N setung remunesanon
levels The Commitiee has also been advised by Linklaters whao also
provided legal advice to the Company whiist Total Shareholder Return

¢ TSR }calculations are provided by UBS, who provided broking and
banking services to the Company during the year

Remuneration policy

1t 1s the intention of the Commuttee that Executive and Operaling Board
Directors remuneration should be competifive bothin terms of base salary
and total remuneratien Laking inte account the indmvidual Direcior s rale
perfarmance and experience This approach s designed to promaote the
Company s short and long term success through secusng and retaining
high ¢calibre executive lalent

Basic salary s targeted around Lthe median of the market with an
oppertunity Lo earn above median levels of total reward tn return for
exceptional performance A significant proportion of the total
remuneration package s performance related ahgning management s and
shareholders interests Remuneration policies and praciices are ahgned
with the key corporate strategy targets and objechives and are designed {o
create long term value for shareholders

In 2006 fellowing an extensive consultation exercise with shareholders
and institutions, the Committee formulated a new incentive framework
(the Value Builder framework) lo support the business strateqies over
the medium to longer term This was consistent with best practice and
was approved by shareholders at the 2006 AGM

The Value Bullder framework 15 based upon a number of key principles
soasto

build on the sales led recovery plan announced in October 2004

by embedding key measures of inancial and capital efficiency,
support strong performance of the core business and debvery of
shareholder value by generating quality earnings growing profits and
generating cash for future investments and/or return to shareholders
provide a common focus for the top 1000 managers (frem Chief
Execulive to supermarket store managers) on critical business
measures

retain and motivate talent for the longer term and

provide competitive reward opporturities for delivering

exceptional perfarmance

The Value Bwider ramework remains a key part of the Company s total
remuneration package and consists of two efements a deferred annual
bonus plan with a performance related share match and a long term
incentive plan These plans are described in detail below

Far 2007 the Committee s looking at ways of operating the eaisting
remuneration framework inline with {he following key principles

provide sufficient incenlives to retain and melivate the management
team duning a period of change for the Company

tully utihse the existing best prachice incentive framework and buld on
1ts success and

reward performance on a fair and equitable basis

Set out In the refevant sections below 1s an gverwiew of how the Committee
intends to ahgn the remuneration framework with these key principles over
the next financial year

Components of remuneration
The main remuneratron components [or the Chuel Executive Chief Financiat
Oificer and Operating Board Directors are set oul below

1y Basic sarary

Basic salary for each Executive Director 1s determined by the

Commuttee taking accounl of the Director s performance expernience and
responsibilibies The Committee also reviews Operating Board Direclors
salaries taking similar factors into account The Commuttee considers salary
levels in comparable companes by referring to the pay practices across

the Unrelaid seclon in cortuparies wiliy an annuar saies 1evenue uvel

£5 belion and also in companies with 8 market capitalisation of between
£3-C10 billion This approach ensuses that the best available benchmark for
the Director s specific positton 1s obtained The Committee also has regard
to economic factors remuneration trends and level of salary increases
thraughoul {the Company when determining Direciors salaries
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With effect from 25 March 2007 Justin Kang s base salary has been
increased irom £725,000 to £850,000 per annum Since his appointment
in March 2004, the Chief Executive has received pay increases in line

wilh colleagues (37 per cent in 2005 and 3 6 per ceni in 2006} However
arecent salary review showed that his base pay had fallen significantly
betind market median levels The Remuneration Commitlee strongly
believes that it 1s in the inierests of shareholders to re align his base salary
with market competitive levels Over a period of three years since his
appaintment this will represent an increase of approximately 8 0 per cent
per annum Similarly the base salary {or Darren Shapland was increased
from £450 000 to £500 000 per annum reflecting a move to bring ks
base pay in hne with market competitive levels in the sector

For 2007/08 the base rates of our non management store colleagues will
increase by an average o} 5 & per cent which will be paid in two instalments
during the year

u} Incentive arrangements

In addition to basic salary the Cormpany currently operates incentive
arrangements that comprise an annual bonus plan and long-term incentive
plans The Committee believes that ncentive opporiunities previded under
these plans reflect an appropriate balance between personal and Group
performance As such they align the rewards of Directors with the
Company s immed:ate business priorties and the tonger term interests

of shareholders

The balance between the fixed (basic salary and pension) and variable
(annual bonus and long term incentive plan) elemenis of remuneration
changes with performance and the variable proportion of total
remunerateon increases significantly for increased levels of performance

For median performance with the introduction of the new deferred annual
bonus plan and long term incentive plan it 1s anticipated that between

50 and 60 per cent of tolal remuneraltion for Executive Directors will be
performance related

Incentive arrangements for Executive Directors and Operating Board
Direclors for the 2006/07 financial year consisted of the Deferred Annual
Benus Plan and the new Long Term tncentive Plan Awards earnad under
each of the incentive plans are non pensionable The following section
describes those plans in detall tegether with the J Sainsbury plc Share
Plan 2005 (known as the Making Sainsbury s Great Again Plan ) which
15 now closed and no further grants will be made under it

Annual Benus Plan

All bonus plans across the Company are aligned under a set of shared
commaon principles The 2006/07 Board and management plans retained
the same key targets based on profit sates and product avarlability plus
an element for persanal performance The Executive Direclors Operating
Board Directars and all colleagues shared annual targets focused on sales
and availability Availability 1s measured across all stores on a regular
basis by an independent third pariy conducting random and unannounced
store visits

The Commttee reviewed the Directors personal pesformance and
achievement against the business related targets ai the year end
A gayment will be made inrespecl of Lhe saies prolid avaiiainily
and personal targets the first {wo targets were achieved in full

The 2006/07 bonus plan for store colleagues was based on the achievement
of avaitability and customer service targets measured in therr indvidual
stores and a corporate sales {arget As aresull of store and corporale
performancen 2006/07 around 118 000 colleagues will receve a banus
payment in respect of the 2006/07 finanoial year totalting around

£56 0 milon
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For the 2007/08 year the maximum annual bonus opportunity will remain
at 150 per cent of salary for the Chief Executive and 100 per cent ior the
Chief Finanaiat Qfficer and Cperating Board Directors The Plan will retain
the same elements as the 2006/07 Plan given that the key measures of
profil sales and availability remain vital to the continued delivery of the
Company s plans

Deferred Annual Bonus Plan 2006

Al last year s AGM shareholders approved the Deferred Annual Bonus Plan
2006, which applies to the Exetulive Directors Operaling Board Directors
and Departmental Directors comprising around 45 particepants in tatal
The first deferral will take place in June 2007 in respact of the 2006/07
benus awards

The Commitlee behieves that there should be a strong ink between
short lerm and long term performance bolh in terms of business {argets
and associated rewards The Plan introduced a compulsory deferral of part
of each participant s earned bonus inio Company shares for a three year
penad Subject to the Company s TSR performance against an industry
comparater group, there will be an epportunity for those shares to be
matched by up to two times, dependent upon the extent Llg which the
TSR performance measure has been met The Plan s consistent with the
Company s remuneration policy 1s designed to support the achievement
of both shart term and long term performance targets introduces a
further retention element and helps to promate share ownership among
senior management

Under the Plan a percenlage of parlicipants earned gross annual bonuses
ts deferred into the Company s shares for a period of three years The
compulsory deferral far the Chief Executive 5 25 per cent of Ins gross
bonus with 2C per cent compulsory deferral for the Chiel Finanaal Oflicer
and Operating Board Directors and 10 per cent for Departmental Directors
n addibion parhicipants may elect 1o defer afuriher progortion of ther
gross annual bonus provided 1 does not exceed their compulsory deferral
tevel In respect of the 2006/07 bonus award Justin King decided to
defer the maximum level of 25 per cent of his bonus on a voluntary basis
Barren Shapland deferred 20 per cent of his bonus the maximum allowed
on avoluntary basis

To create a greater akkgnment between the Company s and sharehelders
interests the Plan measures the Company s TSR performance over a three
year period agamnsl a bespoke UK and European relal comparator group
compnising Tesco Maorrisons Albhance Boots DSG international Kinghisher
Home Retaill Group Marks & Spencer, Next Ahold Carrefour Casing
Delhaze and Metro

Up to lwo malched shares may be awarded for each share defesred
depending on the extent to which the TSR measure 1s achieved No shares
are awarded for below mecian performance and the full match will only
apply wnere tne Company acnieves rst place wilnin tNe comparaior gioup
Al median position the maich will be O 5 shares for each deferred bonus
share and the share match will be pro rated at every posinon between
median and lirst place

Ta the extent that the performance condition is met at the end of the
three vear performance genod the matched shares will be added Lo the
deferred bonus shares The deferred bonus shares and half of the malched
shares can be accessed immediately white the remarnder * 1l be held over
for a further year Dividends or ther equivalents wilt accrue on shares

that vest

For awards in 2007 the Remuneration Committee has determined that in
arder 10 measure performance on a {air and equitabte basts the opening
TSR averaging period will be extended beyond the period of speculation
and exceptignal share price volatihty following the CVC
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consortium s conditignal approach The Commitlee decided it would be
more appropriate o add six months to the three month averag:ng period
immediately preceding the start of the 200708 financial year in order lo
smooth the distortion of the share price in the offer periad Qur standard
averaging period of three months will apply going forward assumng that
no exceptional conditions apply at that hime

Long-Term incentive Plan 2006

The tep 1,000 managers i the Company particspate in thes Plan from
the Chief Execulive to supermarket store managers and share common
performance measures

Under the Plan a core award of shares in the Campany 15 granted to

all participants calculated as a percentage of thew salaries and scaled
according to grade In 2006/07 shares to the value of 45 per cent of salary
were granted Lo Justin King with Darren Shapland and the Operating
Board Directors receving grants equivalent to 35 per cent of their salaries
As set out below dependent upon performance core awards can grow by
up to lour times Mo awards vesl for performance below the threshold
levels For 2007 the Remuneration Committee has determined that n hght
of the exceplional crcumstances surrounding the Company in this year
following the conditional approach by the CVC consortium a ¢ore award

ol 62 5 per cent of satary wiil be made to Justin King and core awards

of S0 per cent of salary will be made to Darren $haptand and members

of the Operating Board

This s above the normal award levels that will ordinarily be made under
the Ptan but the Commitiee believes 1his will strongly align the interests
of management with shareholders and retain talent fallowing a period of
unusual activity for Sainsbury s

Awards vest based on the periormance of two stretching co dependent
performance conditians Return on Capital Employed ( ROCE ) and growthin
cash flow per share which will be measured over the three year performance
pernod There s no retesting

These measures are designed ta build on the sales led recovery plan and
focus on creating furlher sharehotder value ROCE measures the efhiciency
with which new cashisinvested and through which existing capital
delivers proht driving both cost savings and operational efficiencies
Cash {low per share captures the Company s ability Lo generate cash for
fulure investment or return to shareholders tnaddition the measures
complement the sales earmngs and availabity targets sel under the
annual banus plan and the TSR targetis attached to the bonus deferral
The Plan measures are key indicators of business success and therefore
create afurther direct hnk between the interests of management

and sharehalders

The ROCE and cash flow per share targels are chaltenging For the 2006/07
Plan maximum vestina reauires ROCE of at Ieast 14 per cent and annual
campound growlh in ¢ash flow per share of 18 per cent or more Following
areview by the Committee the same targets will apply for the 2007/08
grant No awards wili vest unless threshold tevels of ROCE and growth

in cash llow per share are achweved The performance measures wilt be
reviewed by the Committee each year before a new grant 1s made to
ensure thal thev remain relevant and stretching

ROCE and cash flo  per share measures are calculated based on
sharehotders proporiton of underlying operating proht for the business
The capital employed {igure includes the net pension schemes defict after
deferred {axabion bul excludes the one off impact of capital spend in the
year the calculairon s made A normalised working capital figure is used in
the calculation of cash flow and exciudes the impact of cash contributions
to the pension schemeas For awards made in 2006/07 the base ROCE

and cash flow per share were 6 5 per cent and 38 3 pence respectively

For the 2007/08 awards the base measures for ROCE and cash flow per
share will be 8 6 per cent and 44 3 pence per share respectively

Vesting 15 calculated by applying a performance mullipher to the core
award on a shding scale up to four times The matrix 1s set out on page 86
alls bet eenit.oponis

= e £
b

Siraghi hnt esing W appl, o pefiormance !

Perfermance will be measured at the end of the three year performance
penod If the required level of performance has been reached 50 per

cenl of the award will be released Subject te participants remarming in
employment for a further year the balance wiil be released an the fourth
anniversary of the date of grant The Commattee has discrebion Lo make
adjustments te the calculation of the performance measures (for instance
for matenal acquisitions and disposals) to ensure it remains a true and fair
reflechion of performance Dividends will accrue on the shares that vest in
the formof acditional shares

4 Samsbury pic Share Plan 2005

The Business review in Oclober 2004 concluded that a major sales-led

recovery in prohitability was needed Accordingly followtng extensive

investor consultation the J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 2005 tknown as

the Making Sainsbury s Great Again Plan ) was designed to reward

strong growlh in sales and profitability 1t 1s a one off self funded incentive '
arrangement and was closed to new entrants on 25 March 2006

Quer 1000 colleagues received conditional core awards under this Plan '
from the Chie! Executive through to supermarket store managers

focused onadentical targets The levels of core award were scaled

according to semorily the maximum being 100 per cent of salary for the

Chief Executive fn addition all Executive Direclors and Operating Board

Directors committed to making a persenal investrnent of 50 per cent of

salary in Lhe Plan - accordingily Justin King and Darren Shapland acquired

N8 754 shares and 70 224 shares respeclively

Performance 1s measured over a four year period from the hinancial year
ended 26 March 2005 unti! the year ending March 2009 Awards will vest
if two stretching and co dependent performance conditions are achieved
growth in sales and earmings per share { EPS )

The maximum award avallable under the Flan is targeled towards

sales growth ol £2 5 billion (using a base figure of £13 588 milion} and
compound annual growth in EPS of at least 21 per cent over a four year
period There s an opportumty tor partial vesting of up te half the award

If acceleraled performance targets have been met at the end of year three
({he year ending March 2008} No awards wiil vest unless threshold levels
of growth in both sates and EPS are achieved

The EPS base year and largets were criginally set under the Plan in
accordance with UK GAAP However foltowing the introduchion of

IFRS the Committee concluded that in order to ensure that calculabions
were measured cansistently and transparently and by reference to audited
frgures the UK GAAP methodolagy shauld be replaced by IFRS After
considering vanous possible ways of restating the EPS base and target
fequres the Cammmites agreed thal the base year EPS should e updated
toreflect IFRS As aresult EPS s now measured with reference to underlying
basic EPS This reduced EPS for the base vear from 8 6 pence per share

to 8 3 pence per share The 3rd and 4th year largets will alse be reduced
by the same amount of 0 3 pence per share ta maintain them at the

same levels

Vesling 1s calculatied by applying a periormance mullipher to the core
award and personal investmenl s 1$ on a shding scate from one times
to hive times and s plotted in a matrix farmat as set out on page BS
Dividends will accrue on any shares that vest and wil be released to
particspantsan the form of additional shares at the point of vesting
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In order lo receive awards under the Plan participants agreed to surrender
ophtions granted to them under the Company $§ Execujive Share Option Plan
In 2002 2003 and 2004 Justin Kang susrendered a total of 1007 607 share
options granted to him at exercise prices of 261 50 pence and 274 75 pence

The Commuittee 15 mindful of the requirement 1o retain and Wacenis 1S€ oui
key leaders beyond the vesting dates tn May 2008 and May 2009 and will
continue Lo monitor the effectiveness of the current incentive framework
to this end

my Other share plans

In order to encourage wider employee share ownership the Company
provides two all employee share plans for colleagues, namely the Savings
Refated Share Option S¢heme ( SAYE ) and the All Employee Share
Cwnershup Plan Directors may participate in these plans in the same
way as alf other colleagues and Justn King s currently partrcipating in
both plans Darren Shapland participates in the SAYE plan As these

are all employee plans there are nc performance conditions

The 2001 (live year) SAYE pkan reached matuniy on i March 2007 Over
3500 colleagues could use their savings and tax free bonus {0 buy
Sainsbury s shares at the 302 0 pence option price The 2003 (three year)
SAYE plan matured at the same time and a further 4700 colleagues could
use their savings and tax-free bonus 1o buy Sainsbury s shares at the 2410
pence option price Nearly 7000 of those colleagues with maturing Plans
have so far exercised their options Using the market price on the date of
the firsl exercise the value of all the shares subject te the maturity was in
excess of £24 3 million

We currently have over 23 610 colleagues participaling in the SAYE plan
wilh over 48 000 individual savings contracis

v} Pensions

The Company s Defined Benefit Pension Plan was closed on 31 Janvary
2002 and neither Justin King nor Darren Shapland participate inat Justin
King no longer participates in any Company pensign plan and receives a
cash supplement (n respecl of his taxable pensionable earnings

Darren Shapland 1s a member of the Execulive Stakeholder Pension Plan a
delined contribution arrangement which 1s open o all semor management
He contributes five per cent of his salary lo the level of the earnings cap
(2006 E£108 600) whitst the Company conlrnibution 1s 12 5 per cent of
salary up to the cap To the exiem that his basic salary exceeds the earming
cap the Company pays him a cash supplemenl in excess of the cap

During the year the Committee constdered exlernal benchmark data

ang guidance from Deloitte and concluded that the current pensiens
supplements were nal set at market compehiive rates Accordingly with
eflect from the start of 200708 the salary supplement i respect of
Justin King was increased to 30 per cent of his full penstonable earmngs
and inrespect of Darren Shapland and the participating Gperating Board
Directors to 25 per cent of their over ¢ap nensionable earnings

v) Benefits
Other benefits for Birectors may include the provision ol campany car
benefits and free private medical cover
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Shareholding guidehnes

To create greater alignment with the interests of shareholders and to

be consistent with one of the objectives of the incentive framework the
Committee has proposed that all Executive Directors and Operating Board
Directors should build up a shareholding in the Company over a five-year
period starting from 2006/07 that 15 equal to their annual basic salary

and maintain it thereafter At the year end Justin King held 274 047 shares
in total and Darren Shapland held 70 241 shares in addition to their share
scheme grants At this date this represented 208 per cent and 86 per cent
of salary respectively

Performance qraph

The graph below shows the TSR perfiormance of an invesiment of £100 in

J Sansbury plc shares over the last five years campared with an equivalent
investment in the FTSE 100 Index This has been selected to provide an
established and broad based index
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Service contracts

Justin King has a service contract which can be terminated by either party
by giving 12 menths wrnitten notice If his service ¢ontract 1s terminated
without cause the Company can request that he works his notice period or
takes a penod of garden leave or can pay an amaunt in liew of notice equal
io one himes basic satary for the nolice pernod plus 75 per cent of basic
salary in heu of all other benefits including pension and bonus In adddion
1f he s disrmissed within six months of a change of control the above sum
will become payable The contract contains restirictive covenants which
continue for 12 months after termination

i Darren Shapland s service contract 15 terminated without cause the
maximum payment he would receive would be egual to one Limes basic
salary for his 12 month nolice penod plus SO per cent of basic salary

in heu of all other benefits He 15 required to mutigate his losses and wouls
receive phased payments which would be reduted or terminated if he
secered alternative employment during the notice period His contract
does not contain any speciiic provisions refating to change of control

The contract alse contains restrictive convenanls which condinue for

12 months after termination

The Executive Birectors service coniracts became effective onthe
follc ing dates

Con rac vate

29 March 2004
1 August 2005

Justin King
Darren Shapland
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Chairman

The Chairman does not have a service contract His fetter of appointment
became effective on 19 July 2004 He was appointed {for an mihial term

of three years renewable on 2 12 month rolling basis thereafter by mutual
consent His appeintment may be terminated at any time upon six manths
writien notice from either parly He devotes such {ime as is necessary

to periorm his duties The Chairman s fees will not be increased in 2007/08
and have remained unchanged since his appointment in 2004

The Chatrman does not participate in any performance reiated
incentlive plans

Non-Executive Directors

Non Executive Directors do not have service contracts They are
appoinied {or ananitial three year period which may be extended for
a further term by mutual consent Their imitial appointments and any
subseguent re-appointments are subject to electicn or re election by
sharehalders Their appointments may be terminated on three months
notice from either side

Non Executive Directors are pard a basic fee in cash with additional fees
being payable {o the Semor Independent Dizectar and to the Chairmen

of the Audit Remuneration and CR Commuttees The fees are reviewed
annually by a sub commuittee of the Board consisting of the Chairman ang
one ar more Executive Directors which takes into account market rates and
the specific responsibilities and me commitments of the role within
Sainsbury s Mon-Executive Directors basic fees will increase by £5 000 for
2007/08 to keep them in ine with comparable markel rates Mon Execulive
Directors do not participate in any perfermance related plans

The Non Executive Directors letters of appointment became effective on
the following dates

Appaintmen gate

Anna Ford 2 May 2006
Val Gooding 11 January 2007
Gary Hughes 1 January 2005
John McAdam 1 September 2005
Bob Stack 1 January 2005
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The following section prowides details of the remuneration pension and share interesis of the Directors for the year ended 24 March 2007 and has
been audited

1) Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the Diractors for the year was as follows

pavrrc::rll Pensian Totar fotar
Satary/fees Bonus &n joning supplement” Benelits® 2007 2006
Nole £000 £000 £000 £000 EGOO £000 £000
Justin King 110 725 960 - 181 55 1,921 1,471
Darren Shapland 433 405 - 65 16 919 619
Phihp Hampten a9s - - - 1 396 398
Anna Ford 2 43 - - - - 43 -
Val Gaoding 3 10 - - - - 10 -
Gary Hughes 54 - - - - 54 45
John McAdam 55 - - - - 55 31
Bob Stack 55 - - - - 55 55
Directors who have left the
Board duning the year
Jamie Dundas 4 40 - - - - 40 55
Bridget Macashli 5 14 - - - - 14 45
Directors who left the Board before
the start of the financial year including
compensatign for loss of office - - - - - - 173
Total 2007 1,824 1,365 - 246 72 3,507
Total 2006 1 755 770 120 197 50 2 892

1 Highest paud Diregtor

2 Apponted to the Board on ¢ May 2006

3 Apponted to the Board on i Januaiy 20G7

4 Lelttne Boaraon ¢ February 2007

5 Lelt the Board on 12 July 2006

6 Iniudes performance bonuses sarned 41 The perid under review but nol pasd in the tnancwt vear ended 24 Karch 2007

T st Wing 15 N0t o member of the CoMpany pension sKhemes and recesed 25 per Cent of ts Dasid Salary s 3 cash pension supplement IN YWIAoN 1D IR supPlernent £4 000 o nterest nas teen earned on a notonal lud
provigiag i the prioe vear from his prévious memberstup of the [uecutive Stakehotder Pension Pi1n D atren Shapland is a member of e Caegutive Stakeholer Pension Plan He received a cash pensson supplement enu al 10 20
per tent of the 1Mount by whieh 1as salary «ceedait the = wmings cap 12006 £108 600

8 Benetils Inchude company car benelils and medical cover

9 Tnetotals lor 2006 n the case of Jushin Kangy ana 2006 ana 2007 un the case of Daisen Shapland) 00 1ot InClutte aaduchans Made trom bask salary 101 Sawng Money and Reducng Tas SMARTT) pensons

10 Ser Pertormonge SN e Plim helgw Inr details of 1he ves ma ol ¢+ h equivatent Pertarmince Share Phn 1 s d

m Pensions
Darren Shapland 15 & member of the Company s Executive Stakeholder Pension Plan Contributions to the Stakeholder Plan by Lhe Company 1in 2006/07
were £i3 575 (2006 £15088 mnctuding a contnbution of £i3 200 made w respect of Justin King tefore he left the Plam)

m} Long-term incentive plans

Performance Share Plan
Under the Plan shares conditionally allocaled to participants are released to themnthe form of options H the performance condition s met at the end of
thetheee Jearperfermaece pemod The ~umber of shares cend t ena?, 2Vceoated ~ 3004 2nc st s bele Moalcoatoms oo ~ade from 2008706 o

the Plan 1s now closed

Number Number ol

ol shares Nummper ot M marset snafes

condibionalhy shares price en dile Mid market condiienally
allecated Lansed conglignay of conu wnal - Oplions granted BrE On Gy o' ocated End ¢t
asat 25 March guring axprataq allocatwon  during the vear  apton geantaa  as at 24 March peclormance
2006 the year  guring the year pence under the Plan pence 2007 penod

Justin King

2005 04 184 762 - - 2740 - - 184 762 24 03 07

The above Ligures Lor *he 2004 award show the marenum awarg that woukd be released proveded hat the Cermparn Khieves frst posiion ¢ IF [he comparete? groun inamely Ahok] Ltwnde Boots. Cwiefonr Casine

DSG nternationa, GUS. kingisher Lohtaw Marks & Spenter LU Frsons, el arkt Tescol, al The enu of the Ihrée year performange period Shares 1o the vatue of 30 oo cent ol salary wi De 1eteased At mecian pertormar e
Awaras wil be pro fateg at every posihon between the median ang (Wt positon m (Ne comparaton of 0ud The Company § felabve perlormand# /e deterivned by taterende 10 TSR beang the e reate M INe vihee O 4 thaiy
incluging remyesled divicends Over the Hiree=year penod This Measure was Chosen Lo Incentivise par o snts [or maymisang sheholder return over The megum fenn Awardy wilf vest in My 2007

On pounung the Conmpany Justin Ring rec2ived o Cash equivalent award whrch was (rD 13140 1l o o Bus 5 Over The pertor Mie fer il o il fe R tegerred 8 COMRnl daard unier the Pl nunce Shore Flas 3 ints mude
n 2003 As prewously disclosed based on perlormance and pso rated bime he recemed a €ash award M respect o 65789 shares at the et of May 200611217038
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J Sainsbury ple Share Plan 2005
The table beloew shows the conditionat awards granted under this Plan which would be released if the Company achieves maximurm vesting

Share price at
Date of Cose share Personal Manmum date of awara First exerose Last exeriise
grant award investment share award' pence date? date
Justin King 24 03 05 237,508 118,754 1 662,556 2630 1405 08 230310
Darren Shaptand 01 08 05 102 558 70 224 793 686 280 5 140508 230310

1 The maximum share award eacludes [he personal avesiment shares acquired by Justn King and Darren Shaplang whech must be held for the duralon of the Plan 1F assumes Tull vestuy

2 Depending onperlofmance parbal vesting may occur (0Alowing the Prelmnary Resulls annaund ement w 2008

3 Tne peftormance condit ians atla¢hing to the award are Set out on page BS

A The JSainsbucy pk Share Plan 2005 5 a ol cost option plan

Long-Term Incentive Plan 2006

The tahle below shows the condibional awards granted under this Plan which would be released if the Company achigves maximum vesting

Share price at

Date of Maximum da‘e of award First exercise Last exerCise

qgrant share awargt pence date? date

Justin King 1307 06 390,424 3340 150509 170711
Darren Shapland 1307 06 188 480 3340 150509 i70711

1 The mangoum share award assumes lufl vesing

2 Deperdting on pertofmance partial veslng muay occur folkawing the Prelminary Reselts announcement in 2009

3 The performance contitions attaching 1o 1he 1ward are set out on pige 86

4 The Long Term Incentive Plan 2006 15 o nil cost ophian plan

Restricted Share Plans 2004 and 2005

As previously disclosed Justin King and Carren Shapland gave up valuable entitlements arising from the Marks & Spencer Executive Incentive plans
and the Carpetnght Execulive incentive plans respeciivelty when they jomed the Company The Commitiee agreed {o compensate them for these lost
entitlernents and awards comprising cash paymants and restricted shares were made As the awards compensate them for lost entitlements there are
no perlermance conditions

Darren Shaptand s cutstanding award will be released on the vesting date tf he remarns an employee of the Company on the relevant date and will vest
belore the release date if nis service contractis terminated by the Company other than for cause in the event of death or on a change of control unless
the award is replaced by the acquinng company If he leaves employment for any other reason the award will be lor{eited

~oional
gain gn
release at
Number of Number ¢l Number of 3190 pence
restricted Cate ot Date ol shares shires per share Yesting
sharas awird refese released 1psi o £000 date
Justin King 70 746 270304 3105086 70,746 - 2257 -
dustin keg ietsnee 21740 shales atsmy oul 1 the J00G 1elease 1he e Inder was used to fund the ncome tar and nabonal nsurange charge 1elalng to the release
Nobanal
gain on
release at
Number ol Number ot Number of 352 0 penee
Festriled Dyte ol Date ol shAares shues prer share Vesliy
sharas a arg release releaszo laparg 000 cae
Darren Shapland 32200 9010805 01 08 06 32 200 - 1133 -
32200 Q10805 ~ - - - Q10807
Darren Smpkand rehned 18 938 shres s i ouf @F 108 2006 18lE 158 Ihe remamder was used ro tund the ingome 13 and nanen il insurante chirae relsting to the release
1v) S5avings Related Share Options ( ‘SAYE") over ordinary shares
At the end of the vear the Ontians Directors SAYE share ontiens were as follows
Number ot Oplsons Wengh'eq Date
average Range ot
Granted Ervercised Lapsed f10TLI5e ERETLISE
25 Mircn during during the thuning 24 March orice prees From wtuch
2006 the year year the year 2007 pence pence exerCisble Qt expury
Justin King 6 969 - - - 6969 2310 2310 010311 310811
Darran Shapland - 2881 - - 2 881 3280 3289 0103 )0 310810

The 5o dugs Rires o St e COIRS Su it & g €1ty mrte didie OFbul 3¢t etk s BBs o et [0Hmunte conditians as per Intaed Revenue Regulslons.

in the period from 25 March 2006 to 24 March 2007 the hughest mid market price of the Company s share was 5570 pence and the lowest mid market
price was 311 0 pence and at 24 March 2007 was 549 5 pence

%vez by the Board on 15 May 2007

Bob Stack
Chairman of the Remunerahion Committee
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report the
Remuneration report and the financ:al statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors Lo prepare financial statements

for each {inancial year Under thatla (he Cwreclors ha ¢ prepared

the Company and the Group finanoial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
Eurepean Union The financial statements are required by law Lo qive
atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In preparing those financial statemenis the Directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state that the ftnancial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by
the European Union

prepare the financial statements on the geing concern hasis unless
itisinappropriate to presume that the Cempany and the Greoup will
continue in business

The Direclars confirm that they have comphed with the above
requirements in preparing the financiat statements
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The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that
disclose wrth reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Remuneration report comply with the Comparnies Act
1985 and as regards the Group financial statements Articte 4 of the [AS
Regulation They are also respansible for safequarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other ircequlanities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
Company s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of inancial statements may differ irom
legsslation in other jurisdictions




independent Auditors' report to the members of J Sainsbury plc

We have audited the Group and Company financial statements

(the hnancial statemenis’) of J Sainsbury pic for the 52 weeks to

24 March 2007 which comprise the Group income staiement the
Group and Company Statements of recognised income and expense
the Group and Campany Balance sheets, the Group and Company Cash
flow statements and the related notes These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have also audiied the information in the Remuneration report

that 15 descnbed as having been audited

Respective responsibiities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report the
Remunegratian report and the frnancial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reperting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the Eurgpean Union are set out in the Statement of
Direclors responsibihties

CQur responsibility 15 Lo audit the financial statements and the part of the
Remunerabion repart {o be audited 1n accordance with relevant legal and
requlatory requirements and Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK and
ireland) This repost encluding the opinion, has been prepared for and onty
for the Company s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not in gwving this
opinion accept or assume responsibidily for any other purpose or Lo any
ather person 1o wham this report 1s shown or inte whose hands it may
come 5ave where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as te whether the hnancial statemenis give
a true and fair view and whether the financial statements and the parl
of the Remuneraticn repert to be audited have been properly prepared
i accordance with the Companmies Act 1985 and as regards the Group
financiat statements Article 4 of the JAS Regulation We also report

to you whether in gur opinien the information given in the Directors
repori 1s consislent with the financial statements The information given
in the Directors report includes that specific information presented in
the Business review that 1s cross referred from the Business review
section of the Directors repori

In addtion we report to you f inour opmen the Company has not kepl
proper accounting records if we have not receved afl the information and
explanations we require for our audil or il information specified by law
regarding Directors remuneration and other transacbions is not disclosed

We review whether the Statement of corporate governance reflects the
Company s comphance with the mne provisions af {he Combined Code
{2003) specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financia!
Services Authonty and we report if it does not We are not regutred to
consider whether the Board s statements an internal control cover all
risks and contrels or form an opinvion on the effectiveness of the Group s
corporate governance proceaures of ILs risk ana cantrol procegures

We read other enformation contaned in the Annual Repert and consider
whether it 15 consistent with {he audited finanoal statements The other
infarmation comarises only the Chairman s statement the Business review
the Directors repoert, the Statement of corporale governance and the
unaucited part of the Remuneration report We consider the implications
ior our repori if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
malerial inconsistencies with the financiat statements Qur responsitiiities
do not extend to any other mformation

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audil 1n accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit
includes examination on a test basis of evidence relevant Lo the amaunts
and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration
report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of

the financial statements and of whether the accounting pohicies are
appropnate to the Group s and Company s Circumstances consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in arder to provide us
with sutficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
stalements and the part of the Remuneration repori te be audited are free
from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or other irregularity
or errar Informing our opimien we also evaluated the averall adeguacy of
the presentation of infermation in the financial statements and the part of
the Remuneration report to be audited

Opinrton

In our opivion
the Group hinanciat statements give a true and fair view n accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the European Union of the state of the Groups
aifawrs as at 24 March 2007 and of 1ts profit and cash flows {or the 52
weeks then ended
the Company financial statemenis give a true and fair view 1n accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the European Umon as applied i accordance
with the orovisions of the Companies Act 1985 of the state of the
Company s affairs as at 24 March 2007 and cash flows for the 52
weeks then ended
the financial statements and the part of the Remuneraticn report o be
audiled have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 and as regards the Group financial statements Article 4 of the
1AS Regulatian and
the infermation given in the Directars repart s consistent with the
hnancial statements

Pricewaterhou¥eCoopers LLP E

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
15 May 2007
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Group income statement
for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007

2007 2006
Note Em £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 17,151 16,061
Cost of sales {15,979} (14 994)
Gross proht 1,172 1 067
Administrative expenses {669} (839
Other income -~ 17 H
Operating profit 4 520 229
Finance income 5 64 a0
finance costs 5 (107} (155)
Profit before taxation 477 104
Analysed as
Undertying profit before tax! 380 267
Profit on sale of properties 4 7 1
Financing faw value movements 5 8 (12}
One off tems 7 82 (152}
477 104
Income lax expense 8 (153} (46)
Profrt for the financial year 324 58
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 325 64
Minority interests 1) &)
324 58
Earmimgs per share g pence pence
Basic 192 38
Diluted 189 38
1 Proht belare Lax trom conbinuing operations belare iy g un o 1055 on the sale of properbes imparment ol goodwili hinancng tair vikie movements g gne oltitems th it are malerrat and mirequent in nature
I The current linincial year these one of | ilems were the prolil on part aispos 1l of S#insbury s Bank And past service g uns on defined beneli schemas I the prior hnancial year thase one ofl items were the Business Revew

costs (T insourcing costs 1l 4 eht res ructurog cosls
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Statements of recognised income and expense

for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Note £m Em Em Em
Currency translation differences - 2 - -
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 179 (255) - -
Available for sale linancial assets
far value movements 24 26 - -
Cash flow hedges
effective portion of fairr value movements - 1 - -
transferred o income statement - 1) - -
Share based payment tax deductions recogrused directly in equity 8 17 5 - -
Deferred tax onitems recognised directly in equity 8 159) 68 - =
Net income/(loss) recogmised directly in equity 161 (154) - -
Proft for the financial year 324 58 190 153
Total recogrised income/(expense) for the financial year 485 135) 190 153
Attributable to
Equity holdters of the parent 486 {90} 190 153
Minority interests 1 6) - -
485 (96) 190 153
Effect of changes in accounting policy on adoption of I1AS 32 and IAS 39
for the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006
Equity holders of the parent 78) (149)
Minoaity interests - -
{78} 1149}
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Balance sheets
at 24 March 2047 and 25 March 2006

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Noete Em £m £m Em
Mon-current assets
Preperty plant and equipment 11 T.176 7 060 244 251
Infangidle assets 12 175 161 - -
investments t subsiciaries 13 - - 7,166 7 225
Investments in joint veniures 14 98 10 76 5]
Available-for sale frnancial assets 17 137 113 - -
Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers 165 - 1,473 - -
Other receivables 162 50 - 919 1 751
Deferred income tax asset 21 - 55 1 T
7,636 8902 8,406 9 240
Current assets
Inventories 15 590 576 - -
Trade and other recetvables 16a 197 276 375 150
amounts due {rom Samnsbury s Bank customers and other banks 16D - 1,888 - -
Available for sale financial assels 17 - 52 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 2o 1,128 1,028 523 411
1,915 3820 898 561
Non current assets held for sale 18 25 25 - -
1,940 3,845 898 561
Total assets 9,576 12 747 9,304 9 801
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 19a {2,267) (2 094) (4,474) 5119
Amounts due to Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks 195 - (2,299) - -
Shart term barrowings 20 (373) (253} (269) (232
Derivative linancial instruments 30 (2) (10 2} (10}
Taxes payable {65) (63) 18 9
Provisions 2z (14) 91) {2) 2)
2,721 (4 810} (4,729 {5 335}
Net current habilities (781) (965) 13,821) (4 794}
Neon-current liabihties
Other payables 19a (33) {30) {740} (782)
Amounts due to Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks 19b - (1 009 - -
Lang term borrowings 20 (2,090) (2 178) - -
Derivative financial mstruments 30 {43) 2) 43) (2}
Deferred income tax habiity 21 (168) - - -
Provisions 22 169) {95) (30) (31)
Relirement benefit obhgations a1 (103) (658} - -
{2,506) (3,972) {813} (815)
Net assets 4,349 3965 3,762 3631
Equity
Catled up share capital 23 495 489 495 489
Share premium account 23 857 782 857 782
Capial redempthion reserve 24 670 668 670 6568
Qther receries 24 143 (1) - -
Retained earmngs 25 2184 1948 1,740 1692
Equity shareholders’ funds 26 4,349 3886 3,762 3631
Minority interests 26 - 79 - -
Total equity 26 4,349 3965 3.762 3631

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors_gn 15 May 2007 and are signed on its behalf by

Justin King Chiel Executive

Darren Shapland Chief Financial O

M
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Cash flow statements

for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007

Gioup Company
2007 2006 2007 20056
Note Em £em £m Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 273 830 780 {166) 3ila
Interest paid (95) (159) {95} (151)
Corporation tax recewed 9 3 - 20
Net cash from operating activities 744 az4 (261} 2985
Cash flows from vesting activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment (778) (549) - (14)
Purchase of intangible assets {7) {6) - -
Proceeds from dispesal of property plant and equipment 106 164 11 151
Acquisition of and mvestment in subsidiaries net of cash acquired 33 13 (3) (6) {24) (1,469)
Proceeds from part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank 21 - 21 -
Cash disposed on part disposal of Sainsbury's Bank (33) - - -
Cost of disposal of operations n 113) [#3] {13)
Interest recewved 15 ] 119 112
Dividends recerved - - 270 250
MNet cash from investing activities (680} {404) 396 (983)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 81 22 81 22
Capital redemplion {2) (9) (2) 9)
Repayment of short term borrowings 53~ (348} 53) {174)
Repayment of long term borrowings 22) (1_ 701) - (1,701}
Proceeds {rom short term barrawings - 50 - 50
Proceeds from long term borrowings - 2056 - -
Debt restructuring costs 2) (22) 2) (22)
Repayment of camtal element of obligations under finance lease borrowings - n - -
Interest clements of obligations under finance lease payments (3} 3 - -
Owndends pard 10 {140) 13 (140} {131
Issue of loan Iram minority shareholder - 9 - -
Net cash from financing activities {141) (78} {116} (1 965}
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (77N 142 19 37
Opening ¢ash and cash equivalents 842 700 245 208
Closing cash and cash equivalents 27b 765 842 264 245
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

J Sainsbury ple 15 a pubhc hmited company { Company } incorporated
in the Urited Kingdom whose shares are publicly traded on the London
Stock Exchange The Company 1s domsciled in the United Kingdom and
its regrsiered address s 33 Hoiborn Loagon ECIN 2HT United kingdom

The financial year represents the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007 {prior
financial year 52 weeks to 25 March 2006) The consohdated financial
statements for the 52 weeks 1o 24 March 2007 comprise the finanaial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ( Group ) and the Group s
interests in associates and joint veptures

The Groups principal activities are grocery and related retailing

2 Accounting policies

{a} Statement of compliance

The Group s financial staternents have been prepared n accordance with
International Financial Reporiing Standards ( IFRS ) as adopted by the
Eurapean Union and Internationat Financiat Reporting Interpretations
Commitiee ( IFRIC ) interpretations and with those parts of the Companies
Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The Company s
{inancial statements have been prepared on the same basis and as
permitied by Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 1985 no tncome
statement 1s presented for the Company

(b} Basis of preparation

The hinancial statements are presented in sterhng rounded Lo the nearest
millien (Em} unless otherwise stated They have been prepared under the
histoncal cost convenbion except for denvative financial instruments and
avallable for sale linancial assets that have been measured at fair vatue

The preparation of inancial statements it conformity with IFRS requires
the use of judgements estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assels and labilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported ameunts ol revenues and expenses during the reporting
period The eslimates and associated assumptions are based on histonical
experience and varigus other factors that are believed 1o be reasanable
under the circuemstances the cesults of which form the basis of making

the yjudgemenls aboul carrying values of assets and habilities Lhat are not
reacily apparent from other securces Actualresults may differ from these
estimates The areas involving a higher degree of judgement ar complexity
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant Lo the hnancial
statemenis are disclosed in note 2¢

New standards, interpretations and amendments to
pubhshed standards
Effective for the Group In these financial statements
Amendment Lo 1AS 39 Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast

ttraoroun Transact.oos
+T"AGTCLE TTansalt.oms

Amendment to JAS 39 The Fair Value Gpuion

Amendments to 1AS 32 and IFRS 4 Financial Guarantiee Contracts
IFRS & Exploration of and Evaluation of Mineral Resources’

IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangemeni contains a Lease

IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests ansing from Decomnussioning Restoration
and En wronmental Rehabditation Fonds

IFRIC 6 Liabiibes ansing from Partictpating in 3 Specibic Market -
Wasle Electrical and Elecironic Equipment

The above new standards interpretations and amendments te published
standards have had no matenal impact on the resulis or the financat
position of the Group for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007
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Effective for the Group for the financial year beqinrung 25 March 2007
Amendment to IAS § Presentation of Financial Statements -
Capttal Disclosures
IFRS 7 Financiat instrumenls Disclosure
IFRIC 8 S¢ope of IFRS 2
IFRIC 9 Re assessment of embedded dervatives
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

Effective for the Group for future financial years
Amendment to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs
IFRS B Cperating Segments
IFRIC 12 Serwvice Concession Arrangements

The Group has constdered the above new standards interpretations

and amendments to published standards that are not yet effactive and
concluded that they are either not relevant to the Group or that they would
not have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements apart
from addittonal disclosures

The accounting policies set oul below have been apphed consistently to
all periods presented in the financial statements and have been apphed
cansistently by the Group and the Company

Consclidation

The Group s financial statements include the results of the Company and
allits subsidiaries together with the Groups share of the post tax results
of its associates and joint ventures

Subsidianes

Subsidiaries are all entities ever which the Group has the power (o
governthe financial and operaling policies generally accompanying

a shareholding of more than cne hatf of the voling rights The results
of subsidiaries are incluged in the Group income statement {rom the
date of acquesition or in the case of disposals up to the effective date
of dispesal Intercompany transactions and balances between Group
companies are eliminated upon conschidation

Associates and Joint veniures

Associates are entities that are neather subsidiaries nor joint ventures
over which the Group has significant influence Joint ventures are joimntly
conirolled enties in which the Group has an interest The Group s share
ol the resuils of ls associates and joint ventures are ingiuded in the Group
mncome statement using the equity method of accounting

Investments 10 associates and joint ventures are carried in the Group
balance sheet al cost plus pest acquisition changes in the Group s share
of et assels of the entity less any imparment n value

Investments in subsicharies assoctates and joint ventures are carried at
Custigss an, Jhipairmens 1oss 0 the fnancis! statemens of the Company
Foreign currencies

Foretgn operations

On cansahdation assets and liabities of foretgn ogerations are transiated
mnto sterling al year end exchange rates The resulls of ioreign operations
aze translaled into sterbng at average rates of exchange for the year

Exchange differences anising from the retransiation at year end exchange
rales of the netinvesiment in foreign operations less exchange differences
on foretgn currency borrowings or forward contracts which are in subsiance
pari ol ithe net investment in a loreign operation are taken to equity and
are reported in the statement of recognised tncome and expense




Notes to the frnancial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction Monetary assets ang iabihities
denosunated i foreign currencies at the palance sheet dale are translaled
at the exchange rate ruhing at that date Foreign exchange differences
arising on translation are recognised in the income statement

Revenue
Revenue consists of sales through retall outlets and in the case
of Sainsbury s Bank interest receivable fees and commassions

Revenue s recognised when the significant nsks and rewards of products
and services have been passed to the buyer and ¢an be measured rehiably

Sales through retail outlets are shown net of the cost of Nectar reward
points ssued and redeemed stalf discounts, vouchers and sales made
on an agency basis Commission income 1s recogrised in revenue based
an the terms of 1he contract

Sainsbury’s Bank

Interest income 1s recogmised in the income statement for all instruments
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

This calculation takes into account interest received or paid fees and
commissions received or paid that are integral to the yield as well

as incremental transaction costs

Fees and commissrons that are not integral to the yield are recognised

in the income statement as service 1s provided Where therg s a nisk of
potenbial ctaw back, an appropriate element of the insurance commission
recewvable 1s deferred and amortised over the expected average hie of Lhe
underlying foan

Cost of sales

Cost of sales consists of all costs Lo the point of sale including warehouse
and transportation costs all the costs of operating retad outlets and n the
case of Sansbury s Bank interest expense on operating activities
calculated using the eifective interest method

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings

Land and buildings are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any recaognised impairment lass Properties in the course of construchion
are held at cost tess any recogmsed imparrment loss Costincludes any
directly attribuiaole costs and borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
witth the Group s accounting pohicy

Frxtures equipment and vehicles
Fixtures equipment and vehigles are held at cost less accumulated
deprectation and any recognised impairment IQss

Depreciation
Depreciation s calculaied to write down Lhe cost of the assets {o
their resigual values on astraight ine method on the iollowing bases
Freehold bulldings and leasehold properties - 50 years or the
lease term il shorler
Fixtures eguipment and vehucles - 3 Lo 15 years
Freehoid land )s not gepreciated

Land andg buildings under construciien and non current assets held
for sale are not depreciated

Intangible assets

Pharmacy licences

Pharmacy icences are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any JwMmpairment 1655 and amorbised on a siraight line bass over thair useful
econamic hie of 15 years

Computer software

Computer saltware 15 carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment loss Externally acquired computer soltware and soltware
licences are capitahsed and amortised on a straighl line basis over their
useful economic lives of three Lo five years Costs relating to development
of computer software for internal use are capitalised once the recognition
criterta are met When the software s available for its intended use these
casls are amortised over the estimated useful [ife of the software

Goodwtll

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group s share of the net (dentifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition Goodwill 1s
recogmsed as an asset gn the Group s balance sheet in Lthe year in which
it anses Goodwiltis tested for impairment annuaily and again whenever
ndicators of imparment are detected and is carrnied at cost less
accumulated impatrment losses

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each full year balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying
amaounts of its tangible and intangible assels to determsne whether

there s any indicatien thal those assets have suffered an imparment loss
tf any suchindication exssts the recoverable amount of the asset which s
the higher of 1ts fair vatue less cosis to sell and 1ts value in use 15 estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss Where the asset
dges not generate cash flows that are independent irom other assets the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit

( CGU Yta which the asset belongs For tangible and intangible assets
excluding goodwill the CGU s deemed to be each trading store For
goodwitl the CGU 1s gdeemed Lo be each retad chan of stores acquired

Any imparrment charge 1s recogrised 1n the income statement in the year
mwhich il occurs Where an mpairment loss olher than an smpairment loss
on goodwilt subsequently reverses due 10 8 change in the oniginal estimate
the carrying amount of the assel s increased lo the revised estimate of its
recoveratle amount

Capitahisation of interest
Interest costs that are directly atinbutable to the acquisition or construction
ol qualifying assels are capitalised Lo the cost of the asset gross of tax rehef

Non-current assets held tor sale

Nan rurrant accets ara riaccaining ag accate hald for gate and <taterd at

the lower ol the carrving amount and fair value 1ess €osts to sellif their
carrying amount s recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use

Leased assets

lLeases are classified as frnance leases when the terms of the lease transfer
suDstanuially all the r1sks and rewards o1 ownerstup to the Group All other
leases are ¢lassihied as operating feases For properly leases the land and
bulding elements are ireated separateiy to determine the appropriate
lease classification
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Notes to the financlal statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

Finance leases

Assets funded through finance leases are capitalised as property plant and
equipment and depreciated over their estimated useful hves or the lease
terrn, whichever 1s snosler The amounl capitahised s Ine 1ower of ine feir
value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments
during the fease term at the inception of the lease The resulting lease
obhgations are nctuded in hatnlities net of inance charges Finance costs
on finance leases are charged directly to the income statement

Operating leases
Assets leased under operating teases are not recorded on the balance
sheet Rental payments are charged directly to the income statement

Lease incentives

Lease incentives prmarily include up front cash payments or rent free
penods Lease incentives are capitalised and spread over the period of
the lease term

Leases with predetermied fixed rental increases

The Greup has a number of leases with predetermined fixed rental
increases These rental increases are accounted for on a straight ine
basis over the pernod of the lease term

Operating lease income
Operating lease income consists of rentals from properties held for
disposal or sub tenant agreements and 1s recognised as earned

Inventories

Inventones are valued at the lower ol cost and net realisabte value
Inventones al warehouses are valued on a birst in first out basis Those

at retail outlets are valued al calculated average cost prices Costincludes
atl direct expendilure and gther appropriate attributabte costs incurred in
bringing inventarees to thewr present location and cendibion

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivaients compnse cash on hand demand deposits and
other short term highly iquid investments thai are readily convertible lo a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insigmficant risk of changes in
value Bank overdralts that are repayable on demand and lorm an integral
part of the Group s cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purposes ol the cash flow statement

Deferred taxation

Defarred tax 1s accounted for an the basis of temporary differences
arising from differences between the tax base and accouniing base
of assets and habihties

Deferred tax 1s recogrised for all taxable temporary differences except
lo the extent where i anses {rom the inihial recogmtion of an assat or
a habshity In a transaction that «s not a husiness combination and at the
hime ol transaction aflecls neither accouniing profit nor tarabile proht
It 15 determined using tax rates {and law/s) that have heen enacieq or
substaniially enacted by the balance sheetl daie and are expected lo
apply when the related deferred income tax assel s realised or the
deferred income tax irabiity 1s settled

Deierred tax assets are recognised Lo the extent that 1i 1s probable tnat
future taxable profils will be avallable against which the temporary
thifferences can be utihsed

Deferred Lax s charged or credited (o the iIncome statement except when
it relates todems charged or ¢redited directly to equity 1in which case the
deferred tax 15 afso deall with in equity
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Provisicns

Provisions are recagmised when there ts a present legal or constructive
obltgation as a result of past events for which 1t1s prabable that an outflow
of economic ceneht will be 1egquired Lo settle tne oohigabion and wnere Lne
amount of the obligation can be reliably esttmated

Cnerous leases

Provis:ons for oneraus leases measured net of expecled rentals are
recegrised when Lhe property leased becomes vacant and (s no longer
used n the operations of the business

Restructuring

Provisions for restructuring cosls are recogmised when the Group has

a detailled formai plan for the restructuning that has been communicated
to afiected parties

Employee benefits

Pensiens

The Group operates vanious defined benefit and defined contribution
pension schemes for its employees A defined henefit scheme is a pension
plan thal defines an amount of pension benelit that an employee will
receive on retlirement A dehined contribution scheme 1s a pension plan
under whieh the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate enfity

In respect of defined benefit pension schemes the pension scheme deficit
recogmised in the balance sheel represents the difference between the
fair value of Lhe plan assets and the present value af the defined benelil
obkgation at the balance sheet date The defined benefit obhgation s
actuanalty calculated on an annual basis using the projected umit credit
method Pian assets are recorded at fair value

The income statement charge is $phit between an operating service cost and a
financing charge whichis the net of interest cost or pension scheme habilities
and expected return on plan assels Actuanal gains and losses are recognised
wifullinthe penod 0 the statement of recognised income and expense

Payments io defined contribution pension schemes are charged as an
expense as they fall due Any contributions unpaid at the balance sheet
date are inciuded as an accrual as at that date The Group has no further
payment obhgations once the contributions have been paid

Long service awards
The costs of long service awards are accrued over the period the service
15 provided by the employee

Share-based payments

The Group prevides penefits to employees (ncluding Directors) of the
Group in the forem of share based payment transactions whereby
employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares
f oty settled transactions )

The fair value of the employee services rendered 1s determined by
reference Lo the fair value of the shares awarded or options granted
excluding the impact of any non market vesting concitions A1l share
options are valued using an option pricmg model (Black Scholes or Monte
Carlo) This faxr value is charged te the income statement over the vesting
peniod of the share based payment scheme with the corresponding
Increase n equity

The value of the charge 1s adpusted in the Income statement gver the
rematnder of the vesting period 1o reflect expected and actual tevels
of options vesting with the corresponding adjustment made in equity




Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting pohicies continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its inancial assets in the following categones at fair
value through prodit and loss leans and receivables held to maturity and
avatlable for sale The ctassification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assels were acquired

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss inctude financiat assets
held for trading and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
atinception Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are
accounted for as an effe¢iive hedging instrument  Financial assets at far
value through profit and loss are recorded at fair value with any gains or
lasses recegrised in the incame slatement inthe penod in which they arise

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market The Group
has nointention of trading these leans and recevables They include
amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers and amounts due from
other banks Subsequent to imtial recognmibian these assets are carried

at amortised cost using the effective interest method income from these
{inancial assets 1s calculated on an effective yield basis and 15 recognised
in the income statement

Held to matunty investments are non derivalive financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturnities that the Group s
management has Lhe positive intention and ability to hold to maturity
Subsequent to initial recognition these assets are recorded at amoriised
cost using the effective interest method Income s calculated on an
elfective yieltt basis and 1s recogrised in the inceme statement

Avoilable for sale { AFS )investments are those financial assets that are
iniended Lo be held for an indefinite period of ime which may be sotd in
response tg needs lor hguichty or changes ininterest rates or equity prices
Subsequent tombial recogmition {hese assels are recorded at fair value
with Lthe movements in fair value taken direct!y to equity until the financial
asselis dereccgmsed or impaired at which Lime the cumulalive gain or
loss previously recognised in equity 1s recagrised in the income statement
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
when the entity s rrght to receive payment is established Interest on AFS
debt instruments)s recogmised using the effective interest method

Purcnases and sales of financial assets at fair vaiue through prohl or loss,
held to malunty and AFS investments are recogrused on trade date Loans
are recogmised when cash s advanced to the borrowers Financial assets
aremitially recogmised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carrred at fair value through the prefit and loss Financial assets
are derecogmised when the rights Lo receive cash flows from the Hinancial
acente hava avpurad or whara the Craup has transfarred substanhially all
risks and rewards of ownershep

Financial habities

Interest bearing bank toans and overdralts are recorded inthally at fawr
value which :s generally the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue Costs
Subsequently these ltabihifies are held at amartised cost using the effective
mterest method

finance charges including prermiums payable on settlement or redemplion
and dreclissue costs are accounted for on an accrual basis to the income
statementi using the effective interest method and are added to the
carrying amaount of the instrument Lo the extent that they are not settled
inthe period in which they arise

Impairment ¢f financial assets

An assessment of whether there is objective evidence of impairment

15 carned out for all inancial a55ets or groups of financial assets at the
balance sneei date Tmis assessment may pe of individuar assets Lindiviaual
impairment } or of a porifoho of assets { collechive imparment } A financial
asset or a group of inanciat assetsis considered to be impaired «t ang
anlyif there s objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or mare
events that occurred after the wutial recognition of the asset (a lgss event )
and that loss event (or events) has ansmpacl on the estimated future

cash fHlows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can

be reliably estimated

For individual impairment the principal loss event 1s ene or more missed
payments although other loss events can alse be taken into account
ncluding arrangerments in place Lo pay less than the contraciual payments
fraud and bankruptcy or other hinancial difliculty iIngicators An assessment
of collective iImpairment wilt be made of financial assets with similar risk
charactenstics For these assets porifolio loss experience s used to
provide objective evidence of impairment

Where there 1s objective evidence thal an impairment loss exists on loans
and receivables or held to-maturity investments impairment provisions are
made to reduce the carrying value of financial assets to the present value
of estimaled future cash flows discounted at the financial asset 5 ongqinal
eifective interest rate

For linancial assets carnied at amortised cost the charge to the income
stalement reflects the movement in the level of provisions made logether
with amounts written off net of recoveries in the year

in the case of equity investments classified as available for sale a
segmificant or prolonged dechne in the far value of the asset below its

cost 1s considered in determining whether the assel 1s impaired 1 any such
evidence exsts for available for sale finanCial assets, the cumulative lass -
measured as the difference between the acquisiiion cost and the current
farr value 12ss any impairment {053 on Lhat financial asset previcusly
recognesed in the income statement - 1s removed from equity and
recognised in the sncome statement

imparment losses recognised in the rncome statement on equity
instruments are not reversed f ina subsequent pened the far value of a
debt instrument classihed as availlable for sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring aiter the impairment loss
was recognised in the income statement the impairment loss Is reversed
through the income statement

Interest will cenbinue to accrue on all financial assets based on the
written down balance Interesi s calculated using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring

the impairment 10ss To the extent that a provision may be increased or
decreased In subsequent penods the recogmtion of interest will be based
onthe lalest balance nel ol provision

Fair value estimation
The metheds and assumptians apphed i detarmiming the fair valyeos
of ftnancial assets and financial kamhtres are disclosed in note 29

Redeemable preference shares

Redeemable preference shares that meet the definifion of a amhty
are recognised as a hatihty on the balance sheel The corresponding
diwvidends on these shares are recognised as finance costs through the
income statement
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

Dervative financial Instruments and hedge accounting
The Group's activities expose It primarify to the financial risks of changes

1 foresgn currency exchange rates and snterest rates The Graup principally

uxes [oreign exchange furward contracts ond interesl rale swap contracls
to hedge these exposures The use of financial derivatives is governed by
the Group s treasury pohcies, as approved by the Board The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes

All derwvative financiabinstruments are inthally measured at fair value
on the contract date and are alse measured at fair value at subsequent
reporfing dates

Hedge relationships are classified as cash flow hedges where the derivative

financial instruments hedge the currency risk of future highly probable
inventory purchases Changesn the lair value of dervative financral
Instruments that are desigrated and effective as hedges of future cash
flows are recognised directly in equity and the ineffective partion s
recognised immediately in the sncome statement If the cash ftow hedge
of a firm commitment or farecasted transaction results in the recognition
of a non financial asset or hability, then at the time the asset or hability
15 recognised, the asscciated gains or fosses on the derivative that had
previously been recognised in eguily are included tn the iInibial
measurement of the asset or habihty

Hedge relationships are classified as fai value hedges where the
derivabive financial Instruments hedge the change in the fair vatue of

a finangial asset or habibty due to interest rate nsk The changes in fair
vakue of the hedging instrument are recogmised in the income statement

The hedged item s alse adjusted for changes n fair value attributable
to the hedged risk with the corresponding adjustment made 11 the
mcome statement

To quahiy for hedge accounting the Group documents at the inception
of the hedge the hegging nsk management strategy the relattonship
between the hedging instrument and the hedged item or transaction

and the nature of the risks being hedged The Group also documents the
assessment of the effectiveness of the hedging relalipnship 10 show Lhat
the hedge has been and will be highly effective on an ongoing basis

Changes in the fair value of dervative (inancial instruments that do not
qualdy for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as
finance mcome/eosts as they arise

Hedge accounting is giscontinued when the hedging instrument expires
orIs s0ld terminated or exerased or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that ime any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recagnised in equity 15 retained 1IN equity until the forecasted
transactbion ocgurs If a hedged trangaction s no langer avpected 1o occur
the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity s transferred to the
ncome statement for the penod

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and iabilities are offset and the nel amount reparted

In the balance sheet when there 15 a legally enforceable right to oifset
the recogrused amounis and there 1s an intention to seille on a net basis
or reahse the assel and settle the hability simultaneously

{c) Judgements and estimates

The Group makes judgements and assumplions concermng the future that
impaci the application of pehcies and reparted amounis The resulting
accounting estimates calculated using these judgements and assumptions
will by definshion seldom equal the refated actual resulis but are based on
historical experience and expectations of future events
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The judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainly that have a
sigmiicant eflect on the amounts recognised in the financtal statemenis
are discussed below

Gaodwtll imparment

The Group rs required to assess whether goodwill has suffered any
tmpairmenl loss based on the recoverable amount of 1Its CGUs The
recoverable amaounts of the CGUs have been determined based on value
1 use calculations and these calculations require the use of estimates in
relation to future cash flows and switable discount rates as disclosed in
note 12 Actual oulcomes could vary irom these estimates

Impairment of assets

Finanoial and non financial assets are subject to impairment reviews based
on whether current or future avents and circumstances suggest that thew
recoverable amount may be fess than their carrying value Recoverable
amount 15 based on a ¢alculation of expected future cash fiows which
includes management assumptions and estimates of future periormance

Post-employment benefits

The Group operates vanious defined beneht schemes for its employees

The present value of the schemes labihties recognised at the balance sheet
date s dependent on interest rates of high qualty corporate bonds The net
financing charge recognised in the inceme statement 1s dependent on the
interest rate of hegh quabily corporate bonds and an expectation of the
werghted average returns on the assets within the schemes Other key
assumplions within this catculation are based on market conditions or
eslimates of future events including mortality rates as set out n note 31

Provesions

Provisions have been made for onerous (gases and restructuring costs
These provisions are eslimates and the actuat cosls and Lming of {uture
cash flows are dependent on fulure events Any dilference between
expectabions and the actual future hability will be accounted for n the
period when such determunation 1s made

Income taxes

The Group recogruses expected abihties for tax basett on an eslimation of
Lhe hkety taxes due which reguires sigmificant judgement as to ihe ultimate
tax determination of cerlain iterns Where the actual habibly arising from
these 1ssues differs from these estimates such differences will have an
impact onncome tas and deferred tax provisions in Lhe period when such
determimation 1s made

3 Segment reporting

The Group s primary reporting format 15 business segments, with each
seqment representing a business unit that offers different products and

sarume difforant markote

The businesses are organised into two operating divisions
Retathng {Supermarkets ang Convervence} and
Frnancial seevices {Sainsbury $ Bank)

All material operations are carned out inthe UK

Jegment resulis assers and ramiihies INCluge ems directly attriputanie
toasegment as' ell as these that can be allecated on a reasonable basis
Segment capital expenditure 1s the total cost incurred during the period
toacquire segment assels that are expected to be used for more Lthan
one period




Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Segment reporting continued

Financial
Retauing SErvices Group
£m Em im
2007
Segment revenue
Sales to external customers 16,860 - 16,860
Services to external customers - 291 291
Total revenue 16,860 291 17,151
Underlying operating profit! 429 2 431
Profit on sale of properties 7 - 7
Profit on part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank - 10 10
Past service gains on dehaed benefit schemes T2 - 72
Segment result 508 12 520
Finance income 64
Finance costs (107)
Income tax expense (153)
Profit for the financial year 324
Assets 9,478 - 9,478
Investment in jont ventures 10 88 98
Segment assets 9,576
Segment Liabilities 5,227 - 5,227
Qther segment items
Capdtal expendiure 733 4 737
Deprecialion expense 469 10 479
Amortisatign expense 19 2 21
Impairment af amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers - B89 89
2006
Segment revenue
Sales to external customers 15731 - 15 731
Services to external customers - 330 330
Total revenue 15731 33C 16061
Underlying operaling profit/(loss) 352 (10} 342
Profit on sale of properties 1 -~ 1
Business Review operating costs 151) - (51}
IT insourcing costs {63) - (63)
Segment result 239 (1) 229
Finance income 30
Finance cosls {155)
Income tax expense (46}
Profit for the financial year 58
Assels 9058 3879 12 737
Invastment in imnt ynnturas 10 - 10
Segment assets 12747
Segment habihties 5281 3 501 8782
Other segment 1tems
Capital expendiure 5i8 7 525
Deprecation expense 442 7 449
Amortisation expense 19 2 21
Impairment of amounts due {rom Sainsbury 5 Bank customers - 106 106

1 Underhang prolil betors ta fresn conbmung operations helora inaitce nNeome and hinance costsy
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Notes to the financiat statements continued

4 Operating profit

2007 2006
£m £m
Operating profit 1s stated alter charging/icrediting) the loftowing items
Emplovee costs {note 8} 1,785 1 7el
Depreciation expense 479 449
Amortisation expense (included within cost of sales) 21 21
Profit on sale of properiies i) {1)
Profit on part disposatl of Sainsbury s Bank (note 7) (10} -
Impairment of amounts due from Sainshury s Bank customers (ncluded within admiristrative expenses) g9 106
Operating lease rentals - land and buildings 287 262
- other leases 45 31
- sublease payments received {30) {24)
Foreign exchange differences & -

Gperating profit for the pnior financal year included £51 million of Business Review costs and £63 million of IT insourcing costs of which E50 million

1s Included in costs of sales and £64 milkon included in admimstrative expenses

2007 2006
Group Em Em
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services
Fees payable to the Company auditor for the audit of the Group and the Company financtal siatements 04 03
Non-audit services
Fees payable to the Company auditor and its associales for other services as detailed betow

Audit of the Company s subsiciaries pursuant to legislatron 04 04
QOther services pursuant to legislabion 01 01
Tax services 03 03
All piher services 02 04
14 15
The Company audit fee was £0 1 million (2006 EQ 1 milion)
5 Finance income and finance costs

2007 2000
Em £m
Interest on bank deposits 15 7
Nel return on pension schemes (note 31} 41 23
Financing farr value gains' - Retailling 8 -
Finance income 64 30
Financing fair vatue losses! - Financial services - (4)
= Retaing - {8)
- (12)
Debt restructuring costs - {38)

Barrowing cosls
Bank loans and overdraits 2 {3
Other lpans {111) (107)
B share preference dvidends (note 200 - 1)
0Ohligations under finance leases 3} (3)
Provisions - amertisation of discount (nate 22) {1} (1}
(117} {115}
Interest captalised - qualifying assels 10 10
Finance costs {107) (155)

L Faw vatue gamsfilossest retaté to fair vabue dpistments an cotvatives relating to hinancing actmbies s hedged ilems m lar value hedges

Tolat interest income amounted to £213 mullion {2006 E£217 milion) including interest income atinbutable to Sainsbury s Bank el L198 milhon (2006 £210

milhon} nclucted in revenue Totalinterest costs amounted to £233 millvan (2006 E230 muthon) tncluding interest costs atinbutable to Sansbury § Bank of

£16 milion (2006 ENS milhon) included in cost of sales
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Notes to the financial statements continued

& Employee costs

2007 2006
Em Em
Employee costs for the Group dening the year amounted o
Wages and satasies including bonus and terminatien benefils 1583 18£8
Social secunty costs 122 101
Pansion costs - defined contoibution schemes 27 23
Pension costs - defined benefit schemes (note 31 87 81
Pension costs - past service gains on defined benefit schemes (notes 7 and 31) 72} -
Share based payments expense (note 32) 28 23
1,785 1793
Number Number
Q00 s 900's
The average number of employees, including directors during the year were
Full time 48 8 4G 2
Part time 981 1041
146 9 153 3
Full fime eguivalent 955 96 2
All employees were emmployed In the United Kingdom for the periods presented
7 One-off 1tems
2007 2006
£m £m
One off items for the hinancial year camprised
Business Reviow operating costs - (51}
IT insourcing costs - 63)
Debt restructuring costs {ngte 5) = (38)
Prehit on part ¢hsposal of Sainsbury s Bank 10 -
Past service gains on defined benefit schemes (note 31) 72 -
g2 (152}

Profit on part disposal of Sainsbury's Bank

0n 8 February 2007 the Company sold a hve per cent shareholding in Sainsbury s Bank plc (the Bank ) Lo the Bank of Scotiand (a wholly owned subsidiary
of HBOS plo) for a cash consideration of £21 mullion resulbing i a prafit on disposal for the Group of £10 milhion Thus profit on disposal has been regoamised
as other income tn the Group income statement Consequentty the Bank became a 50 50 joint verture belween the Company and HBOS pic

The results of the Bank have been fulty consobdated inte the Group results until 8 February 2007 with 8 corresponding minornty interest shown for
Ihe minonity share of these results Following the sale on 8 February 2007 the Bank 1s treated as a joint venture and equity accounted in tne Group
hinancial statements

At 24 March 2007 the assels and liabibhies of the Bank have not been consolidated wn the Group balance sheet but instead a joint venture mvestment of
£88 muilion representing the Group s 50 per ¢cent share of the Bank s net assets af that date (note 14) has been included The Group has accounted for its
equity share of the results of the Bank for the period irem 8 February 2007 (o 24 March 2007

Past service gans on defined benefit schemes

Followtng changes introduced by the Finance Act effective {irom & Apnl 2006 the defined benefif schemes have implemented revised terms to provide
members with the oplion o surrender a greater praportion of thewr pension lor a tax {ree cash lump sum payment Accordingly the Group revisedils
assumptions used 1n calculating the retirement benefit abligations in respect of this and certain rminos changes 10 scheme rules and has recognised
£72 munun of past service gans in the Greup income statement
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Notes to the hinancial statements continued

8 Income tax expense

2007 2006
Em £m
Current tax expense
Current year 2 ag
Over proviSion in prior years 25) (2)
(23) 36
Deferred tax expense
arigination and reversal of temporary differences 158 15
Under/{over) provisian in prior years 18 (5)
176 10
Total income tax expense In 1ncome statement 153 46
Income tax expense on underlying profit! 132 a5
Tax on items below
Sale of properties (3) -
Financing fair value movements 2 (34
Business Review operating Costs - (15)
IT insourcing costs - 19
Cebt restructuring costs - (12)
Past service gawmns on defined penefit schemes 2z -
Tatal income tax expense in iIncome statement 153 46

1 Tar ¢harqge attribulable toundariving arohit before tax from ¢enhinuing operations

The elfective tax rate of 32 2 per cant (2006 44 2 per cent)1s higher than the standard rate of corparation tax in the UK The differences are explained below

N 2007 2006
- £m £m
Prafit pefore taxation 477 104
Income tax at UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2006 30%) 143 31
Eftects of
Cisallowed depreciation on UK properlies 22 21
Non deduclible expenses 3 1
Non taxable sncome (8) -
Quer provision i pres years {7y {7y
Total income tax expense (nincome statement 153 46
Income tax charged or credited to equily during the year 15 as follows
2007 2006
£m frn
Share hbased payment tax deductions recognised directly in equity
Current Lax payable (2) -
Deferred tax asset (7 (5}
Deferred tax tosses associated with share based payment tax deduction (8) -
{17) {5}
Deferred tax on items recogrised directly in equity
Actuarial gatnsflosses on defined benefit pensign schemes 52 (75)
Avanable for-sale financial assets - far value movements 7 7
59 (68}
42 (73}

On 21 March 2007 the Chancellor announced that with effect from i Apnl 2008 the standard rate of UK Carporation tax will reduce from 30 per cent lo

28 per cent (note 21}
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Notes to the linanclal statements continued

9 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dwiding the earrings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
inissue during the year excluding those held by the Employee Share Qwnership Plan trusts (note 25) which are treated as cancelled

For diuted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue s adiusted te assume cenversion of all potential dilutive grdinary

shares These represent share oplions grantad te employees where the exercise price 15 less Lhan the average market price of Lhe Company s ordinary

shares during the year

Underlying earnings per share s provided by excluding the effect of any gain or toss on the sale of properttes imparment of goodwill financing fatr
value movements and one off ilems that are material and infrequent m nature This alternative measure of earnings per share 1s presented to reflect

the Group s underlying trading performance

All operations are continuing {or the periods presented

2007 2006
mllion milhon
Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue 1,691 3 16790
Weighted average number of dilutive share options 285 132
Total number of shares {for calfulating diluted earnings per share 1,719 8 16922
Em Em
Profit Tor the financial year attriputable to equity holders of the parent 325 64
(Less}/add profit on sale of properties net of lax (10) (1)
financing fair value movements net of tax 16} 7
Business Review gosts net of lax - 36
IT insourcing costs net af tax - 44
gdebt restructuring costs net of {ax - 26
profit on part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank {10} -
past service gains on defined benelint schemes nel of tax 50 -
Underlying profit after tax 249 176
pence pence
per share per share
Basig earnings 192 38
Diluted earnings 189 38
Underlying basic earnings 147 i05
Underlying dduted earmngs 14 5 104
10 Dividend
2007 2006
pence pance 2007 2006
per share per share Em Em
Amounts recognised as disiribulions 10 equity holders in the year
Final dividend of prior financial year 585 5 65 99 95
Interim dividend of currenl finangial year 240 215 41 36
825 T80 140 131

After the balance sheel date a final dividend of 7 35 pence per share (2006 5 85 pence per share) was propased by the Directors in respect of the
52 weeks 1o 24 March 2007 resultrng n a total finat proposed dividend of £126 mithon (2006 £99 mill:gn) The proposed final dividend has not been

included as a hability at 24 March 2007
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Notes to the financial statements continued

11 Property, plant and equipment

Groug Company
Land and Fixtures and Lana and
bealdings equipment Toial buildings
Em €m Em £m
Cost
Al 26 March 2006 6418 4323 10741 268
Additions 383 344 727 -
Disposals 173 (138) (211) (5
Part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank - (49) (49} -
Transfer lo assels held for sale (%) - S} -
At 24 March 2007 6,719 4,480 11,199 263
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Al 26 March 2004 970 2711 3681 17
Deprecration expense for the year 92 387 479 2
Disposals (2) (106) (108) -
Part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank - (29 29) -
At 24 March 2007 1,060 2,963 4,023 19
Met book value at 24 March 2007 5,639 1,517 7.176 244
Capital woerk-in-progress included above 343 8% 332 -
Cost
At 27 March 2005 6,234 4,235 10 469 349
Additions 284 228 512 14
Acguisthion of subsichanes 4 - a -
Disposals {79 (140) 219 (95)
Transier to assets held for sale {25) - 25) -
At 25 March 2006 6418 4,323 10741 268
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 27 March 2005 922 2471 3393 19
Cepreciation expense far the year 77 372 449 3
Disposals {(29) 1132) (161) (o)
Al 25 March 2006 970 2711 368t 17
Het book value al 25 March 2006 5 448 1612 7080 251
Capital work-in-progress included above 309 44 353 -
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Em £m £fm fm
The net book value of land and butldings comprised
Freehold land and budding 4,339 4 166 65 70
Long leasehold 889 B18 179 181
Short leasehold 431 464 - -
5,659 5 448 244 251

Interest capitabised

Interest capitalised included in additions amaounted to £10 million (2005 £10 million) for the Group and £nil (2006 £ni) for the Company Accumulaled
interest capitalised incleded in the cost tolal above amounted to £253 million {2006 £244 mulhen) for the Group and £nil (2006 E£mld for the Company
The capitahsation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitahsationis 5 3 per cent {2006 5 3 per centl)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

11 Property, plant and equipment continued

Security

Property, plant and equipment of 127 supermarket properties, with a net book value of £2 456 milhon {2006 £2 515 millign) are pledged as secunty

for the long term financing (note 20}

In addition property plant and equipment of a further six supermarket properties with a net book value of £74 mithon (2006 £75 milhion) has been
pledged as security to underpin the residual value guarantee given by the Group with regards to 16 supermarket properties sold m March 2000 and

ten supermarket properties sold in July 2000 {note 37)

Analysis of assets held under finance leases - Group

2007 2006
Em £m
Land and buildings
Cost 53 55
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 21) (21)
Net book value 32 34
12 Intangible assets
Pharmacv
Goodwill licences Software Toial
£m Em £m £m
Cost
At 26 March 2006 109 36 120 265
Additions - - 7 7
Acquisition of subsidraries (note 33) 3 - - 3
Part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank - - (12 (12}
At 24 March 2007 112 36 115 263
Accumulated amortisation and impatrment
At 26 March 2006 - 14 &0 74
Amorhisation expense {or the year - 3 18 21
Parl dispesat of Sansbury s Bank - - 7 (3]
At 24 March 2007 - 17 71 88
Net book value at 24 March 2007 112 19 a4 175
Cost
At 27 March 2005 106 35 115 256
Addiions - 1 5 5]
Acquisition of subsichanes 3 - - 3
AL 25 March 2006 109 36 120 265
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 27 March 2005 - 12 a1 53
Amortisation expense for the year - 2 19 21
At 25 March 2006 - 14 60 74
Net book value al 25 March 2006 108 22 60 191

The noodwil balance above relates to the Croup s acquired subsidiaries - Bells Stores Ltd Jacksons Stores Lig JB Beaumont Lid St Shaw Lig and
Culcheth Provisson Stores Ltd - and 1s allecated to the respective cash generating units { CGUs ) withn the retail segment The CGUS for this purpose
are deemed (o be the respective acquired retail chawns of stores The value of the goodwill + as tested for impairment during the current financial year

by means of comparing the recoverable amount of each CGU Lo the carrying value ol its goodwili

To calculate the CGU s value in use Board approved cash flows lor the Tollowing financial year are assumed {0 inflate al the long term average growth
rate for the UK jood retail sector and are discounted at ten per cent (2006 ten per cenl) Based on the operating performance of the respective CGUs

no impairment loss was deemed necessary In the current financial year {2006 Enil)
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Notes to the financral statements continued

13 Investments in subsidiaries

2007 2006
Em Em
Shares In subsidiaries - Company
Begmning of year 7 225 5764
tnvestment 1n subsidharies 21 1,463
Acquisition of subsidiaries 3 6
Part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank (77 -
Provision for diminution in value of investment (&) 8)
End of year 7.166 7225
The Company's principal operaiing subsidiaries are
Share of ordinary Country of
2itolied capital ano 1R6rS1Talon i
voting nghts ingorparation
Beils Stores Ltd 100% England
Jacksons Stores Ltd 100% England
JS Insurance Ltd 100% Isle of Man
JS tinformation Systems Ltd 100% England
Sainsbury s Supermarkets Ltd 100% England
Swan Infrastructure Heldings Ltd 100% England
All principal operating subsidharies apérate in the countries of ther registration orincorperation and have been consohdated up to and as at
24 March 2007
14 Investments in Joint ventures
Group Company
Group share of
Shares  post acquisition Shares
at cost reserves Total at cost
£m Emn fm £m
AL 26 March 2006 ) 4 10 a
Addition of Sainsbury s Bank (note 7) 70 i8 88 70
Share of retained profit - - - -
At 24 March 2007 76 22 98 76
At 27 March 2005 ) 4 10 [3
Share of retained profit - - - -
At 25 March 2006 6 4 10 6

The Group share of post acquisition reserves includes £18 milhon relating to 50 per cent of Sainsbury s Bank retained earnings as a subsidiary prior to it

beceming ajoint venture (nole 7)

‘he G oup s prome gt ot

crc

Share ol Coun ry ol

o gnary req.stration or

Year end  aliotied camial wicorporation

Hedge End Park Ltd (property investment - UK) 24 March 50% England
Boutigue Sainsbury SARL (food retailing - France) 31 December 50% France
Samnshury s Bank pic {hnanoial serages - UKY 21 March 5094 Erntand

Management accounts fer the joint ventures have been used to include the reésulls up to 24 March 2007
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Notes to the financial statements continued

14 Investment in Joint ventures continued

The Group s share of the assets habilities income and expenses of its principal jomt venlures are detailed below

2007 2006

£m £m

Mon current assets 577 2
Current assets 1,140 9
Current liabiities {1,376) (1)
Non current_habihties {242) -
Net assets 98 10
Income 33 4
Expenses (33) {4)
Proftt after lax - -

15 Inventories

2007 08

£m im

Goods held for resale 590 576

The amount of inventeries recognised as an expense and charged to cost of sales for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007 was £12 801 mallion
(2005 £11 875 milion)

16 Receivables

{a} Trade and other recetvables

Group Company
2007 2006 zootr 2006
£m £m £m £m
Non-current
Amounts due from Group entities - - 869 1751
Other receivables 50 - 50 -
50 - 919 1,751
Current
Trade receivables 30 33 - -
Amounts dug from Group entities - - 374 148
QOther recewvables &5 54 1 2
95 87 375 150
Prepayments and accrued income 102 189 - -
197 276 375 150

Trade recetvables are non wnlerest beanng and are on commergial ierms Current olher recevables are generally non interest bearing
Concentrations of credit nisk with respect io tradge and current other recevables are irmted due {0 the Group s customer base being large and unielated

Non current other receivables of £50 msllvon comprise £20 milhion of ftoating rate sgbaerdinated undated Joan capital and £30 million of fioating rate
subordinated dated loan capital due [rom Sainsbury s Bank (note 34)

in the prigr hnancial year >ainsoury 3 Bank pic was a suosihary 01 [ne Group ana LNe t0an capilal recervable of »55 muhon was elminaleo on
consohdationin the Group financial statements and included as part of Amounts due from Group entities 10 the Company hinancial statements

In the current hinancial year as part of the lransaction on 8 February 2007 (note 7) £5 million of the Company s loan capilal due from Sainsbury s Bank
(£2 millton of undated loan capiial and £3 muillion of dated loan capital) was repaid by HBOS plc at par vaiue
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16 Receivables continued

(b} Amounts due from Samnsbury's Bank customers and other banks

2007 2006
£m £m

Non-current
Loans and advances to customers - 1,487
Impairment of loans and advances - (14)
- 1473

Current

Laans and advances to customers - 1 D49
Loans to other banks - 996
Impawrment af taans and advances - (157
- 1,888

Loans and advances to customers and other banks accrue interest at commerctal borrowing rates

A{ 24 March 2007 Sainsbury s Bank plc s equity accounted fer as a Joint venture (note 7) and hence 1ts assets and llabilities are no longer censohdated in

the Group's batance sheet

17 Available-for-sale financial assets

2007 2006
Em £Em

Non-current
Unhsted equily investments 1 1
Diher hinancial asset 136 11z
137 113

Current

At far value
Treasury bills - a7
Floating rate noles - s
- 52

The other financial asset represents the Group s beneficial interest in a property investment pool

18 Non-current assets held for sale

Assets held for sale of £25 mithon (2006 £25 millicn) consist of preperties held in the retall operations division Sale of these assets 1s expected lo ogcur

in the next {inancial year begianing 25 March 2007
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19 Payables
{a) Trade and other payables
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m Em £fm £m
Current
Trade payables 1,706 1419 - -
Amounts due to Group entifies - - 4,463 5074
Other payables 365 418 11 45
Accruals and deferred income 196 257 - -
2,267 2 094 4,474 5119
Non-current
Amounts due to Group entities - - 740 782
Accruals and deferred income a3 30 - -
33 30 740 782

The Group s pohcy en payment of credilors s to agree terms of payment prior 1o commencing trade with a supplier and Lo abide by those terms on the
timely submussion of satisfaciory invorces

Deferred income relates to the accounting for feases with fixed rental increases and lease incentives on a straight line basis over the term of the lease

{b) Amounts due to Sainsbury's Bank customers and other banks

2007 2006
Em £m
Current
Customer accounts - 2299
Non-current
Depostits b, banks - 1 C09

Amounts due to Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks are generally repayable on dernang and accrue (nterest at commercial borrowing rates

Al 24 March 2007 Sainsbury s Bank plc 15 equily accaunted for as a jomni venture (note 7) and hence 1is assets and habwlities are no longer consolidated in
the Greup s balance sheet
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Notes to the financial statements continued

20 Boerrowings

Graup Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £Em Em
Short-term berrowings
Bank overdrafis 363 186 259 166
Bank loans - 50 - 50
8% Irredeemable unsecured lean stock - 5 - 5
B shares habihity 10 12 10 12
373 253 269 233
Long-term berrowings
Secured loans
12 year toan due 2018 1,142 1186 - -
25 year loan due 2031 B97 895 - -
Unsecured loans
Loan from minority shareholder - 45 - -
Obhgations under finance leases 51 52 - -
2,090 2,178 - -
Total borrowings 2,463 2431 269 233

Banhk overdrafts and bank loans
Bank cverdrafts are repayable on demand and bank loans have been repaid in the current financtal year Bank overdrafs (2006 and bank loans) carry
floating rates of interest

Irredeematle unsecured loan stock
On 17 August 2006 the eight per cent trreedemable unsecured loan stock in an 1ssue amount of £3 million was receemed at a prermium of £1.4 mithon

B shares habihty

Preference B shares were (ssued on 12 July 2004 as pari of the return ol share capital in that inancial year B shareholders have na veling righls except
In a resolution for the winding up of the Company 1n the event of which they would be entitled to 35 pence per B share and the relevant proportion of the
dividends outstanding

A predarence dwvidend calculated at the rale af 75 per cent of the six month LIBOR 1s paid i respect of outstanding B shares unhil their redemplion
whichas fixed al 35 pence per B share The redemption dates are 18 January and 18 July each year until 18 July 2007 The current preference dividend
rate s 4 30 per cent (2006 3 43 per cent)

Tolal preference dividend paid in respect of B shares amounted to £0 4 milbon (2006 £1 million}

A recencihation of B shares hatlity for the 52 weeks to 24 March 2007 15 shown below

2007 2006

shares shares 2007 2006

rmallien rmulon £m Em
Beginning of year 34 - i2 -
1A% 32 adjustment - 38z - 133
Restated at heginning of year 34 382 12 133
B shares converted to deferred shares and subsequently cancelled - (3200 - (112)
B shares redemption (7) 128) {2} (9)
End of year 27 34 10 12
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20 Borrowings continued

Secured loans
The Group s leng term financing secured on 127 of 1ts supermarket properties {note 1) compnses loans {rom two linance companies as follows

a lised 1ate luan with an outstanding principal value of £0186 million (2006 £1203 nulhon) at a weyghicd averayge fale of « $7 par cont slepping up
to 5 36 per cent from Apnil 2013 (effective interest rate of 5 20 per cent and carrying amount of £1142 milhon (2006 £1186 million)) repayable over
1l years and

aloan with an gutstanding principal value of £863 milthion (2006 £868 millon) at a fixed rate of 2 36 per cent whare principal and interest are upliftad
annually by RPI with a cap at five per cent and floor at nil per cent (effective interest rate of 4 70 per cent and carrying amount of £897 malhon (2006
£895 miilion)) repayable over 24 years

The Group entered into three :mnterest rate swaps to convert £782 million of the £1186 million (2006 £1 203 million} loan from fixed Lo floating rates of
interest This transaction has been accounted for as a fair value hedge (note 30)

Loan from mineority shareholder
At 24 March 2007 Sainsbury s Bank plc is equity accounted for as a joint venture {note 7) and hence the loan from mingrity shareholder s no longer
reflected separately in the Group's balance sheet

Obhigations under finance leases
Present value of mimum

Mimimum lease payments lease payments
2007 2006 2007 006
Em Em Em £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within 1 year 3 3 - -
Within 2 Le 5 years inclusive 13 13 1 1
After 5 years 198 211 S0 51
214 227 51 52
Less future finance charges (163) (175}
Present value of lease obligations 51 52
Disclosed as
Current - -
Non current 51 52
51 52

Finance leases have efiective milerest rates of 4 30 per cent to 8 50 per cent {2006 4 30 per cent ta 900 ger cent) The average remaining lease term s
78 years (2006 99 years)

Borrowing facilities
In February 2007 the Group converted its existing £400 mullion 364 day revelving Credst faciity with a 12 month term out option into a new £400 million
five year revotving credit faciity As at 24 March 2007 there were Enif drawings under this faolty (2006 £nil drawings under 2006 bank facility)
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Notes to the financ:al statements continued

21 Deferred taxation

The movements in deferred income tax asseis and habibties during the financal year prior 1o the ofisetting of the balances within the same tax
wirisdiction are shown below

Atcelerated tax Fair value

<ep €Cr'Icn 3. Qe Toral
Group £Em Em £m Em
Deferred income tax habilities
At 26 March 2006 (158) 20 {30) (208)
Charge to income statement {45) - <) (54)
Charge to equity - (7 - (7)
Part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank - - 2 (2}
Reclassification 3 {2} 2 3
At 24 Mareh 2007 (200} (29} {39) (268}
Al 27 March 2005 {152) (=) 27 (185}
tAS 38 adjustment - (7 - {7)
Restated at 27 March 2005 (152) (13) 27} {192)
Charge tg iIncome siatement {&) - (3} {9
Charge to equity - (7) - [¥5]
At 25 Mareh 2006 (158) 2m (30} {208)

Retirement
benefn Share-based
Provisions obhgations payment Tan losses fotal
£m £Em Em £m Em

Deferred income tax assets
At 26 March 2006 22 227 13 H 263
(Charge)/credit to income statement {5} {127y 10 - (122}
(Chargel/credit to equity - (52) 7 8 (a7
Part cisposal of Satnsbury s Bank - - - (1 (1)
Reclassifrcation 3 - - - (3
At 24 March 2007 14 48 30 8 100
At 27 March 2005 22 161 1 - 184
(Charge)/credd to wncome statement - {9} 7 1 (1)
Credit to equity B 75 5 - 80
At 25 March 2006 22 227 13 1 263
Net deferred income tax {(hability}/asset
At 24 March 2007 1168}
At 25 Mareh 2006 55
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21 Deferred taxation continued

Faur value
losses.
Company Em
Deferred income tax assets
At 26 March 2006 7
Charge to income statement {6)
At 24 March 2007 1
At 27 March 2005 -
1AS 39 adjustment 7
Restated at 27 March 2005 7
Charge to income statement or equity -
At 25 March 2006 7

Delerred iIncome tax assels have been recognised in respect of all income tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred income
tax asseis because t)s probable that these assets will be recovered Deferred income tax assets and habiulities are only offset where there 1s a legatly
enforceable nght of affset and there is an intention to settle the balances eon a net basis

Dn 21 March 2007 the Chancellar announced that with effect from 1 Apnl 2008 the standard rate of UK Corporation tax wil reduce frem 30 per cent

to 28 per cent Based on the reduced Corporation tax rate of 2B per cent the Group deferred tax habihty at 24 March 2007 would reduce by less than
£15 rralhion

22 Provisions

Group Company
Restructuring Long
Onergus and disposal service Onerous Disposal
leases provisons awards Total lesses arovision To.al
£m Em £em £m £m £m £€m
At 26 March 2006 56 123 7 186 7 26 33
Charge to income statement
- Addhtional provisions g - - 8 - - -
- Unused amounts reversed (5) - - (5) - - -
Utihsation ol provision (14) {80 - (94) - n (1)
Transfer to rehirement benelit obligations {note 31} - (13} - (13) - - -
Amaortisation of discount 1 - - 1 - - -
At 24 Marceh 2007 46 30 7 83 7 25 32
Group Compam,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Em Em Em £m
Disclosed as
Current 14 91 2 2
Nen current &9 g5 30 31
83 186 32 33

The anerous lease provision covers ressidual lease commutments of up to 27 years (2006 28 years) alter allowance for existing or anticipated sublet
rental income

The restructuning provisons of £S milhon (2006 E9T milhon) relate to the Business Review and 17 insourceng costs and are expected to be ubihsedin the
tinancial year beginning 25 March 2007 The disposal provisions of £25 milhon (2006 £26 million) relate to indemnibies ansing trom the tsposal ot
subsicianies the timing of utilsation of which is uncertamn

Long service awards are accrued over the period the service s provided by the employee
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23 Called up share capital and share premium account

2007 2006 2007 2006
mllion malhon Em Em
Group and Company
Authorised share capital
Ordinary shares of 284/; pence each (2006 284/; pence) 2,450 2,450 700 700
Preference B shares of 35 pence each {2006 35 pence) 2,100 2100 735 735
Called up share capital
Allotted and fully paid - ordinary shares 1,734 1711 495 489
Share premium account
Share premium 857 782
The movements in the called up share capital and share premium account are set out below
Ordinary Ornary Share
shares B shares shares B shares premum
milion milion £m £m Em
At 26 March 2006 1,711 - 489 - 782
Allotied in respect of share option schemes 23 - [ - 75
At 24 March 2007 1,734 - 495 - 857
At 27 March 2005 1702 3Bz 487 133 761
1AS 32 adjustment - 1382) - (133) 1
Restated at 27 March 2005 1702 - 487 - 762
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 9 - 2 - 20
At 25 March 2006 1711 - 489 - 782

In the prror inancial year B shares were reciassified as short term borrowings (note 200 on adeplion of 1AS 32 Financial Instruments Drsclosure
and Presentation

24 Capital redemption and other reserves

Group and
Lompan, Graup
Camtat Currency Actuanal Available Cash liow Total
redemphion translation gains/ for sale hedge other
reserye 1eserve (losses} assets reserve resarves
£m Cm m m £m £m
At 26 March 2006 668 [$3] 90) 90 - [§8]
B shares redemption 2 - - - - -
Actuarial gans en defined benel pension schemes - - 127 - - 127
Avatlable for sale financial assels
fair value movements - - - t7 - 17
At 24 March 2007 670 n 37 107 - 143
At 27 March 2005 547 3 90 - - 87
1AS 39 adjustment - - - 71 - 71
Resltaled at 27 March 2005 547 3) S0 71 - 158
B shares redemption 121 - - - - -
Currency translabion titierences - 2 - - - 2
Actuarial losses on defined benelit pension schemes - - (180 - - {180)
Available for sale inancial assets
fair value movements - - - 19 - 19
Cash flow hedges
effective porion of {air value movements - - - - 1 1
transferred to mncome statement - - - - (1} (1)
At 25 March 2006 668 n 150} 90 - {1}

70 J Sainsbury plc Annual Report and Financial Slatements 2007




Notes to the financiat statements continued

25 Retained earnings

Group Company
Prohit ana Total retanea Retainec
. Gwn shares loss account earmngs earmngs
£m £m Em Em
at 26 Maich 2006 \Bey 2 632 1 S48 1652
Proiit for the year - 325 325 190
Divigdends pavd ~ i1a(y {140} {140
Share based payment - 55 55 -
B shares redemption - 2) 2) (2)
Shares vested 1 - i -
Allotted n respect of share option schemes$ - 3) (3) -
At 24 March 2007 (83) 2,267 2,184 1,740
At 27 March 2005 (85) 2 057 2012 1,696
[AS 32 and IAS 39 adjusiments - (17} (17} (17}
Restated at 27 March 2005 (85) 2 080 1 995 1679
Prolit for the year - 64 64 153
Dwtdends paird - {131 (131) {131)
Share hased payment - 28 28 -
B shares redemption - (N (9) (9)
Shares vested H - 1 -
Al 25 March 2006 {84) 2032 1 948 1692

Own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Plan { 'ESOP"'} trusts

The Group owned 23 567107 (2006 24 224 676) of its ordinary shares of 284/7 pence nominal value each At 24 March 2007 the tolal nominal vatue
of the own shares was £67 mithon {2006 £63 mithon)

43 450 (2006 404 228) of the own shares are held by an ESOP trust on behalf of certain Directars and senior employees under the Group s Performance
Share Plan The remaining 23 523 657 shares (2006 23 820 448) are held by an ESOP trust for the Executive Share Opligon Plan The ESOP trusts waive
the reghts to the dividends recevable in respect of the shareholder under the above schemes

The coslt of {he own shares 1s deducied from equity in the Group financial statements The market value of the own shares at 22 March 2007 was
£129 5 mithon (2006 £801 milion)
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26 Reconcihiation of movements in equity

Capstal
Lalled up Share redemption Equity
share premium and other Retaned sharehalders Minarity Total
capial acgoun! reserves earnings fungs nterests etuily
Group im im £m £m tm Em £m
At 26 March 2006 489 782 667 1948 3,886 79 3 365
Profit for the year - - - 325 325 (1) 324
Dividends paid - - - (140} (140 - (140)
Share based payment - - - 55 55 - 55
Part disposal of Sainsbury’s Bank - - - - - (78) (78)
Actuarnial gains on defined beneft pension schemes - - 127 - 127 - 127
Avallable for sale inancial assets
fair value movements - - 17 - i7 ~- 17
B shares redemption - - 2 12) - - -
Shares vested - - - 1 1 - 1
Allotted in respect of share oplion schemes 6 75 - {3 78 - 78
At 24 March 2007 495 857 813 2,184 4,349 - 4,349
At 27 March 2005 620 761 634 2012 4027 a5 4112
IAS 32 and 1AS 39 adjustments {133 1 T1 {17 {78) - {78)
Restated at 27 March 2005 487 762 705 1,995 3949 85 4334
Prohit for the year - - - 64 64 &) 58
Dividends paid - - - (i31) (131) - {131)
Share based payment - - - 28 28 - 28
Currency translation differénces - - 2 - 2 - 2
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pansion schemes - - (180) - (1BD) - (180)
Available for sale hinancial assets
fair value movements - - 19 - 19 - 19
Cash flow hedges
elfective partion of fair value movements - - 1 - 1 - 1
transferred to income statement - - (1) - n - (1)
B shares redemption - - i21 (9 112 - il2
Shares vested - - - 1 1 - 1
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 2 20 - - 22 - 22
At 25 March 2006 489 782 667 1948 3 886 75 3 G965
Called up Share Capral
share premium redemption Retaned
cam al Aot resar @ @arnings To W eguil,
Company Em £m Em £m £m
At 26 March 2006 489 782 668 1692 3631
Frofit for the year - - - 190 190
Dividends paid - - - (140} {140}
B shares redemption - - 2 2) -
Allotted m respect of share oplion schemes 6 75 - - 81
At 24 March 2007 495 857 670 1,740 3,762
Al 27 March 2005 620 761 547 1 696 3624
1AS 32 and I1AS 39 adjustments (133) 1 - (17 (149)
Restated at 27 March 2005 487 762 547 1679 347%
Frofd for the yaar - - - 153 153
Bridends pard - - - (131) (131
B shares redemption - - 121 (9 112
AMotted i respect of share option schemes 2 20 - - 22
AL 25 March 2006 48% 782 668 1692 363t
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27 Notes to the cash flow statements

(a} Reconcihiation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Em Em Em £m
QOperating profit 520 229 6 48
Adyustments for
Depreciation expense 479 449 2 3
Amorlisation expense 21 21 - -
Profil on sale of propertlies (7 (8] 5) (50}
Profit on part disposal of Sainshury s Bank {10} - (11} -
Prowvision for diminution in value of investment - - 6 -
Foreign exchange differences 6 - - (30}
Share based paymenls expense 38 23 - -
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 1,047 721 {2) 29)
Changes in working capital
Ingcraase 0 nventones (12} (17) - -
(IncreaseXdecrease i current available for sale financial assets (45) 38 - -
(Increase)/decrease (n trade ang other recervables (50) 7 624 1337
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks 188 (BO5) - -
Increasef{decrease} tn trade and other payables 314 83 {788) 1,808
{Decrease)/increase in amounts due to Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks {198) 819 - -
Decrease in provisions and other liabilitres’ (414) (66) - -
Cash generated from operatians 830 780 1166} 3116
I Includes £220 nubon (2006 £10 milkon} of cash pand inta the dehined benelit pension schemes (nate 31)
{b) Cash and cash equivaients
For the purposes of the cash flow statements cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
Groun Lompany
2007 2005 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 1,128 i 028 523 411
Bank overdralls (note 20) (363) {186) {259} (166}
765 B4z 264 245
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28 Analysts of net debt

Qther

26 Warth non-tash 24 March
2006 Cash fiow Disposals movements 2007
£m Em £m Em £m
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding Samsbury s Bank) B62 266 - - 1,128
Sainsbury s Bank cash and cash equivalents 166 (166} - - -
1028 100 - - 1,128
Current habiities
Bank averdralts (186) (177} - - {363)
Borrowings 67 57 - - 110}
Dernivateve financial instruments (Q4)] - - 8 2}
263 (120) - 8 (375)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings (2 081) 22 - 20 (2,039)
Finance leases {52) - - 1 {51)
Loan from minority sharehalder 435 - 45 - -
Derwative hnancoial instruments {2) - (41} {43)
(2 180) 22 45 (20 (2,133}
(2 443) a8} 45 (12) (2,508}
Totat net debt {1 415) 2 45 {12) (1,380

et debt incorporates the Group s barrowmngs (including accrued interest) bank overdraits fair value of derivatives and obligations under {inance leases

less cash and cash equivalents

At 24 March 2007 Sainsbury s Bank plc s equity accounied for as a joint venture (note 7) and hence 1ts net debt 15 not included within Group net deht

Reconcibation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

2007 2006

Em £€m
(Decrease)/increase n cash and cash equivalents (77) 142
Decrease in debt 79 91
Loan disposed of with part disposal of Samsbury s Bank 45 -
Repayment of inance leases - 1
Other non cash movements (12} 5)
Decrease in net debt before impact of tAS 32 and IAS 39 35 229
IAS 32 and 1AS 3% adjustments Lo net debt - (203)
Decrease 1n net debt in the year 35 26
Opening net debt at the beginning of the year (1,415) (1441)
Closing net debt at the end of the year {1,3800 (1415
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29 Financial risk management

Treasury management

Treasury policies are reviewed and approved by the Board The Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer have joint delegated authority
from the Board to appruve finance transaclivns up tu £300 milhon

The central ireasury functron s responsible for managing the Group s
hquid resources funding requirements and inlerest rate and currency
exposures Group policy permits the use of derivative instruments but
only for reducing exposures aristng fram underlying business activity
and not for specuiative purposes

Financial instruments

The Group holds or 1ssues financial instruments to finance its operations
and lo manage the interest rate and currency risks associated withts
sources of finance Various other financial instruments e g trade receivables
and payables also arise out of the Group s commercial operations

The Group hinances (ts operations by a combination of secured loans

irom finance companies unsecured bank loans share capifal and cash
generated by operating subsidiaries The Group borrows in sterhing at fixed
fioating and inflation linked rates of interest using swaps and options
where appropriale Lo generale the desired interest rate profile The main
nsks arising from the Group s use of inancial instruments include interast
and loreign exchange rate rnisk liquidity risk and credit risk

Interest rate nsk

The Group s exposure to inerest rate {Juctuations 1s managed through
the use of interest rate swaps and opbons The Groups cbjectives are

to match the inlerest rate profiles of its barrowings to that of s revenues
to minimise interest expense and reduce rate volatihiy by holding an
apprapriate mix of borrowings at fixed floating and inflatign inked rates
of interest Group policy provides that the relative proportion of fixed
fleating and inflation linked borrowings may be vaned within defined
bands around neutral benchmarks

Currency risk

The Group incurs currency expasure in respect ¢f overseas trade purchases
made 1n currencies other than sterhng The Group uses a programme of
rolhing forward contracts to reduce the exchange rate risk associated with
these purchases which may e edher contracied or not contracted Gans
and losses on these contracts are deferred in equity when the transaction
guahlies for hadge accounling in accordance with 1AS 39 Financiat
instruments Recognition and Measurement

Liquidity risk

The Groups exposure o hguwdity risk 1s managed by pre funding cash flow
requirements and maturing debt obhgations mamtaining a diversity of
funding sources and spreading debt repayments over a range of maturitres

The Group s core funding takes the form of term loans secured over
property assets Short term funds are raised on the wholesale money
markels Contingent hquidity 15 maintained through a new £400 milhon
five year revolving credit facility entered wnto in February 2007 As at
24 March 2007 there were Enil drawings under thus facilily (2006 Lol
drawings under 2006 bank lfaciity)

Credit rnisk

The Group s exposure to credit risk 1s managed by imiting credit positions
10 banks ar financial institutions carrying A1/P1 credit ratings Counterparly
exposures are mumnilored on a reduilar basis and daaling aclivity 18 contrulled
through the use of dealing mandales and the operation of standard
settiement instructions

Fair value estimation

The fair values of short tesrn deposits recevables overdrafts payables
and loans of a matunty of iess than one year are assumed Lo approumate
to their book values

The fair value of interest rate swaps s based on the market price of
comparable instruments at the balance sheet date if they are publicly
traded The fair value of the forward currency coniracts has been
determuned based an market {orward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date

Inthe case ef bank loans and cther loans tue after more than one year
the fair vatue of inancial lzabtiitties for thsclosure purposes is esbimated
by disceunting the futyre contractuat cash flows at the current markel
interest rate avadable to the Group for simular financal instruments

The fair value of the ather financial assel 15 based on the market values
of the unde:slying property porticho
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Notes to the financial statements continued

30 Financial instruments

Group Cempany
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m Em £m

Derivative liabilities
Current
Interest rate swaps - non designated hedges {2) {10} (2) (10}
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - far value hedge {43) (2) (43) 2)

Interest rate swaps - non-designated hedges

The Group maintains two interest rale swaps thal convert tioating rate borrowings inta hixed rates of interest Under the terms of the first swap the
Group pays a fixed rate of 4 09 per cent and recerves three month LIBOR on £150 milhon to November 2030 The counterparty may exercise an option
to cancel this swap on quarterly dales through to August 2030 Under the terms of Lhe second swap the Group pays a fixed rate of 6 40 per cent and
receives a fixed spread above six month LIBOR on £100 milion to July 2008 The counterparty may exercise an option to cancel this swap in July 2007

interest rate swaps - iar value hedge

The Group has entered into three interest rate swaps to convert a totat of £782 mullion of the fixed rate secured loan due in 2018 to fleating rates of
interest (note 20) Under the terms of the swaps lhe Group receives fixed interest at rates varying from 4 86 per cent to 5 22 per cent and pays floating
rate interest af fixed spreads above three monih LIBOR The nehional principat amount of ¢ne of Lhe interest rate swaps amortises from £421 milhon to
£221 milhen from April 2036 to Apnl 2018

Foreign exchange forward contracts - cash flow hedges

Al 24 March 2007 the Group held a partfolio of foreign exchange forward contracts with a fair value of £E(0 4) milhon (2006 £0 2 maillion) to hedge its
exposure to fereign exchange rate nisk on its future highly probable trade purchases The Group has purchased €110 million (Z006 €126 million) and
sold steriing at rates ranging from 0 68 Lo 071(2006 0 69 to D70) with matunties from April 2007 to Janvary 2008 (2006 Apri to November 2006)
and purchased USS66 milkion (2006 US$48 milhion) and sold sterbng at rates ranging from 179 to 198 (2006 172 to 1 79) with maturities from Apnil
2007 to February 2008 (2006 April to November 2006)

At 24 March 2007 an unrealised loss of £01 midlion {2006 gan of E0 2 mitlion}1s included in eguity m respect of these contracts These losses will be
Iransferred Lo the income slatement over the next i monlhs from balance sheet dale

Interest rate risk

Iinterest on financial instruments classilied as floating rate 1S repriced at intervals of less than one year Interest on hinancial instruments classified as
fixed rate s fixed unttl matunity of the instrument The other inancial instruments of {he Group and Company thal are not included in the tables below
are non interest bearing and are therefarg nol subject tointerest rate 115k

The following tables sets out the carrying amount by maturity of the frinancial instruments that are exposed tointerest rate risk

Less than One to Two to Mare than
one year two years five years lve years Total

£m Em £m Em £m
Group
2007
Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 1,128 - - - 1,128
Other receivables - - 20 30 S0
Bank overdrafts (363} - - - {363)
B shares hability (10} - - - {1
Secured loan due 20312 5) - (25} 867) (897)
Interest rate swaps on secured loan dug 2018 - - - (782) (782)
Qther interest rate swaps' - 100 - 150 250
Fixed rate
Sevuted wan due 2018 {35} 25 {85} {857, (i,142)
Interest rate swaps an secured loan due 2018 - - - 782 782
Other interest rate swapst - {100} - (150) 250
Finance lease obhigations - - 1} (&1 (51)

I Olheranterest rate swans tancellabie at 1he OP1OI OF 1he count 2IDd Ly
2 Prncpt redemgtaon profde of intlation LU oon Based on RP i dethions ¥ ba o/ theel da e
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Motes to the hnancial statements continued

30 Financial instruments continuad

Less than One to Two 10 More than
one year twp years {ive years five years Total
Em £m £m £m Em

Group
2006
Floatmg rate
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 1028 - - - 1028
Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank custormers and other banks 754 - - 198 952
Bank overdraflts (186) - - - (186)
Bank ioan {50 - - - (50)
B shares habihty {12) - - - 12)
Secured loan due 2031 N (7 29 (852) 1895)
Interest rate swaps on secured loan due 2018 - - - {782) {782)
Other interest rate swaps' - - 100 150 250
Loan {from minority shareholder - - (18) 27) (45)
Amounts due to Sainsbury s Bank customers and ather banks (2 299) - - - (2 29%9)
Fixed rate
Available for sale financial assets 52 - - - 52
Amounts due from Sansbury s Bank customers and other banks 1408 339 590 72 2 409
Irredeemable unsecured loan stock (5) - - - 5}
Amounts due 1o Sainsbury s Bank customers and olher banks {404) (483) (122) - (1 009)
Secured loan due 20i8 (17) (27) {89) (1 053) (1 186}
Interest rate swaps an secured loan due 2018 - - - 782 782
Other interesi rate swaps' - - (100) (150) {250)
Finance lease obligations - - (1) (51) (52)
Company
2007
Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 523 - - - 523
Amounis due from Group entities 50 - - - 50
Other recewvables - - 20 30 S0
Bank overdrafts (259 - - - (259)
B shares liabshty (10) - - - (10}
Amounts due te Group enlities (3,763) - - - {3,763)
Intergst rate swaps on amount due o Group entity in 2018 - - - (782) (782)
Qther interest rate swaps! - 100 - 150 250
Frxed rate
Amounis due {rom Group entities 209 - - 869 1,078
Amount due to Group entity in 2018 - - - 1740} {740Q)
Other payables 5) - - - {3}
nterest rate swaps on amount due to Group entily in 2018 - - - 782 782
Otner interest rate swaps! - (100) - {150) [250)
2006
Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 411 - - - 411
Amounls dug [rom Group entibies 47 - 22 33 102
Bank overdrafts (166) - - - (166)
Bank loan [E]e}] - - - 50)
R <harps hatlity 12y - - - (B4
Amounls due {o Group eniilies {5 024) - - - (5024}
Interest rate swaps on amount due to Group entity in 2018 - - - 1782} 1782
Gther interest rate swaps! - - 100 150 250
Fixed rate
Amogunis due from Group entities - 3i4 - 1382 1656
Amouni due to Group entity in 2018 - - - (782} (782)
irredeemabte unsecured loan stock (5) - - - (5)
interest rate swaps on emount due to Group entiy 1n 2018 - - - 782 782
Other interest rate swaps’ - - (100} (150) {250}

1 Other inl#i est rale Swaps LanCelabic At the opton ot 1he counlerparty
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Notes to the financial statements continued

30 Financial instruments continued

Foreign currency risk

The Group has net euro denominated trade creditors of £12 million (2006 £5 milion} and US dollar denominated trade creditors of £(5) miign
(2006 £4 miilion}

Fair value
Se{ out below 15 a comparison by calegory ol carrying amounts and fair values of all financial instruments that are carried in the financial statements

at other than fair values The fair values of short term deposits recewvables overdralls payables and loans of a maturity of less than one year are
assumed to approxmate to their book values and are excluded from the analysis betow

Group Company
Carrying Carrysng
Imgunt Fair value amount Fair value
£€m Em Em £m

2007
Financial assets
Amounis due from Group enbities - - B&9 869
Other recervables 50 50 50 50
Financial habibties
Amounts due te Group entities - - (740) (740}
Secured loans! (2,039) (2,088 - -
Obiltgations under finance leases (51) {51} - -
2006
Financial assets
Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank custemers 1473 1473 - -
Amounts due from Group entities - - 1751 1751
Financial iabilities
Amounts due Lo Sainsbury s Bank custemers and other banks (1009 (1009} - -
Amounts due Lo Group entities - - (782) {782)
Secured loans! (2 081) (2 081) - -
Loan from minornty shareholder {45) (45) - -
Obligations under finance leases {52) (52) - -

1 Intluctes E782 milhon accounted tor ds a lar value hedge

31 Retirement benefit obligations

Retirement benelit oblhigations relate o twe funded defined benefit schemes the J Sainstury Pension and Dealh Benefit Scheme ( JSPDBS ) and the
J Sansbury Executive Pensian Scheme ( JSEPS ) and an unfunded pensien liatnlity relating to semor employees The defined benefit schemas were
closed 1o new employees on 31 January 2002 The assets of Lhese schemes are held separately from the Group s assets

The defined benefit schemes were subject to a triennial valuation carned oul by Watson Wyalt the schemes independent actuaries at March 2006
on the projected unil basis The results of this vaiuation are expecled to be approved by the schemes Lrustees in June 2007 The retirement benefit
obhgations at 24 March 2007 has been calculated where appropriate on a basis consistent with this draft valuation

The unfunded pension hability 1s unwound when each employee reaches retirerent and takes their pension from the Group payroll or 15 ¢rystatised
in the event of an employee teaving or retining and choosing {o take the provision as a one olf cash payment

As part ol the £350 million one off contnibution te the defined benelit schemes the Group made the second tranche payment of £240 mullion gn
19 May 2006 (2006 E£10 milion paid an 24 March 2006)

The amaunts recognised 1n the balance sheet are as follows

2007 2006
£m m

Present value of funded oblrgations (4 395) {4 361)
Fair vaiue of plan assets 4 298 3710
97) (651)

Present value of unfunded obhigations 16) ("N
Relirement benefit obligations (103} (658)
Deferred income iax asset 48 227
Net retirement benefit obligabwons 55 (431}

The relirement benefit cbhgatians and the associated deferred income tax asset are shown within different fine items on the face of the balance sheet
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MNotes to the financial statements continued

31 Retirement benefit obhgations continued

The amounts recogmsed In the Income statement are as follows

2007 2006

Em £m

Current service cost - funded schemes {76} {68}
Current service cost - unfunded scheme - 1)
Past service cost {11) 2
included in employee cosls (note &) (87) 181)
Past service gains on defined benelit schemes (note 6) 72 -
Total included in employee cosls (15) 181}
tnterest cost on pension scheme habilities 212) (190)
Expected return on ptan assets 253 23
Total included in finance income (note 5) 41 23
Tatal income statement income/(expense) 26 (58)

Of the expense recogmised in aperating profit £il milion (2006 £65 mithon) s included in cost of sales and £4 million (2006 E16 millieny 1s included

n admimstrative expenses
The actual return on pension scheme assets net of expenses was £342 milion (2006 £644 milhion)

The amounts recognised in the slatement of recognised income and expense are as follows

2007 2006

£m £Em

Nel actuarial gatns/{losses) recognised duning the year 179 {255)

Cumulative actuanal gans/tlosses) recogmised 52 (127)
The movements in the lunded retirement henelit obhigatians are as follows

2007 2006

£m Em

Beginnmg of year

{4 361) {3503

Current service cost {76} 68)
Past service cosl (11} t2)
Past service gains (nole 7) 72 -
Interest cost 212) (190
Coniribulions by plan participants (11} 8
Actuarial garns/(losses) 90 683)
Benefits pad 127 103
Transfer {rom provisions {note 22) (13) -
End of year (4,395} 14 361)
The movermnents in the lar value of plan assels are as follows

2007 A

Em Em

Beqginneng of year 3710 2976
Expecled return on plan assets 253 213
Actuanat gains B89 428
Coniributions by employer 362 i88
Corinbutions b, plan partopants i1 <]
Beneiits paid (127) (1Q3)
£nd of year 4,298 3710
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Notes to the financial statements continued

31 Retirement benefit obligations continued

The principal actuaral assumptions used at the balance sheet date are as follows

2007 2006

% %

Discount rate 53 49
Expected return on plan assets 66 686
Future salary wncreases 300 285
Future pensicn Increasas 2 35-300 250-285

A movement of 05 per cent in the discount rale would increase or decrease the relirement benefit obhgations by £500 million

The combined hife expectancy for both the schemes aperated at the balance sheet date for a pensioner at normal retirement age 15 as follows

2007 2006
years years
Male pensioner 214 193
Female pensioner 229 217

In ling with Lhe scheme s experience and the generally observed trend amongst the population a greater allowance for future longevity has been adopted
in respect of the current mortality of pensioners The efiect of this change 15 to assume that a lypical pensioner will live a further 09 years from normat
relirement age This allowance has had the impact of increasing the retirement beneht obhigations by £196 milion compared to using the previous
mortality assumptions

The protile of members and the salary and pension increase assumplions have been updated from the last triennial vafuation The impact of these
changesis to reduce the retirement benelit obhgations by £52 milhon Movements in financial assumptions have resulted in a reduction in retirement
benefit obligations of £108 million with a further actuanal gan on plan assets of £89 millon

Based on past experience the Group has made the assumption that 80 per cent of the schemes members will elect to surrender ane quarter of therr
pension for a cash lump sum payment The impaci ol this commutatien assumplbion s to reduce the retirement benefit obligations by £119 million

These items have been recognised in the Group statement of recogmsed income and expense

In addition following changes introduced by the Finance Act eftective from & April 2006 the dehined benefit sehemes have implemented revised terms
1o provide members with the oplion to surrender a greater proportien ol thewr pension {or a tax free cash lump sum payment The impact of this change
and other minor changes to scheme rutes has been to reduce retirement benefit obligations by £72 milfion This change has resulted in past service gains
of £72 milhan being recognised (n the income statement (nole 71

The major categories of ptan assets as a percentage ol total plan assets are as follows

zoo? 2006

% %

Equities 52 62
Bands 37 33
Property 4 4
Oiher 7 1
100 100

The expected return on assels has been denwved as Lhe weignted average of the expected returns from each of the main asset classes The expected return
far each asset class reflects a combination of histor:cal perlormance analysis the forward Iooking view of the inancial markets (as suggested by the yield
dVaitdDie) a1l LIE VIEWS O iivesirnent Olgdlllhdliur'ls

The history of experience adjustmenls on the ptans for the current and previous hinancial years 15 as (ollows

2007 2006 2005

Em im £m

Present value of retirement henefit obhgations {4,401) (4 368) (3512)
Farvalup of plan agee's 4,298 2710 2976
Delicit (103) {658) (536)
Experience 10ss on plan habilities {236) (27) {6)
Experience gain on plan assets 89 428 134

The expected contnbutions to defined benefst schemes lor the next hnancial year beginming 25 March 2007 are £105 milion
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Notes to the financial statements continued

32 Share-based payments

The Group recogmised £38 midhon (2006 £23 milion) of employee costs (note 6) related 1o share based payment iransacttons made during the

financial year

Nalional msurance cantributions are pavable in respect of certain share based payments transactions and are treated as cash settled transactions
At 24 March 2007 the carrying amount of national insurance contributions payable was £14 milion (2006 £4 mullton) of which £2 million (2006

E1million) was in respect of vested grants
The Group operates various share based payment schemes as set out below

{a) Savings Related Share Option Scheme (“SAYE"}

The Group operates a Savings Relaied Share Option Scheme, which 15 open to atl UK employees with more than three months continuous sefvice

This 1 an approved HMRC Scheme and was established in 1980 Under the SAYE scheme participants remaining in the Group s employment at the end of

the three year or five year savings perod are entitled to use their savings {o purchase shares in the Company at a stated exercise price Employees
leaving for certam reasons are able to use their savings to purchase shares within six months of thewr ieaving

At 24 March 2007 UK employees held 21 833 five year savings contracts (2006 24 033} in respect of options over 20 5 mitlien shares (2006 216 million}

and 24,919 three year savings contracts (2006 23,265) in respect of options over 14 1 mithan shares (2006 13 8 million)

A reconcibatien of option movements i1s shown below

2007 2006
Weighted Wewghted
average averaqe
Number of exercise Number of exercise
options price ontions price
mittlon pence millicn pence
Outstanding at beginruing of year 354 237 332 248
Granted 91 328 132 231
Forfeited 43 236 14 4) 239
Exercised 4 4 272 {3 8) 264
Expired 13 278 30} 288
Qulstanding at end of year 345 256 354 237
Exercisable at end of year 34 247 17 278

The weighied average share price during the penicd for oplions exercised over the year was 510 pence (2006 317 pence}

Details of options at 24 March 2007 are sef out below

Options oulstanding

Esercise price 2007 2006

Date of grant Oate ol eapuy pence milion milhgn
28 November 2000 (5 year penod) 31 August 2006 299 - 11
2Q December 2001 (5 year penod) 31 August 2007 302 04 26
3 January 2003 (3 year period) 31 August 2006 239 - 06
3 January 2003 (5 year peniod) 31 August 2008 239 3o 33
17 December 2003 (3 year pernod) 31 August 2007 241 04 26
17 December 2003 (5 year penod) 31 August 2009 241 30 33
15 December 2004 (3 year penod) 31 August 2008 217 ER-} 41
15 December 2004 (5 year period) 31 August 2010 217 43 48
15 Decamhbor 200513 year nanad) 31 Apgust 2000 2n 53 68
15 Decernber 2005 (5 vear penod) 31 Auqusi 2011 231 56 64
15 Decermber 2006 (3 year perniod) 31 Augqust 2010 328 48 -
15 December 2006 (5 year period) 31 Augusi 2012 328 42 -
345 354
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HNotes to the financial statements continued

32 Share-based payments continued

Options granied during the year were valued using the Black Scholes option pricing model No performance conditions were included in the fair value
calculations The {air value per option granted duning the year and the assumptions used in the calculation are as follows

2007 2004

Share price at grant date (pence) 409 306
Exercise price (pence) 328 231
Expected volatinty - 3 year penod (%} 180 23¢9
- 5 year penod (%) 255 273

Optton Ife -~ 3 year penod (years) 32 32
- 5 year period {years) 52 52

Expecied dividends (expressed as dividend yield %) 23 27
Risk free interesi rate - 3 year period (%) 42 42
- 5 year period (%) 42 42

Fair value per option - 3 year periad (pence} 105 91
-5 year period (pence) 132 103

The expected volatility 1s based on the standard dewviation of the Group s share price for the periad immediately prior to the date of grant of award
over the period identical to the vesting period of the award adjusted for management s view of future volalility of the share price

{b} Colleague Share Option Plan ("CSOP")

The Colleague Share Oplion Plan operates under the rules of the HMRC Approved Disceetionary Share Option Scheme Under the CSOP participants are
granted options to purchase shares of the Company at a stated exercise price The exercise of eptions is conditional upon partictpants remaining in the
employment of the Group for a three year penod aller date of grant Colleagues leaving employment for certain reasons have six manths from their
leaving date to exercise their options

At 24 March 2007 a tolal of 17793 UK employees (2006 54 817) participated in the plan and held aptions over 57 miliion shares {2006 18 6 mdlion}
Gphions have been exercised in respect of 79 milion (2006 32 058) ordinary shares during the year Oplions are exercisable belween three and ten
years from the date of the grant ol option 1L 1s sntended ihat there will be no furiher options granted under this plan

A reconciliation of option movements is shown below

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number af taercise Number gl erercise
aptians price aptions DOce
muklion pence mulkon pence
Quistanding at begimming of yea 186 366 2168 366
Forieited {4 8) 363 (3 3} 365
Exercised {79) 369 - -
Expired 02 37 - -
QOuistanding at end of year 57 365 186 366
Exercisable at end ol year 57 365 18 6 366

The weighted average share price during the period for options exercised over the year was 500 pence (2006 310 pencel

Details of options at 24 March 2007 are set oul below

Options pulstanding

Exarise pice 2007 2006

Date of grant D3e of eagnry pente muthion mulhon
2 August 1999 1 August 2009 378 50 166
2 June 2000 1 June 2010 272 o7 20
57 i8 6
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Notes to the financial statements continued

32 Share-based payments continued
(¢} Executive Share Option Pian (“ESOP™)

Under the Executive Share Opton Plan partitpants were granied options 10 purcnase snares in the Company at a staled exeraise pnce The maximum
annual option award was two Limes basic salary and the grants were agreed by the Remuneration Committee according to the assessed performance and |

potential of participants

The exercise of options s condimonal upon a performance target based on the growth in the Company s underiyiag earnings per share ( EPS') relative
tonflabion over a three year peniod EPS 15 measured against & fixed starting point gver the perfermance perod beginning with the year #n which the
option was granted To the extent that the condition is not satisfied in full after three years, it will be retested on a hixed point pasis over four and then

five financial years To the extent the condition 1s not met after five financial years the oplion wall lapse

Once the options vest participants remaiming in the Group s empleyment or leaving for certain reasons are entitted to exercise the options between
vesting date (normally at the end of the three year performance period) and Lthe option expiry date whichis ten years from date of grant It)sintended

that there will be no {urther options granted under this plan

A reconciliabion of option movements 1s shown below

2007 2006

Werghted Werghted
average average
Number ¢f exercise Number of exercise

sptigns price eptions price i
millfon pEnce milion pence
Qutstanding at beginming of year 368 358 939 313
Forfested [(s33] 400 50 2) 278
Exeroised 115 356 (49) 265
Expired 4 4) 343 2o 475
Qutstanding at end of year 204 is2 368 358
Exercisable at end of year 12 2 420 260 393

The weighted average share price duning the period for gptions exercised over the year was 460 pence (2006 296 pence)

Betails of options at 24 March 2007 are set oul below

Options guistanding

2007 2006

Exercise price

Date ol gran{ Date cf expry pent e malion milhion
20 May 1997 19 May 2007 367 07 22
11 November 1997 10 November 2007 489 o1t a1
10 November 1998 2 November 2008 545 24 29
2 August 1995 1 August 200% 378 18 42
24 November 1999 23 November 2009 320 - 01
2 June 2000 1 June 2010 272 11 50
7 June 2001 6 June 2011 427 29 55
26 July 2001 29 July 2011 407 32 &1
25 July 2002 24 July 2012 287 37 53
22 May 2003 21 May 2013 257 31 490
20 May 2004 19 May 2014 275 14 14

204 288
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MNotes to the financial statements continued

32 Share-based payments continued

{d) Performance Share Plan ("PSP™)

The Performance Share Plan s a long term incenive scheme through which shares are awarded to semor managers on a conditienal basis Under the
PSP participants remaining in the Group s employment or leaving for certain reasons are entitled Lo recerve a grant of options after a performance
perod of three years to acquire the shares awarded to them at any time during the ten years following the date of grant

The participant s entitlement to receve the grant depends on the Company's Total Shareholder Return ( TSR ) - being the increase i the value of a
share, including reinvested dividends, compared with a3 peer group of 12 companies (namely Ahold Athance Boots, Carrefour Casine DSG International
GUS Hingfisher Loblaw Marks & Spencer Morrisons Mext and Tesco) over the three year performance penad

tf the median performance of the TSR against the comparator group 15 not achieved al the end af the three year performance period, the entitlement
to redeve the grant of oplons wiltlapse Al median level shares 10 the value of 30 per et of salary will be refeased and the award will be pro rated

at every position between the median and first posithion in the comparator group The maximum allocation for Directors s a conditional grant of shares
equal to 75 per cent of salary No further allocations will be made under this plan

A reconcihation of the number of shares conditronally allocated 15 shown below

Number of shares

2007 2006

miition ulhion
Quistanding at beqinning of year 22 37
Forfeited 02) 15
Released to participants 0 6) -
Lapsed (C5) -
Quistanding at end of year 09 22

Delails of shares condilionally allocated at 24 March 2007 are set oul below

Shares condihionally alloca’ed

2007 2006
Date o conditional allocation million rmuflory
22 May 2003 - 11
20 May 2004 09 11
o9 22

Conditional awargs of shares that have fulfilled all centhtions at the end of the performance period are represenied by options granted to participants
to acquire the shares awarded Lo them Deltails of the options cutsianding at year end are set out below

2007 2006
Shares Shares
In respect n respect
Exercise price of options ot of tions
Date ot grant Daectepny pente Options granted Ontions grin ed
2% May 20021 28 May 2012 100 - - 1 15,857
17 May 20062 16 May 201é& - 1 13,187 - -
1 13,187 1 15 857

I Orlns granted inrespect of shates conditinally a'.ocated on 26 Jy , 1999
2 Ophwnis granted n resgect of Shares Conditionally d oCated on 22 May 2003

(e) All Employee Share Qwnership Plan

In dune 2063 under the All Employee Share Ownersiup Plan {ree shares were awarded to UK employees with mare than 12 months cenimuous service
The free shargs are being held in 2 trust on behalf of parbicipants and will be forfeited tf participants cease to remamn in the Group 5 employment {or o
penod of three years Shares are released to participants withi the {irst three years {or certam reasans Alter the three year period the shares continue
to be heid by the trust far a further holding period of two years unless they are released 1o participants upon cessatien of employment with the Group

A recenciiation of shares held in the trust 1s shown telow

MNumber of shores

2007 2006
millien maion
Outstanding at beginning of year 17 19
Forfeited {0 1} {02)
Released to participants 01 -
Gulsianding at end of year 15 17
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Notes te the financial statements continued

32 Share-based payments continued

(f) J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 2005

Under the J Sansbury plc Share Plan 2005, shares were awarded to participants on the cenditiona)l basis that the performance targets are achieved
within the {our year performance penod {rom the financial year beginning 27 March 2005 until the financial year ending March 2009 The fevels of
awards are scaled according to semority and there 15 an opportunity for Executive Directors and ehqible Operating Board members to make a personal
investment of up to 50 per cent of salary in the plan

The awards will vest if stretching sales and earnings per share ( EPS ') targets are achieved as shownn {able i below The relevant performance
multipher which s on a shding scale up Lo a maximum of five times, will be calculated and applied to the core award of shares as well as the personal
investment of shares 1 e shares acquired by Executive Directors and eligible Operating Board members Further there 1s an apportunity for partial vesting
of up to half the award, 1 the accelerated performance targels have been met al the end of year three (1€ financial year ending March 2008) as shown in
lable 2 No awards will vest unless threshald (evels of growth in both sales and EPS are achieved

Once performance targets have been achieved oplions will be granted to participants remaming in the Group's employment or leaving for certain
reasons to acquire the shares awarded to them at nil cost The opltions wall expire within a year after the end of the {our year performance period
Dwidends will accrue on the shares that vest in the form of additional shares

In arger te participate i the plan, parbicipants agreed Lo surrender options granted to them under the Company s Executive Share Optioa Plan in 2002
2003 and 2004

Table t - Maturity vesting {multipher applied to the shares)

4 year EPS growth {compound annuaty

Sales growth tn £ bilhon 5% 5% 10% 14% 17% 21%
2 50 00 10 20 30 a5 50
225 00 10 15 25 a9 50
200 00 0o 15 20 30 45
175 00 00 15 20 25 40
150 00 00 10 15 290 30
125 00 00 00 10 15 25
100 00 009 aa oo 10 20

Table 2 - Interim vesting (muitipher appbed to 50% of the shares)

3 year PS5 growtn (compound annuat)

Sales growih in £ bilhon 5% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%
2 50 oa 10 20 30 45 50
225 00 10 t 5 25 40 50
2 00 00 o0 15 20 30 a5
175 00 o0 i5 20 25 40
1 50 Do og 10 16 20 30
125 a0 (O] ] 00 10 15 25
100 00 ao go 00 10 20

& reconciliation of the number of shares condihionally allocated 15 shown below

MNumber of shares

2007 2006

million milhen
Quistanding at begmning of year 70 -
Con¢htionally allocated - 70
forfeited {0 5) -
Quistanding at end of year 65 70

telaits ui snates condibivnany anucated ol 24 March 2067 are sel oul below

Shates (OMElIgG 5 auid 3led

2007 2006
Da ¢ ot conditional aveard millon miteon
13 July 2005 65 70
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Motes to the financial statements continued

32 Share-based payments continued

Options to acquire the conditional award of shares were vatued using the Black Scholes option pricing model Mo performance conditions were included in
the fair value calculations The fair value per option granted during the year and the assumptions used in the calculation are as follows

2007 2006
Share price at grant date (pence) - 286
Exercise price (pence) - -
Expected volatihty (%) - 290
Optien hife (years) - 41
Expected dividends (expressed as dividend yield %) - -
Risk-free interest rate (34) - 43
Fair value per option {pence) I 286

The expected volatihiy 1s based on the standard deviation of the Group s share price for the period immediately prior to the date of grant of award
over the peried «denbical to the vesting penod of the award adjusted for management s view af future volalility aof the share price

(9} Long-Term Incentive Plan 2006

Under the Long Term Incentive Plan 2006 shares were condilionally awarded to the top 1000 managers in the Company (rom the Chief Executive to the
supermarket store managers The core awards are calculated as a percentage of the participants salanes and scaled according to grades

The awards will vest if the threshold levels of two co dependent perfermance conditions - Return ¢n Capital Employed { ROCE ) and growth in cash flow
per share, are achweved over the three year performance period As set out in table 3 betow the core award can grow by up to four times, dependent on
the level of performance Straight hne vesting will apply if perfarmance falls between two points

Performance will be measured at the end of the three year performance period If the required level of performance has been reached the awards vest
and 50 per cent of the award will be released Subject to parbicipants remaining 1in employment for a further year the balance wili be released on the
fourth anniversary of the date of award Options granted to acquire the award of shares will expire two years from vesting dale Dividends will accrue
on the shares that vest in the form of additional shares

Table 3 - Level of awards

3 yer cash low per shareé Kempound annual)

ROCE 6% 9% 12% 15% >18%
»=14% 15 25 30 35 40
13% 10 15 20 30 35
12% 05 10 15 20 30
11% o0 05 10 15 25
10% ¢Go o0 05 10 13

Deta:ls of shares conditionally awarded at 24 March 2007 are set oul below

Shares

conditionally

awarded

{ate of conditienal award miiion
13 July 2006 23

Opiions to acquire the award of shares were valued using the Black Scheles apuon pricing model Na perfarmance conditiens were inetuded inthe
farr yalue raleglatinne The fair valua par aptinn grantad during Lha yaar and the Aascumptinns nsad in tha raleirdation are ac fnlnws

2007
Share price at grant date (pence) 335
Exercise price (pence) -
Expected votatity (%) 290
Option Lfe (years) a1
Expecied dividends {expressed as dividend yield %) -
Risk free interest rate {%) 47
Fawr value per option (pence} 335

The expected volatiiiy 15 based on the standard deviation of the Group s share price for the period immediately pnor Lo the date of grant of award
over the penod identical to the vesting period of the award adjusted for management s view of future valatiity of the share price
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Notes 1o the financial statements continued

33 Acquisition of subsidiary

On 30 June 2006 the Group acquired 100 per cent of the shares in Culcheth Provision Stores Ltd for a total cash consideration of £3 million

net of cash acquired (note 12)

34 Related party transactions

Group
(a) Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group comprise members af the J Sainsbury s plc Board of Directors and the Operating Board

The key management personnel compensations is as follows

2007 2008

Em Em

Short term employee benelts T 8
Past employment employee benefiis 1 1
Share-based payments 7 [}
15 15

Petalls of transaclions 1n the normal course of business with the key management personnel are provided below For this purpose key management

personnel inciude Graup key management personnel and members of their close famuly

At 26 March 2006

Amounts advanced/(received)
Interest earned/(paid)
Amounts {repaid)fwithdrawn?

At 24 March 2007

Al 27 March 2005

Amounts advanced/(receved)!
Interest earned/(paid)
Amounts {repaid)/withdrawn?

At 25 March 2006

Credit <ard batances Sa~ng deposit accounts
Numtyer MNumber
ol key of key
managemenl management
persannel ECOQ personnel £000
4 9 2 (1)
4 115 1 (769)
1 - 2 (3)
4 (116) 1 486
4 8 2 1287)
5 11 4 (487)
& 249 3 {97
3 1 4 {18)
& (252) 3 601
4 9 2 3]

1 Includes exishiun boland #3 of néw gpponitinents
2 Inclures evishing Bl inges of resigohons

(b} Joint ventures

In the current financial year the Company sold a five per cent shareholding in Samsbury s Bank plc {the Bank ) to the Bank of Scotland (a wholly owned
substdiary of HBOS plc) and consequentiy the Bank became a 50 50 joint venture between the Company and HBGS pic (noie 7)

Transactions with joint ventures

For the 52 weeks Lo 24 March 2007 the Graup entered inlo vanous transactions with joint ventures as set out below

Pad snng

Services and loans provided to joint ventures

Sales ol wnvenlories
Management services provided

Services and loans provided by joint ventures

Managemenl services recesved

Em £
4 3
3 -
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Notes to the financial statements continued

34 Related party transactions continued

Year-end balances arising from transactions with joint ventures

2007 2006
£m €m

Receivables
Other receivables 4 1
Loans due from joint ventures

Floating rate subordinated undated loan capital’ 20 -

Floating rate subardinated dated toan capital? 30 -
Payables
Loans due to joint ventures (3} 5

1 The undated suboramated boan capital shall be repad on such date as the Financiak Services Authionty shalt sgree in writing tor Such repayment and in any event noal less 1han Ive years and one day 1rom the dates ol draw
down In the event of a winding up of Saesbury s Bank ple 1he loan s supordinated to ordingsy unsecurea iabihies nrér et 15 payable tnrée months i arreads 31 LIBOR plus a margin of 1 per cent per annum for (he guration
of the loan

2 Mo repayment o daled subordinaled debt Prior Lo s staled maturity may be made without Ihe consent of i Financial Servi es Author iy In the event of a winding up of Samsbury s Bank ple 1he kpan 1§ subordmated 1o Ordndey
unsecured habifities (nterest 15 payable Lh/&@ MONINS it dfrears at LIBOR phus ¢ margan ol 04 per cent per gnsum ter the durabion ol the loan

{c) HBOS plec group

In the prior financial year and up to 8 February 2007 of the current financial year Sainsbury s Bank pic was a subsidiary of the Company and had as

shareholders the Company and Bank of Scotland {part of the HBOS plc group) which held 55 per cent and 45 per cent respectively of the jssued

share capiial

Transaction with the HBOS pl¢ group
Companies within the HBOS plc group provided both managemeni and banking services to Sainsbury s Bank Sainsbury s Bank also entered into financral
transactions with, and earned commisston from compamies within the HBOS pic group all under normal commercial terms

2007 2006
Em £m
Leans given to, and commissian received fram HBOS plc group
Total Ipans and advances made during the year 5,589 89561
Net interest receved 1o respect of interest rate swaps loans and advances 40 16
Comnwssion income earned 18 7
Services and leans provided by HBOS pic group
Management and banking services 140} 52}
Interest expense pad In respect of subordinated loan capital (2) (3)
Deposits by banks
Short lerm borrowing - (56)
Fixed term barrowing (79} (I 007}
Subordinated undated loan capital! - (9)
Mel interest pard in respect of interest rate swaps loans and advances {36} {21}
Year-end balances arrsing from transaction with the HBOS ple group
2007 2006
£m £m
Receivables
Current account - 7
Loans and advances - 996
Interest receivable - 4
Commussion receivable - 1
Payabtes
Management and banking services - 18
Interest payable - (5}
Deposils by banks
Fixed term borrowing - {1 009}
Subordinated habilities due
Floating rate subordinaied undated wan capital* - 118)
Floating rate subordinated dated loan capital? - (27)

Tre unated subordmated loar camlal $h3d De repadd oo sucl date o5 the POl Servdes £ 1ha By s9a” 29006 an s D2ukg Tor SUCh repdy ment and i any evend nal fe1s than ine y2ars and one day from the dates of raw
ety In (e evert 0f g winding up of Sanstat, » Bark e 1he loan s subdrdmaled fv ordiary wnseculvl e vy INterest 13 payabie theee menths n arrears ot LIBOR plus 4 margn ol 19 per tent per annum far the duraton
at i loan

LX)

Nareps, ment of dated subordinated debl prion 10 slated matunity may bé made withou! e consent of rhe Finargs st Secvices Autnonty Inthe event of @ winding up of Sansbury s Bans plc theioan 1s subordinated to ordinary
unsecul e? Balihties Intetest 15 pay ible hise MENTHS N arfedts ot LIBOR plus @ margn ol 075 per Cent per anrnm tor the duration of [ha lodn
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Notes to the financial statements continued

34 Related party transactions continued

Company

{a) Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Company comprise members of the J
remwmcraiicn from the Compan, {2006 E£r) as therr emoluments are Sornc
Directars during the financial year (2086 nil)

(b} Subsidiaries

5a
Sy

nsbury s plc Board of Directors The Directors do not receive any
subsicdianies The Compan, did nst wa.e any transactions aththe

The Company enters into Ioans withits subsidiaries at both fixed and floating rates of interest on a commercial basis Hence the Company incurs interest
expense and earns interest income on these loans and advances The Company also received dividend income from its subsidiaries during the hinancial year

Transachions with subsidiaries

2007 2006
Em Em
Loans and advances qiven {0, and dividend income received from subsidianes
Loans and advances given 69 1399
Loans and advances repad by subsithanes {802} {3 104)
Loans and advances disposed of with part disposal of Sansbury s Bank (50} -
Interest income recewved in respect of interest bearing loans and advances 127 110
Dwidend income received 270 270
Loans and advances received from subsidiaries
Loans and advances received {1,559} (3 448)
Loans and advances repaid 2,167 1650
Interest expense paid n respect of interest bearing loans and advances (224} {154)
Year end balances ansing from transactions with subsidiaries
2007 2006
Em Em
Recewvables
Loans and advances due from subsidiaries 1,243 1899
Payables
Loans and advances due to subsidiaries (5,203} {5 856)

(c) Jomnt ventures

In the current linancial year the Company sold a five per cent sharehelding in Sainsbury s Bank plc (the Bank ) to the Bank of Scotland (a wholly owned
subsichary of HBOS plo) and consequently Lhe Bank became a 50 50 )oint venlure between the Company and HBGS pic (nole 7)

Year end balances ansing from transactions with joint ventures

2007 006
Em £m
Recewvables
Otner receivables 1 -
Loans due [rom joint ventures
Floaling rale subordinated undated loan capital 20 -
Fieating rale suboidinated dated loan camial? 30 -
Payables
Loans due to jomt ventures {5} {5)

The utt s o subcdcmated koo £ap *3l $ha L be repord on such date as (e Funancal Secvices Autbority shatl agree v wriling for such repayment and m any eyent nol less than Ive yedrs antt one tay 'roem the i 1tes ol cras

B B IR INe evert 0 3 il N up ©f Sensbury 3 Bark pX the loan 5 SUbOTdINated 10 Ofcenary undecwded Raboihes Inlerest o5 payoble the ee MONths I arzears at LIBOR pius 8 Marg et 10 per ¢ent per annum e (he dyralon

ottt e laan

~

P N I LT TR S (DS TENNP | o- - SVERTR, NURRRIEL £ o ¥ /Uy [RPUNS SO

MY repiyment ol T ed subol Dialed UEDT pLOT 13 115 staled Matul ¥ May be made wilhout the censeént al the Findikial Services Authatdy In the event of a windingywp ol Sainsbury 5 Bank plc the 10an m subgrem sted to orimary

e e R
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Metes te the financial statements continued

35 Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various retar) stores offices depots and equipment under non-cancetlatle operating feases The leases have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal righis

Land and buldings Qther leases
2007 2006 2007 2006
Em Em £m £Em

Commitmentis under non cancellable operating leases payable as follows

Within 1 year 291 283 42 29
Within 2 to 5 years inclusive 1,125 1,113 82 62
After 5 years 4,679 4817 7 -
6,095 6,213 131 91

The Group sublets certan leased properties and the total future minimum sublease payments to be received under non cancellable subleases at
24 March 2007 are £262 million (2006 £267 million)

The Company does not have any operating tease commitments (2006 nmil}

36 Capital commitments

CQuning the current financial year the Group entered into contracts of £305 milion (2006 £477 miltien) for future capital expenditure not prowvided for
in the financial statements

The Company does not have any capital commitments (2006 mii)

37 Contingent habilities and financial cormmitments

Contingent habilities

Operating lease commitments (note 35) include payments in respect of 26 supermarket properties sold (16 supermarket properties sold in March 2000
for £325 milhon and ten supermarket properties scld in July 2000 for £226 mithon) and leased back to Samshury s Supermarkets for a period of

23 years Under the arrangement the Company has provided a residual value guarantee of £170 million for the 16 supermarket properties and £39 mdlion
for the ten supermarket properties at the end of the lease period

In view of the relatively low amaunt of the guarantees when compared to the present market value of the freehold interests the Directors beheve that
Lthe hkelihood of the guarantees being invoked 15 remote therefore no provision has been recognised in these financial statements

Financial commitments
The hinancial commitments of Sainsbury s Bank ple a 50 per cent joint venture of the Group are set out below

Sainsbury s Bank

The amounts noted below indicate the volume of business outstanding at the balance sheet date in respect of undrawn commitments to lend on credit
cards martgages and personal loans They do not reftect the underlying credit or ather risks which amounted to £7 mullion (2006 £9 multion) as
indicated by the nsk weighted amount using the Financial Services Authorily s capital adequacy reguirement The risk weighted amount 1s much lower
than the contraclual amount since the majonty of commitments are cancellable either at any time or up {o and including one year

2007 2006
£m £m

Commitments {o lend on credit cards mortgages and personal loans up to and incluging ane year
Contract amount 3193 3404
Risk weighted amount 7 g
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Five year financial record

IFRS UK GAAP
2007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
Financial resuits (Em)
Revenue? 18,518 17 317 16 573 16 573 18 239 18,144
Re evoe (inc YAT) - continuing oporaliens 18,518 17 217 16 384 16 264 15517 15,147
Underlying operating profit
Sansbury s Supermarkets 429 352 308 321 564 572
Sainsbury s Bank 2 (10) 17 13 26 22
431 342 325 334 590 594
Underlying net finance costs? {51) (75) (88 92} 60) (60}
Share of post Lax prolit irom joint ventures - - 1 1 - 3
Undertying profit from continuing pperatronss 380 267 238 243 530 537
increase on previous year (%) 42 3 122 nfa
Underlying profit from dis¢continued operations - - 11 11 145 158
Underlying profit before taxs 380 267 249 254 675 695
Increase/tdecrease) an previous year (%) 42 3 72 n/a (62 4) (2 9) o8
Earnings per share
Basic {pence) 19 2 3B 41 35 207 237
{Decreasa)/increase on previous year (%) 405 3 7 3 n/a {83 1) {12 7) 24 1
Underlying basic {pence) 147 105 813 90 234 242
Increase/tdecrease) on previous year (%) 400 265 n/a (61 5) (33) 126
Proposed dividend per share® (pence) 975 8 00 7 80 7 80 15 6% 1558
Retail statistics for UK food retailing
Number of outlets at financial year-end
Sainsbury s Supermarkels?
over 40 C00 sq it sales area 178 166 158 158 157 152
25001 - 40 000 sq it sales area 163 168 176 176 163 162
15 000 - 25 000 sq ft sales area 91 88 79 79 7 79
under 15000 sq fl sales area 156 330 314 314 186 105
788 752 727 727 583 198
Sales area {000 sq ft)
Sainsbury s Supermarkets’ 17,364 16 725° 16 370 16 370 15 570 15 199
Net increase on previous year
Sainsbury s Supermarkets? (%) 38 22 51 51 24 59
New Sainsbury s Supermarkets? openings 40 34 36 36 35 39
Samnsbury's Supermarkets’ sales intensity {including VAT
Per square foot (E per week) 17 59 16 70 16 38 16 38 16 6& 1712
! Revénue in 2007 has been 1estated tor [he Change o1 accour Lng po iy i Kccordange with FRS S (Appixation Ha e GI
2 Inchxdps VAT at Samsburs s Suparmarkets and sai-5 133 af $7 1% 8 5 Deomari et
3 Net lmange 0815 e bnancng fair value movaments and ars -0t items that are matsrn il and inlequent i naturs
A IFRS  Probt pefore tas lioni coftnuing opetahons betore w1 a ni or loss on the s e ol properbes impaement of goawill hinancing 1 ir v sus imgverents g one all fems 111 ate Andterol g misegquent mnturs

S UKGAAP Underlying peolit hetote fav s shater betore eateLtionaliter s
& Totalprepesed dividend q el 10 the b nratye ir

T Inchedes 2l comemence Ltores

B Cachuting peirol and restated 10 mlude 125 18 adpstn ent

2 Ratlects size odpustmentsy
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Additional shareholder information

End of year information at 24 March 2007

Number of shareholders 127 354 (2006 140 920}

Number of shares tn1ssue 1,734,239 672 (2006 1 710 516 638)

By size of holding

Sharehoiders % Shares %
2007 2006 2007 2006
500 and uncer 67 62 64 84 057 J 65
501 to 1,000 12 59 i3 31 Q69 0Bt
1001 to 10,060 18 31 20 35 334 420
10,001 to 100 000 095 103 1886 224
100 001 to 1,000 000 0 36 0 34 8 68 953
Cver 1 000 Q00 017 013 84 86 B2 57
100 00 1C00 00 100 DO 100 00

By category of shareholder

Shareholcers % Shares %
2007 2006 2007 2006
Individual and other shareholders 96 04 94 86 2L 91 3117
Insurance companses 005 005 003 003
Banks and Nominees 352 461 69 7L 54 82
lavestment Trusts 003 004 001 001
Pension Funds 001 002 013 G026
Other Corporate Bodies 0 3% o a2 821 1371
100 00 10C 00 100 00 100 00

Annual General Meeting (“"AGM"')

The AGM will be held al 11 00am on Wednesday 1l July 2007 at The Queen
Ehzabeth Il Conference Centre Broad Sanctuary Weslminsler Laondon
SWiP 3EE The Notice of the Meeting and the proxy card for the meeling
are enclosed with this report

Company website

J Sainsbury plc interim and annual reporls and resulls annguncements are
avallable en our website (www) sainsbury co uk) As well as providing share
price data and financial hislory the site also provides background
infermation about the Company regulatory and news releases and ¢urrent
1ssues Shareholders can recewve ematl netification ol results and press
announcemenis as they are released by regustening on the page called
Email news service in the Investor section of the webstte

Regisirar

Tol MinimMandn abdul e G SherTholGIngs O WOCnds and o riport
changes to persenal details shareholders should contact Computershare
Investor Services PLC PO Box 82 The Pawilions Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 TNH

Telephone 0870 702 0106 (www computershare com)
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Dividend Reinvestment Plan ("DRIP')

The Company has a DRIP which allows shareholders to remnvest their
cash dividends 1n the Company s shares bought in the market Lhrough

a speaally arranged share dealing service No new shares are allotted
under thts Plan and some 31157 shareholders participate int Full details
of the Plan and ts charges together with mandale forms are avarable
from the Registrar

Key dates for the final dividend are as follows

Lasi date {or return or revocation of Plan mandates 29 June 2007

Plan shares purchased for parlicipants 20 July 2007

Ptan share certsficates issued 2 August 2007

Individual Savings Account (“ISA™)

A corporalte I1SA s avatlable from The Share Cenire Lid and offers atax
eflicient way of holding shares in the Company Both a Maxiand Mim
IS4 are available For further information contact The Share Centre
PO Box 2000 Oxiord Roead Aylesbury Buckinghamshire HPZ21 BZ8

Telephone Q1296 414141 or freephone 08000 282812 and
guuwe Sainsbury »

Low cost share dealing service

The Company offers a low cost share dealing service for J Sainsbury plc
ordinary shares through The Share Centre Lid For lurther information
centact The Share Centre PQ Box 2000 Qxford Road Aylesbury
Buckinghamshire HP21 828

Tetephone 01296 414141 or {reephone 08000 282812 and
quole Sansbuiy s




Additional shareholder information continued

ShareGift

Shareholders who wish Lo denate shares to chanty can do so through
ShareGift the independent chanty share donation scheme (reqistered
chanty no 1G52686) Further information about ShareGift may be obtained
from Computershare Investor Services PLC ar frem ShareGift on 020 7337
0501 or at www sharegift org There are noimphcat:ons for capital gains
tax purposes (on gain or loss) on gifts of shares to charty

and i 1s alse possible to claim income tax rehet

Tax information - Capital Gains Tax ("CGT")

For CGT purocses the markat value of ordinary shares on 31 March 1982
adjusted for all capital adjustments was 9199 pence and B shares

10 941 pence

Share capital consohidation

The onigimal base cost of shares apportioned beiween ordinary shares of
28%/7 pence and B shares s made by reference to the market value of each
class of shares on the first day for which a market value (s quoied after the
new holding comes into existence The market value for CGT purposes of
any share or security quoted on the Stock Exchange Daily Official List 1s
generally the lower of the two quotations on any day plus one quarter of
the difference between the values

Cn Monday 19 July 2004 the values were determined as follows

New ordinary shares 257 50 pence
B shares 35 pence

Investar relatiens

For investor enguiries please contact Ellot Jardan Head of Invesior
Relations J Samnsbury plc Store Support Centre 33 Holborn
London ECIN 2HT

Amencan Depositary Receipts ("ADRs"}
The Company has a sponscred Level | ADR programme for which
The Bank of New York acts as depositary

The ADRs are traded on the over the counter ( OTC ) market in the US

under the symbal JSYNS

wheic onc ADR s €qual (6 four oridnary shares

All enguiries relating to ADRs should be addressed to

The Bank of New York Investor Relations PC Box 11258,
Church Street Station, New York NY 10286 1258 Toll Free
Telephone # for domestic callers 1 888 BNY ADRS
Internattonal callers can call +1 610 382 7836

Email shareowners@bankoiny com

General contact detaills

An audio tape of the Annual Review and Summary Financiat Statement
can be obtained by calling 01435 862 737

Annual Reperts Interim Reports and information on corporate
responsibility are all available on our website (www ) sainsbury co uk)
and by calling 0800 015 4330

Share price imformation s available on the Company s website inthe
financial press and the Cityline service operated by the Financial Times
(Telephone 0906 003 3904)

For general enquines about Sainsbury s Bank call 0500 405 060

For any customer enguiries please contact our Customer Carehine

by calling 0800 636 262
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Addittonal shareholder information continued

Electronic communications for shareholders
The Company has set up a facihity for shareholders to take agvantage
of electronic communications

Hf you would like to
chech the balance and current Jalue of our sharcholding and Jey
your dividend history
reqister your emasl address so that {uture shareholder information
¢an be sent to you electroncally
submit your vote online prior to a general meeting

Log on to {www )-sainsbury co uk} and camplete the following steps

b chckhon Invesiors

2 click on Shareholder Services

3 chchon Computershare

4 enter the required information and chck on submit  You will need
your 11 character shareholder reierence number located on your
laiest tax voucher

5 chick on Electromc Shareholder Communication and register online

Registered office
JSainsbury plc

33 Holkarn

London ECN ZHT
Registered number 185647

Salicitors
Linklaters

One Silk Street
Lendon EC2Y 8HQ

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1Embankment Place

London WC2N 6RH

Stockbrokers
uBs

tFinsbury Avenue
London £EC2M 2PP

Margan Stanley
25 Cabol Square
Canary Wharf

Londen Ei4 4QA
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Financial calendar 2007/08

Dividend and interest payments
Ordinary dividend

Ex dividend date 23 May 2007
Record date 25 May 2007
Final dividend payable 20 July 2007
Intenim dividend payable January 2008
B shares

Last redemption date 18 Jduly 2007
Interest payment date 18 Juiy 2007

Cther dates

Annual Generat Meating - London 11 July 2007

Interim results announced 14 November 2007

Interim report available November 2007

Annual General Meeting - Birmingham 15 July 2008




Glossary

‘Active Kids” — Qur nalignwide scheme to help
tnspire school children to take more exercise and
to eat maore healthily Mow inits thurd year of
operation Active Kids i1s open to all nursery
primary and secondary schools as welt as Scouts
and Girt Guides in the UK

www sainsburys co ukfactivekids

ADR - American Depositary Receipt ~
The gver the counter traded US security

AGM - Annual General Meeting - This year the
AGM will be held on Wednesday 11 July 2007 at
The Queen Elizabeth [l Conference Centre

Broad Sanctuary Westminster London SWIP 3EE
at 1 00am

B shares ~ Prelerence B shares 1ssued on
12 July 2004 as part of the Retwrn of Capital
scheme in 2004/05

‘basics’ - Sainshury s core sub-brand range
of products

'‘BGTY' — 'Be Good to Yourselt’ — Sainsbury s
healthier alterpative sub brand range of
products Products fall into ene of Lhree
categones those with less than 3% fat those
with less calories sali and saturated fai than
standard ines of plus producis that are
fortified with added ingredients (including

pre biotics pro bictics and Omega 3)

CMBS - Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities
Company - J Sainshury plc

CC - Competition Commussion ~ An
independent public body which conducts

in depth inguiries into mergers markeis and
the major regulated industries The CCis
undertaking an investigation into the supply
of groceries by retaillers in the UK

www competitien-commission org uk

CR - Corporate responsibiity — The need to
acl responsibly In managing theimpact ona
ranae of stakeholders - cusiomers colleagues
investors suppliers the commumty and

the environment

Debt restructuning - On 24 March 2006 the
Group raised new long term financing secured
on 127 of its supermarkets

‘Different by design’ ~ Sainsbury s general
reRandiee brand

merchantse Srand  RuSh marsis R BIC Tl

Taste the difierence food range

Dwvidend cover - Underlying prahit after tax
fram continuing operalions attrbutable to
equity shareholders divided by total value of
dividends declared during the year

DRIP - Dividend Reinvestment Plan - Allows
shareholders io reinvest their cash dividend in
shares of the Company through a specialfy
arranged share dealing service

EPS - Earmings per share - Earmngs
attributabie to ordinary shareholders divided by
the weighted average number of erdinary shares
inissue during the year excluding those held by
ESOP trusts which are treated as cancelled

Easter adjustment - To adjust for the himing of
Easter falling on 16 April 2006 and 8 Apnil 2007

ESOP trusts - Employee Share Qwnership
Plan trusts

Fairtrade - The FAIRTRADE label s an
independent consumer label that guaraniees

a fair deal for marginahsed workers and smal
scale farmers in developing countries Producers
receive a minsmum price that covers the cost of
production and an extra premium that 1s invested
in the local community www fairtrade org uk

Fair value — The amount for which an asset
could be exchanged or a labiity settled
between knowledgeable willing parties

1 anarm s length transaction

‘freefrom' - Sainsbury s range of products
guaranteed Lo be wheat gluten or dairy free

FSA - Food Standards Agency

FTSE4Good - The FTSE Group anindexing
company runs the FTSE4Good index series

to measure the performance of companies thal
meet CR standards and to faciditate investment
in those compames www ftse com/itsedgood

GDAs — Gutdehne Dally Amounts
Gearing — Net debt divided by total equity
Group - The Company and its subsidiaries

IFRIC — Internationat Financiat Reporting
Interpretations Commttee

IFRS - International Financial Reporting
Standard(s)

1GD ~ Institute of Grocery Distnbuticn

Income statement - Formerly hnown as the
profit and loss account under UK GAAP

ISA - Indiwiriyal Savinns Acrnnnt

Joint venture - A business jointly owned
by two or more parties

Like-for-like sales - The measure of year
on year same store sales growth

LTIP = Long Term fnrentive Plan

MTL - Multiple traffic hghts - Nutrntional
labels which provide effective at a glance
tnformation customers need to make healthier
chaices when shopping 4 500 Sainsbury s
products carry cur Wheel of Health MTL (abel

Organic — Organic farming prohibits the

use of artificial fertilisers pesticides growth
regulators and additives in hivestock feed The
International Federation of Organic Agriculture
Movements (IFOAM) accredits national organmic
certifying bodies

Prpeline — Sites which the Group has an interest
in developing in the future

ROCE - Return on Capital Employed
RPI - Retai Price Index

‘Sainsbury's S0 organic’ - Sainsbury s organic |
sub brand range of products \

SORIE - Statement of recognised inccme
and expense

TSR - Tetal Shareholder Return - The growth
in value of a shareholding over a specified
period assuming that dividends are reinvested
to purchase addittonal units of the stock

'Ttd" - 'Taste the difference’ - Sainsbury s
premium sub brand range of producls

'Try something new today’ -~ The marketing
campargn in supporl of Making Sainsbury s
Greal Again

TU' - Sainsbury s own label clothung range

UK GAAP - UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Princtples

Underlying basic earnings per share - Profit
after lax from continuing operations attnibutable
Lo equily holders belore any gaimn or loss on

the sale of praperties imparment of goodwill
hnancing fair value movements and ene off
items that are material and infrequeni 1n nature
divided by the reighted average number

of erdinary shares in tssue during the year,
excluding those held by the ESOP irusts

which are treated as cancelled !

Underiying profit before tax - Profit before
tax from centinuing operabions pefore any gain
or loss on the sale of properties tmpairment

Ul yuouwin e iy fan vaue ihovericnls
and one oif items that are matenal and
infrequent in nature

Underlying operating profit/{loss) -
Underlying profi belore tax from continuing
operations befare finance income and

L
hande Cuses
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